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KEEPING COMMITMENTS

Keeping commitments is important to all of us. Itis an easy
concept to understand, but much harder to actually put
in practice.

Fortunately, the world is filled with people whose daily lives
and activities are focused upon keeping their commitments.

Earning and maintaining the trust of our clients and other
stakeholders is the goal of each of the companies in the

Power Financial group, our employees and the financial advisors
who work with us. All our business decisions are geared to
ensuring we have the resources and financial strength to keep
our commitments over the long term.

Because keeping commitments is important to all of us.
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This Annual Reportisintended to
provide interested shareholders

and otherinterested persons with
selected information concerning

Power Financial Corporation.

For furtherinformation concerning the
Corporation, shareholders and other
interested persons should consult the
Corporation’s disclosure documents,
such asits Annual Information Form and
Management's Discussion and Analysis.
Copies of the Corporation’s continuous
disclosure documents can be obtained
at www.sedar.com, on the Corporation’s
website at www.powerfinancial.com, or
from the Office of the Secretary at the

addresses shown at the end of this report.

Readers should also review the note
furtherin this report, in the section

entitled Review of Financial Performance,

concerning the use of Forward-Looking
Statements, which applies to the entirety
of this Annual Report.

In addition, selected information
concerning the business, operations,
financial condition, financial
performance, priorities, ongoing
objectives, strategies and outlook

of Power Financial Corporation'’s
subsidiaries and associates is derived
from publicinformation published by
such subsidiaries and associates and
is provided here for the convenience
of the shareholders of Power Financial
Corporation. For furtherinformation
concerning such subsidiaries and
associates, shareholders and other
interested persons should consult

the websites of, and other publicly
available information published by, such
subsidiaries and associates.

The selected performance
measures shown on pages2, 3
and 5are as of December 31, 2012
unless otherwise noted.

Thefollowing abbreviations are used
throughout this report: Power Financial
Corporation (Power Financial or the
Corporation); Great-West Life & Annuity
Insurance Company (Great-West Life

& Annuity or Great-West Financial);
Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Great-West Lifeco
or Lifeco); Groupe Bruxelles Lambert
(GBL); IGM Financial Inc. (IGM Financial or
IGM); Investment Planning Counsel Inc.
(Investment Planning Counsel);
Investors Group Inc. (Investors Group);
Lafarge SA (Lafarge); London Life
Insurance Company (London Life);
Mackenzie Financial Corporation
(Mackenzie or Mackenzie Investments);
Pargesa Holding SA (Pargesa); Parjointco
N.V. (Parjointco); Power Corporation of
Canada (Power Corporation); Putnam
Investments, LLC (Putnam Investments
or Putnam); Suez Environnement
Company (Suez Environnement); The
Canada Life Assurance Company
(Canada Life); The Great-West Life
Assurance Company (Great-West

Life); Total SA (Total). Inaddition,

IFRS refers to International Financial
Reporting Standards.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] 2012 2011
Revenues 32,412 32,400
Operating earnings attributable to

common shareholders 1,686 1,729

Operating earnings per common share 2.38 2.44
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,626 1722

Net earnings per common share 2.30 2.43
Dividends declared per common share 1.40 1.40
Total assets 268,593 252,678
Consolidated assets and assets under management 523,885 496,781
Shareholders’ equity 14,029 13,521
Total equity 24,372 22,815
Book value per common share 16.60 16.26
Common shares outstanding (in millions) 709.1 708.2

The Corporation uses operating earnings as a performance measure in analyzing its financial performance. For a discussion
of the Corporation’s use of non-IFRS financial measures, please refer to the Review of Financial Performance section in this
Annual Report.
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GROUP ORGANIZATION CHART

Power Financial Corporation is a diversified management
and holding company that has interests, directly or
indirectly, in companies in the financial services sector

in Canada, the United States and Europe. It also has
substantial holdings in a diversified industrial group based
in Europe.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION —

68.2%

GREAT-WEST LIFECO ~49%

2012 Operating earnings attributable
to common shareholders

$1955 MILLION
2012 Return on shareholders’ equity

159%
Total assets under administration
$546 BILLION
100%" 100% 100% 100% 100%
PUTNAM GREAT-WEST CANADA LIFE LONDON LIFE GREAT-WEST
INVESTMENTS FINANCIAL LIFE

Percentages denote
participating equity interest
asat December 31, 2012.

Operating earningsisa
non-IFRS financial measure.

Return onshareholders'’
equity is calculated using
operating earnings.

[1] Denotesvotinginterest.
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2012 OPERATING

EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE 2012 RETURN ON CONSOLIDATED ASSETS TOTAL

TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' AND ASSETS UNDER ASSETS UNDER

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION

$1,686 14.4% $524 667

MILLION BILLION BILLION

58.7%
PARGESA®
IGM FINANCIAL
3.7% >
2012 Operating earnings available to 2012 Operating earnings
common shareholders SF359 MILLION
$750 MILLION Net asset value
2012 Return on shareholders’ equity SF7.6 BILLION
17.3%
Total assets under management
$121 BILLION
100% 100% 97.8% 50.0%"
INVESTORS MACKENZIE III\:’I\L/ESNTNPTIEET GROUPE
GROUP INVESTMENTS COUNSEL BRUXELLES LAMBERT
IMERYS LAFARGE
569% 21.0%
[2] Throughitswholly owned [3] Representing 52%

D tnEt TS GDF SUEZ SUEZ ENVIRONNEMENT
heIdaSIO%interest 51% 7.2%
in Parjointco. Parjointco
held avotinginterest of
75.4% and an equity interest TOTAL PERNOD R|CARD
of 55.6% in Pargesa. 4.0% 7.5%
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BUSINESS SUMMARY

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

GREAT-WEST CANADA
LIFECO

> Life, disability and critical illness insurance for individuals, business owners
and families

> Retirementsavingsand income plans forindividuals and groups
> Fund management, investmentand advisory services

GREAT-WEST LIFE > Comprehensive benefit solutions for small, medium and large employer groups
LONDON LIFE > Creditorinsurance, including life, disability, jobloss and critical illness coverage
FREEDOM 55 FINANCIAL™ > Life, health, accident and critical illness insurance for members of affinity groups
CANADA LIFE
GREAT-WEST FINANCIAL® UNITED > Employer-sponsored defined contribution plans
> Administrative and record-keeping services for financial institutions and
PUTNAM INVESTMENTS STATES retiremant plans P
> Fund management, investmentand advisory services
> Individual retirementaccounts, life insurance, annuities, business-owned life
insurance and executive benefits products
> Globalasset management offering mutual funds, institutional portfolios, college
savings plans, 401(k)s, IRAs and other retirement plans
> Investment capabilities include fixed income, equities (both U.S. and global),
global assetallocation and alternatives, including absolute return, risk parity and
hedge funds.
CANADA LIFE EUROPE > Protectionand wealth management products and related services in the United

[1] AsatSeptember 30,2012
[2] AsatDecember 31, 2012
[3] AsatDecember 31, 2011

[4] Asat)june 30,2012

Kingdom, Isle of Man, Ireland and Germany

> Reinsurance and retrocession business, primarily in the United States and
European markets

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

IGM FINANCIAL
INVESTORS GROUP

MACKENZIE INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENT PLANNING COUNSEL

> Financialadvice and planning forindividual Canadians

> Family of exclusive mutual funds with multiple sub-brands

> Institutional asset management mandates

> Insurance, Solutions Banking, mortgage and trust company products and services

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

PARGESA

> Coreshareholderinvestingin Europe

> Concentrated positionsina limited number of large industrial companies based
in Europe

> Seeking to exercise significant influence or control overitsinvestments
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DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

MARKET POSITION

> Gold Key financial security advisors associated with Great-West Life

> Freedom 55 Financialand Wealth & Estate Planning Group financial
security advisors associated with London Life

> Independentadvisors associated with managing general agencies
> National accounts, including Investors Group

> Great-West Life group insurance and retirement sales and service staff
inofficesacross Canada that supportindependentadvisors, brokers
and benefit consultants distributing its group products

> Servesthefinancial security needs of more than 12 million Canadians

> 33% market share of individual life insurance measured by premium

> 22% market share of individual living benefits measured by sales premium!”
> 26% market share of individual segregated fund assets?

> 22% market share of group insurancel!

> 18% market share of group capital accumulation plans, serving 1.2 million
memberaccounts®

> Leading market share for creditorinsurance revenue premiumt

> Brokers, consultants, advisors and third-party administrators

> Financialinstitutions

> Salesand service staffand specialized consultants

> Services globalinstitutional, domestic retail, defined contribution, and
registered investment advisor markets

> Great-West Financial serves 5.2 million customers
> Morethan 27,000 defined contribution plans

> 25% market share of state and local government deferred
compensation plans

> 36% market share of individual life insurance sold through the retail bank channel

> 10% market share of business-owned life insurance purchased by
financial institutions!

> Putnam hasnearly 4.5 million shareholders and retirement plan participants
and 140 institutional client accounts around the world

> More than 160,000 advisors distribute Putnam products
> Putnam provides services to approximately 288 defined contribution plans

> Independent financialadvisors and employee benefit consultants

inthe U.K.and Isle of Man

> Independent brokers and direct sales force in Ireland
> Independent brokers and multi-tied agents in Germany
> Independentreinsurance brokers

> Directplacements

U.K.AND > 29% share of group life market®
ISLE OF MAN > 21%share of group income protection market®

> Among the top offshore life companiesin the U.K. market
with14% sharel!

> Among the top insurersin payout annuities, with 6%

market share!!

IRELAND > Among the top seven insurers by new business
market sharell

GERMANY > Oneofthetoptwoinsurersintheindependent

intermediary unit-linked market!
> Among thetop sixin the overall unit-linked market!!

REINSURANCE > Amongtop ten lifereinsurersinthe U.S. by
assumed business!

DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

MARKET POSITION

> Investors Group network of 4,518 consultants

> Mackenzie sales and service for financial advisors across multiple
distribution channels (over 30,000 financial advisors)

> Investment Planning Counsel has close to 800 independent

financial advisors

> |nstitutional asset management sales force
> Relationship with Canadian Medical Association

> $120.7billioninassets under management
> Significant market position in mutual fund management, with12.5% of

industry long-term mutual fund assets under management

> Among Canada’s leading providers of financial planning services
> $211billionininstitutional, sub-advised and other mandates with Mackenzie

GROUP HOLDINGS

PERFORMANCE RECORD

LAFARGE

IMERYS
TOTAL

GDFSUEZ

SUEZ ENVIRONNEMENT

PERNOD RICARD

One of the world leadersin cement,
aggregatesand concrete

Aworldleaderinindustrial minerals

Aninternationalintegrated oil and
gas company

Aleading energy provider in electricity and
natural gas

Aninternational waterand waste
management company

Theworld co-leaderin wines and spirits

> Strongand consistent dividend payout; $2.8 billion over15years
> Consistent outperformance of relevant equity marketindices over the

longterm

> Fifteen-year total return to shareholders of 6.6% (SF), compared with 3.2%

(SF)for the Swiss SPlindex and 4.1% (€) for the French CAC40 index
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DIRECTORS
REPORT TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Power Financial and its subsidiaries produced solid financial results
in 2012 in an environment which remained challenging for many of the
company’s businesses. Ongoing uncertainty regarding the resolution
of financial challenges in Europe and the United States resulted in
clients remaining very cautious in their investment and insurance
decisions. Historically low interest rates also prevailed throughout
the year, creating challenges for savers everywhere, including life

insurance companies and pension funds.

Against this backdrop, the companies in the Power Financial group
continued to invest in strengthening their product and service
offerings to their clients and the advisors who serve them with a view

to enhancing the long-term growth prospects of their businesses.

In addition to pursuing organic growth opportunities,
our companies have sought to create growth over time
through acquisitions. In early 2013, Great-West Lifeco
agreed to acquire Irish Life Group Limited from the
Government of Ireland for $1.75 billion. The acquisition is
expected to be accretive to Lifeco's earnings and is highly

consistent with its global business strategy.

Keeping commitments isan essential attribute in
financial services. Our financial strength allows our
companies to keep their commitments over the

long term for the benefit of their clients, employees,
communities and shareholders. This is why our group
companies have maintained their prudent approach
to balance sheet management and a strong risk-
management culture over many years. Thisis evident
in the maintenance of strong credit ratings across

ourgroup.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

We Dbelieve our corporate governance structures

and practices have been essential in creating and
maintaining strong business franchises capable of
performingin good timesand in bad. Our governance is
rooted in along-term perspective towards shareholder
returns, and focuses upon key factors such as strategy,
people, capital and risk. We oversee our principal
investments through boards of directors made up of

a mix of experienced individuals both from within our

group and from the outside.

Our group companies also have a long and proud history
of contributing to the well-being of the communities

in which they operate. The principles underlying our
approachinthisarea are outlined later in this report

under "Responsible Management”.



FINANCIAL RESULTS

Power Financial's operating earnings attributable

to common shareholders for the year ended
December 31,2012 were $1,686 million or $2.38 per share,
compared with $1,729 million or $2.44 per share in 201.

For the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2012, otheritems represented a charge of $60 million,

compared with a charge of $7 million in 2011.

Otheritemsin 2012 included the Corporation’s share of
theimpact of litigation provision adjustments at Lifeco
in the fourth quarter of 2012, as well as the Corporation’s
share of impairment charges at GBL, net of gains on the

disposal of two investments during the year.

Net earnings attributable to common shareholders,

including otheritems, were $1,626 million or $2.30 per
sharefor the year ended December 31, 2012, compared

with $1,722 million or $2.43 per share in 2011.

Dividends declared by Power Financial Corporation
totalled $1.40 per common share in 2012, unchanged

from 2011

RESULTS OF GROUP COMPANIES
GREAT-WEST LIFECO

Great-West Lifeco's financial condition continues

to bevery solid asa result of its continued strong
performance in 2012. The company delivered superior
results compared to peer companies in its industry due
to strong organic growth of premiums and deposits,
and solid investment performance, despite challenging

market conditions.
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS conTinuED

Great-West Lifeco reported operating earnings
attributable to common shareholders of $1,955 million
or $2.059 per share for 2012, compared with

$1,898 million or $2.000 per share for 2011.

Great-West Lifeco's return on equity (ROE) of 15.9 per
centonoperating earnings and 14.7 per cent on net
earnings for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012
continued to rankamong the strongest in the financial

services sector.

Other measures of Great-West Lifeco's performance

in 2012 include:

> Premiums and deposits of $59.8 billion, compared

with $62.3 billionin 20M.

> Anincreasein general fund and segregated fund

assets from $238.8 billion to $253.7 billion in 2012.

> Total assets underadministration at
December 31,2012 of $546 billion, compared with

$502 billion twelve months ago.

The dividend on Great-West Lifeco's common shares

remained unchanged in 2012.

Great-West Lifeco's companies continue to benefit
from prudent and conservative investment policies

and practices with respect to the management of their

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

consolidated assets. In addition, Great-West Lifeco’s
conservative product underwriting standards and
disciplined approach to introducing new products have
proved beneficial for the company and its subsidiaries
over thelong term. Also, Great-West Lifeco’'s approach
to asset/liability management has minimized exposure
to interest rate movements. In Canada, the company
continued to offer segregated fund guaranteesina
prudent and disciplined manner, thereby limiting its risk
exposure. Asaresult, Great-West Lifeco’s balance sheet

is one of the strongest in the industry.

The Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus
Requirements (MCCSR) ratio for Great-West Life was

207 per cent on a consolidated basis at December 31, 2012.

In Canada, Great-West Lifeco's companies maintained
leading market positions in theirindividual and group
businesses, and experienced strong organic growth.
This was achieved by focusing on three broad goals in
2012: improving products and services for clients and
advisors, maintaining strong financial discipline, and
improving tools, information and processes to enable

greater productivity and effectiveness.



Group retirement services business recorded strong
growth, group insurance business continued to
experience excellent persistency, and individual
segregated fund and mutual fund businesses
maintained positive net cash flows. Individual insurance
salesin Canada increased 15 per cent and sales of
proprietary retail investment funds increased 2.8 per

centyearoveryear.

Together, Great-West Lifeco’s subsidiaries Great-West
Life, London Life and Canada Life remain Canada’s

number one provider of individual insurance solutions.

In the United States, a single brand identity, Great-West
Financial, was introduced in 2012 across all of the lines
of business operated by Great-West Life & Annuity. The
clarity of one brand with a focused and well-positioned
message is helping build name recognition and creating
stronger brand equity in all Great-West Financial

markets, to furtheraugment growth.

Diverse products, expanded partnerships, enhanced
toolsand a new brand identity all contributed to

Great-West Financial's solid growth in 2012. Sales of

401(k) plansincreased 14 per cent, business-owned life
insurance sales were up 20 per cent and single premium

life insurance sales jumped 56 per cent year over year.

In 2012, Putnam continued its focus on investment
performance and innovation. For the second time in
thelastfouryears, Barron's magazine ranked Putnam
#1out of 62 fund companies in 2012, based upon its

fund performance over a broad range of investment
categories. Putnam’s financial advisor website was
ranked the industry’s best by researcher kasina, and the
FundVisualizer analytical tool received an award from
the Mutual Fund Education Alliance, as well as from
Money Management Executive, in conjunction with the

National Investment Company Service Association.

In Europe, Canada Life has operations in the United
Kingdom, Isle of Man, Ireland and Germany. As a result
of its continued focus on credit and expense controls,
Great-West Lifeco’'s European operations werein a
strong position coming into 2012, and this focus was

maintained throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS conTinuED

IGM FINANCIAL

IGM Financial and its operating companies experienced

anincrease in total assets under managementin 2012.

Investors Group and Mackenzie Investments, the
company’s principal businesses, continued to generate
business growth through product innovation, pricing
enhancements, additional investment management
resourcesand overall resource management throughout

theyear.

Operating earnings available to common shareholders,
excluding otheritems, for the year ended December 31,
2012, were $750 million or $2.94 per share, compared

with $833 million or $3.22 per share in 2011,

Net earnings available to common shareholders for

the year ended December 31, 2012, were $762 million or
$§2.99 per share, compared with $901 million or $3.48 per
sharein 2011.

Total assets under management at December 31,2012,
totalled $120.7 billion. This compared with total assets
under management of $118.7 billion at December 31, 2011,

anincrease of 1.7 per cent.

Dividends were $2.15 per share for the year, up from

$210in the prior year.
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Investors Group expanded the number of its region
offices by two in 2012, for a total of 108 across Canada.
As at December 31, 2012, there were 4,518 consultants
working with clients to help them understand the
impact of financial market volatility on their long-term

financial planning.

Investors Group continued to respond to the complex
financial needs of its clients by delivering a diverse range
of products and services in the context of personalized
financial advice. In May 2012, Investors Group announced
enhanced pricing for the majority of its funds effective
June 30, 2012, and the addition of alternative high net
worth series for households investing $500,000 or more

with the company.

Investors Group mutual fund assets under management
were $60.6 billion at the end of 2012, compared with
$57.7 billion at December 31, 201. Mutual fund sales were
$5.8 billion, compared with mutual fund sales in 201 of
$6.0 billion. The redemption rate on long-term mutual
funds was10.0 per cent at December 31, 2012, compared
to 8.8 per cent at December 31, 2011. Net redemptions of

mutual funds in 2012 were $724 million.

Mackenzie maintained its focus on delivering consistent
long-term investment performance, while emphasizing

product innovation and communication with advisors



and investors. Mackenzie's relationship with financial

advisors s strengthened by the work it does through
investor and advisor education programs, and through
its commitment to focusing on active investment
management strategies. During 2012, Mackenzie
broadened its investment choices for Canadians by
adding several new funds and more options, including

tax-deferred solutions.

Mackenzie's total assets under management

were $61.5 billion at the end of 2012, compared with
$61.7 billion at December 31, 2011. Total sales were
$10.0 billion, compared with the prioryear level

of $10.3 billion. Total net redemptions for the year

were $4.2 billion, compared with $2.5 billion in 2011.

IGM Financial continues to build its business through
its extensive network of distribution opportunities

delivering high-quality advice and innovative, flexible

solutions for investors. Its investmentin technology and
operations continues to help it manage its resources

effectively and develop long-term growth inits business.

PARGESA

Through the Belgian holding company Groupe Bruxelles
Lambert (GBL), the Pargesa group holds significant
positionsin sixlarge companies based in Europe:
Lafarge, which produces cement and building materials;
Imerys, a producer of industrial minerals; Total, in the oil
and gasindustry; GDF Suez, in electricity and gas; Suez
Environnement, in water and waste management; and
Pernod Ricard, a leading producer of wines and spirits.
The Pargesa group's strategy is to establish a limited
number of substantial interests in which it can acquire a

position of control or significant influence.
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS conTinuED

Pargesa’s operating earnings stood at SF359 million

in 2012, compared with SF343 million in 2011, an increase
of 4.7 per cent. Although Imerys'income increased by
2.3 percentin2012, its contribution at the Pargesa level
declined due to the latter's decreased economic interest
in this holding following the sale of Pargesa’s share of
Imerys to GBL. Lafarge reported operating earnings

of €772 million in 2012, compared with €453 million
in2011. Including non-operating income consisting
primarily of gains on the disposal by GBL of its interestin
Arkema and the partial disposal by GBLof its interestin
Pernod Ricard, and of an impairment charge recorded by
GBLonitsinvestmentin GDF Suez, Pargesa’s netincome

in 2012 was SF418 million.

At the end of December 2012, Pargesa’s adjusted net
assetvalue was SF7.6 billion. This represents a value of
SF90.4 per Pargesa share, compared with SF79.0 at the

end of 2011, an increase of 14.4 per cent.

At the next annual meeting of shareholders on May 8,
2013, Pargesa’s board of directors is expected to propose
paying a stable dividend of SF2.57 per bearer share, fora

total distribution of SF217.5 million.
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ACQUISITION OF IRISH LIFE

On February19, 2013, Great-West Lifeco announced that
ithad reached an agreement with the Government of
Ireland to acquire all of the shares of Irish Life Group
Limited for $1.75 billion (€1.3 billion). Established in

1939, Irish Lifeis the largest life and pensions group

and investment manager in Ireland. The acquisition is
transformational for the Lifeco companies in Ireland.
With this single transaction, Lifeco achieves the leading
positionin lifeinsurance, pensions and investment
management, which is consistent with Lifeco’s global
business strategy of developing significant market

positionsin the sectors where the company participates.

Great-West Lifeco also announced a $1.25 billion offering
of subscription receipts exchangeable into common
shares by way of a $650 million bought deal public
offering as well as concurrent private placements

of subscription receipts to Power Financial and IGM

Financial at the same price as the public offering.



On March 12, 2013, Power Financial and IGM Financial

purchased $550 million and $50 million, respectively, of

Lifeco subscription receipts. Each subscription receipt
entitles the holder to receive one common share of
Great-West Lifeco upon closing of the acquisition of
Irish Life, without any action on the part of the holder

and without payment of additional consideration.

Should the subscription receipts be converted into
common shares of Great-West Lifeco, Power Financial
will hold, directly and indirectly, a 69.4% economic

interestin Lifeco.

The Corporation also announced on February 28,
2013, the closing of an offering of $300 million of
First Preferred Shares. Proceeds from the issue
were used to acquire the subscription receipts

of Great-West Lifeco referred to above.

THE VALUE OF FINANCIAL ADVICE

Most people who invest know and appreciate the
benefits of working with a financial advisor. In repeated
surveys since 2006, the Investment Funds Institute of
Canada has found approximately 85 per cent of mutual
fund investors prefer to invest through an advisor, and

rate highly theiradvisor's support.

Research shows that Canadians who rely on advice
to guide their financial decisions are wealthier, more
confident and better prepared for the financial
implications of marriage, a new child, their children’s

education, retirement and other life events.

A groundbreaking 2012 study from the Montréal-
based Center for Interuniversity Research and Analysis

on Organizations (CIRANO) shows that advisors
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS conTinuED

positively affect the level of wealth of Canadian
households. The research conducted by Professor
Claude Montmarqguette and Nathalie Viennot-

Briot uses econometric modelling techniques on

avery robust sample of Canadian households to
demonstrate convincingly that financial advisors
contribute significantly to the accumulation of financial
wealth. After controlling for a host of socio-economic,
demographic, and attitudinal variables that can affect
wealth, theresearch indicates that advised households
have, on average, twice the level of financial assets
when compared to their non-advised counterparts,
and that this additional wealth is largely attributed to a

greater savings discipline.

The CIRANO research further shows that having advice
positively impacts retirement readiness and isan
important contributor to levels of trust, satisfaction,
and confidencein financial advisors, which are strong

indicators of the value of advice.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the May 2013 Annual Meeting, shareholders will be asked

toelect Mr.J. David A. Jackson to the Board.

Mr. Jackson retired as a Partner of the law firm Blake,
Cassels & Graydon LLPin 2012, and currently serves as
Senior Counsel to the firm, providing advice primarily
in the areas of mergers and acquisitions and corporate
governance. He was the Chairman of Blakes from 1995
to2001. He is recognized as a leading practitionerin
the areas of mergers and acquisitions, corporate
finance and corporate governance by numerous
independent assessment organizations. Mr. Jackson
served as a Director of Investors Group Inc. from1991to
2001, and has also served as a director of a number of
publicand private organizations. Mr. Jackson has also
been nominated for election to the Boards of Power

Corporation and Great-West Lifeco.

Mr. T. Timothy Ryan, Jr. will not stand for re-election
to the Board at the May 2013 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Mr. Ryan joined the Board of Power
Financial Corporation in 201. Mr. Ryan was recently

appointed Managing Director, Global Head of Regulatory



Strategy and Policy for JPMorgan Chase & Co., a leading
global financial services firm. He was previously the
Presidentand Chief Executive Officer of SIFMA, the
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association,
aleading trade association representing global financial
market participants. Mr. Ryan hasalso served asa
Director of Power Corporation, where he chaired the
Audit Committee of the Board, as well as Great-West
Lifeco and many of its subsidiaries. Mr. Ryan brought
to the Boards of our group companies the benefit of
his broad international involvement in the financial

servicesindustry.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Aswe enter 2013, steady if unspectacular progressin
the U.S. economy together with calmerand more

liquid markets in Europe have contributed to increased

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

optimism. Individual investors have started to deploy
fundsinto higher-return asset classes. These positive
signs are tempered with the knowledge that many

global economicissues will take time to resolve.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries will continue to
invest and build for future growth based upon a long-
term optimistic view of the future coupled with an acute

awareness of the possible risk of interim setbacks.

Above all, we will continue to manage our affairs
prudently so as to ensure we have the financial strength
to honour the commitments we make to our various

stakeholders over the long term.

Your Directors wish to express gratitude on behalf of
the shareholders for the important contribution of
the management and employees of our Corporation
and its associated companies to the successful results
achieved in 2012 in an improving but still challenging

operating environment.

Signed, Signed, Signed,
R.Jeffrey Orr Paul Desmarais, Jr.,, 0.C., 0.Q. André Desmarais, 0.Cc., 0.Q.
Presidentand Co-Chairman of the Board Co-Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Officer

March 13, 2013
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RESPONSIBLE
MANAGEMENT

OVERSIGHT Our dedication

to responsible managementis
predicated on a strong foundation
of integrity and ethical conduct
which we view as integral to

our business.

Our CSR Statementand Code of Ethics
reflect our responsible management
philosophy. During the past year, we
developed a CSR Statement to provide
greater clarity on our commitment
tointernational humanrights, the
environment, and responsible
investments. Our CSR Statement was
adopted by our Board of Directorsin
March, 2012.

We also formalized our CSR governance
structure. At the Board level, the
Governance and Nominating Committee
has been tasked with monitoring the
implementation of the Corporation’s
strategy and initiatives with respect to
corporate social responsibility; its charter
has been amended accordingly. At the
executive level, our CSR lead continued
to oversee our efforts to formalize our
CSR practices.
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Responsible management lies at the heart of our business, driving
the long-term performance and profitability of the Corporation. Itis
this mindset that has enabled us to build a resilient and sustainable
business, through our role as an investor, employer and contributor
to the communities where we operate. Through all our endeavours,
we recognize the breadth of our corporate responsibility and hold in

earnest the privilege to play our part.

In the course of 2012, we strengthened our responsible management
commitments and worked together with our portfolio companies to
align our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts. Our progress

over the past yearis best viewed through the five pillars under which

we have grouped our related activities.

Throughout the year, we continued
to work with our group companies
to support the development of their
CSR programs.

PEOPLE We provide a work
environment where the people
in our group of companies feel
connected and supported.

We strive to create positive working
relationships for our employees and to
provide them with opportunities for
growth and community involvement.
Over the pastyear, we continued to
encourage and support our employeesin
becoming involved in their communities
by volunteering their time and talents
toworthy causes. Because of their
experience and expertise, many officers
and employees of the Corporation
areasked tositon the boards of the
non-profit organizations for which

they volunteer. This strengthens these
organizationsand, in turn, providesa
further sense of community belonging to
our officersand employees.

SOCIETY We contribute to
society by making sound business
investments and by supporting

the communities where we are
established, generating both social
and economic value.

In terms of making sound investments,
ouractive ownership approach involves
considering financial, environmental,
socialand governancefactors,

when relevant.

With the majority of our investmentsin
financial services, we positively impact
society through products and services
thatenable our customers to achieve
financial security and generate wealth.
Ourfinancial services companies offer
lifeand healthinsurance, retirement
savings programs and a broad range of
investmentvehicles, including socially
responsible investment funds.

Ourapproach to community investment
consists of providing support to
organizations that are addressing issues
intheareas of health, education, arts and
culture, community development and



the environment. Through our parent
company, Power Corporation, and our
subsidiaries we make contributions to
numerous organizations through both
corporate donationsand investments,
and our support of employee
volunteering initiatives.

As business entrepreneurs, we especially
value and support therole that social
entrepreneurs play in helping to build
strong and connected communities,
guiding us to seek partnerships and
investments that have alasting
impact on our communities. Social
entrepreneursare driven to champion
their cause and devote their lives to

the service of others. They use their
knowledge and experience to forge
changein theircommunitiesand to bring
comfortand healing to those in need. We
arealso drawn to smallerinitiatives that
deliver broad social benefit because of
theirentrepreneurial, innovative spirit.

Overtheyears, our substantial
commitment to philanthropy across

the country has earned companiesin
ourgroup the designation of “Caring
Company”from Imagine Canada.

ENVIRONMENT We continue
our commitment to operating our
business in an environmentally
responsible manner.

Asa holding company, our direct
environmental impactis limited to the
operations of our head office, which
hasno production or manufacturing
functions. Despite this limited impact,
we work diligently to reduce our
environmental footprintand we support
and encourage our group companiesin
their environmental efforts.

In2012, we stepped up our environmental
commitment by establishing a three-year
carbon reduction target. In addition to
our resource conservation initiatives, we
promote leading energy efficiency and
waste management practicesat our
head office.

COLLABORATION AND
TRANSPARENCY We are

committed to responsible disclosure.

We recognize that our CSR performance
attracts theinterest of a number of
stakeholders. We continue to work with
these stakeholders on a collaborative
basis to provide meaningful information
inatransparent manner.

Inthe pastyear, we expanded our CSR
communications. Ina first for the
Corporation, we reported on our carbon
footprintand climate change strategies
to the Carbon Disclosure Project.

We ranked favourably among

Canadian corporations.

We continue to proactively engage with
our stakeholders to ensure they are kept
abreast of our CSRinitiatives. We also
expanded our CSR disclosure on our
corporate website.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION
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GREAT-WEST
LIFECO

Great-West Lifeco Inc. is an international financial services holding
company with interests in life insurance, health insurance, retirement
and investment services, asset management and reinsurance
businesses. Great-West Lifeco has operations in Canada, the United
States, Europe and Asia through The Great-West Life Assurance
Company, London Life Insurance Company, The Canada Life
Assurance Company, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company
and Putnam Investments, LLC. Great-West Lifeco and its companies

have $546 billion in assets under administration.

Great-West Lifeco’s financial condition continues to bevery ~ The Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus

solid asaresult of its continued strong performancein2012.  Requirements (MCCSR) ratio for Great-West Life was
The company delivered superior results compared to peer 207 per cent on a consolidated basis at December 31, 2012.
companiesinitsindustry due to strong organic growth of This measure of capital strength remains at the upper end
premiums and deposits, and solid investment performance,  of Great-West Lifeco's target operating range.

despite challenging market conditions. At December 31,2012, Great-West Lifeco held cash and cash

Great-West Lifeco's companies continue to benefit from equivalents of approximately $0.5 billion, which includes

prudent and conservative investment policies and practices — anintercompany loan repaid on January15, 2013. As this

with respect to the management of their consolidated
assets. Inaddition, Great-West Lifeco's conservative
product underwriting standards and disciplined approach
to introducing new products have proved beneficial

for the company and its subsidiaries over the long term.
Also, Great-West Lifeco's approach to asset/liability
management has minimized its exposure to interest rate
movements. In Canada, the company continued to offer
segregated fund guaranteesin a prudent and disciplined
manner, thereby limiting its risk exposure. As a result,
Great-West Lifeco’s balance sheet is one of the strongestin

theindustry.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

cashis held at Great-West Lifeco, it is not reflected in the
regulatory capital ratios of its operating subsidiaries.
Itaugments the company's capital and liquidity position,
thereby enhancing its capability to take advantage of

market opportunities.



CANADA

GREAT-WEST LIFE
LONDON LIFE
CANADA LIFE

Great-West Life is a leading Canadian insurer, with interests in life
insurance, health insurance, investment, savings and retirement

income and reinsurance businesses, primarily in Canada and Europe.

In Canada, Great-West Life and its subsidiaries, London Life and

Canada Life, offer a broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan

solutions and serve the financial security needs of more than

12 million people.

GREAT-WEST LIFE

Great-West Life's products include a wide range of
investment, savings and retirementincome plans and
payout annuities, as well as life, disability, critical illness
and health insurance for individuals and families. These
products and services are distributed through a diverse
network of financial security advisors and brokers
associated with Great-West Life; financial security advisors
associated with London Life's Freedom 55 Financial
division and the Wealth & Estate Planning Group; and the
distribution channels Canada Life supports, including
independent advisors associated with managing

general agencies, as well as national accounts, including

Investors Group.

Forlarge and small businesses and organizations, Great-
West Life offers a variety of group benefit plan solutions
featuring options such as life, health care, dental care,
critical illness, disability, wellness, and international
benefits, plus convenient online services. The company also
offers group retirement and savings plans that are tailored

to the unique needs of businesses and organizations.

These products and services are distributed through
financial security advisors associated with our companies,

aswellasindependent advisors, brokers and consultants.

In 2012, Great-West Life and its subsidiaries in Canada
and Europe continued to deliver strong performance.
Our conservative investment practices and disciplined
approach to introducing new products and managing
expenses have served us well over the long term and

position us well for organic growth.

In Canada, Great-West Life, together with London Life
and Canada Life, maintained leading market positionsin
ourindividual and group businesses. This was achieved by
focusing on three broad goalsin 2012: improving products
and services for clients and advisors, maintaining strong
financial discipline, and improving tools, information and

processes to enable greater productivity and effectiveness.

Group retirement services business recorded strong
growth, group insurance business continued to experience
excellent persistency, and individual segregated fund and

mutual fund businesses maintained positive net cash flows.
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LONDON LIFE

London Life offers financial security advice and planning
through its more than 3,400-member Freedom 55 Financial
division. Freedom 55 Financial offers London Life's own
brand of investments, savings and retirement income,
annuities, life insurance and mortgage products. Within
Freedom 55 Financial, the Wealth & Estate Planning Group
isa specialized segment of advisors focused on meeting the

complex needs of affluent Canadians.

In addition, financial security advisors associated with
London Life offer a broad range of financial products from
otherfinancial institutions. A London Life subsidiary,
Quadrus Investment Services Ltd., offers 44 exclusive

mutual funds under the Quadrus Group of Funds™ brand.

The relationship the company has with advisors supports
the very strong persistency of its business, provides a
strategic advantage and contributes to strong market

share across multiple lines of business.

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

CANADA LIFE

In Canada, Canada Life offers a broad range of insurance
and wealth management products and services for
individuals, families and business owners from coast to
coast. These products include investments, savings and
retirementincome, annuities, life, disability and critical

illness insurance.

Canada Life, together with Great-West Life, is a leading
provider of individual disability and critical illness insurance

in Canada.

Canada Lifeis the leading provider of creditorinsurance
in Canada for mortgages, loans, credit cards, lines of
creditand leases through leading financial institutions,

automobile dealerships and other lending institutions.



EUROPE

CANADA LIFE

Canada Life in Europe provides a broad range of insurance and wealth

management products, including: payout annuities, investments

and group insurance in the United Kingdom; individual insurance and

savings, as wellas pension products in Ireland; and pensions, critical

illness and disability insurance in Germany.

Asaresult of a continued focus on credit and expense
controls, Canada Life's European operations werein
a strong position coming into 2012, and this focus was

maintained throughout the year.

Inthe U.K., the company faces a period of change with
legislation affecting distribution and Europe-wide
legislation on gender equality in pricing, although the
proposed implementation of the Solvency Il rules has been
delayed. Annuity business premium volumes grew but sales
of U.K.-and Isle of Man-originated wealth management

products were challenged by difficult market conditions.

Inthe company’s group insurance business, in force
premium levels were maintained although general

economic conditions adversely affected sales.

InIreland, sales to intermediaries performed well in 2012
due to thelaunch of an award- winning Guaranteed
Minimum Withdrawal Benefit (GMWB) product, a
widening of fund offerings and strong investment
performance on core fund offerings. However, salesin
the direct sales channel were impacted by lower agent

numbers and a furtherfall in the new business market.

In Germany, Canada Lifeis one of the leading insurers for
unit-linked products in the independent broker segment.
Its income protection and retirement savings products
were enhanced, and its serious illness and GMWB products
retained their status as the leading productsin their

categoriesina poll of insurance intermediaries.

Arecent survey of intermediaries indicated improved
ratings for Canada Life in the targeted areas of products,

broker supportand technology.

The sales environment was challenging in early 2012 but

sales grew in the last few months of the year.

Throughits Reinsurance Division, Canada Lifeis a leading
provider of traditional mortality, structured and longevity
reinsurance solutions for life insurers in the United States

andininternational markets.

Strong results for reinsurance in 2012 reflect continued
robust demand for structured life reinsurance in the U.S.
and longevity reinsurance in Europe. Canada Life continues
to monitor the global reinsurance markets for potential

business opportunities.
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UNITED STATES

GREAT-WEST
FINANCIAL

Great-West Financial® is a leading provider of employer-sponsored

retirement savings plans. It offers fund management, investment

and advisory services as well as record-keeping and administrative

services for other retirement plan providers. Great-West Financial

also offers business-owned life insurance, executive benefits products,

individual retirement accounts, life insurance and annuities. It markets

its products and services nationwide through its sales force and

distribution partners.

In2012, Great-West Life & Annuity introduced a single brand
identity, Great-West Financial, across all lines of business.
The clarity of one brand with a focused message will build
name recognition and create stronger brand equity to

augment growth.

Diverse products, expanded partnerships and enhanced

tools also contributed to solid growth. Business-owned life
insurance salesrose 20 per cent, 401(k) plan sales increased
14 per cent, and single premium life insurance sales jumped

56 per cent over 2011

The nine business initiatives that make up an aggressive
five-year strategic plan were implemented. The projects
include strategies to increase sales, improve retention and

boost assets under management.
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Great-West Financial launched two retail retirement
income products, securing agreements with five
distribution partners. Individual retirement account sales
grew 50 per centas part of an effort to provide enhanced
distribution education services to terminated group

plan participants. Aninitiative to increase participant
account balances garnered US$916 millionin roll-ins to

existing plans.

New tools equipped 401(k) sales employees to increase
their productivity and enhance their effectiveness with
advisors, third-party administrators and prospects. To
improve clients' experience and ultimately increase
retention, service functions were re-engineered to speed
responsiveness. The rollout of a new client relationship

management system also advanced the client experience.

Managed account program assets rose 28 per cent. The
Great-West Lifetime Funds grew 89 per cent to become the

14th largest U.S. target date fund offering.



UNITED STATES > EUROPE > ASIA

PUTNAM
INVESTMENTS

Putnam Investments is a global asset manager and retirement plan

provider, offering investment management services across a range of

equity, fixed income, global asset allocation and alternative strategies,

including absolute return, risk parity and hedge funds, for individuals

and institutions. Putnam distributes those services largely through

intermediaries and its own institutional sales force via its offices and

strategic alliances in North America, Europe, and Asia, including

through its recently opened Beijing office—its firstin China.

Putnam’s assets under management ended 2012 at

Us$128 billion, reflecting favorable market conditions
aswell as positive sales momentum at PanAgora Asset
Management, Inc., Putnam’s quantitative institutional
manager, and in several key retail product offerings, such as
the Putnam Spectrum Funds, Short Duration Income Fund,

and Dynamic Risk Allocation Fund.

Putnam made substantial progress this year toward

its goal of delivering superior investment performance
through innovative product offerings, while maintaining
award-winning customer service. The firm was named
the top U.S. fund family by Barron’s for 2012 performance
across asset classes, marking the second time in four
yearsitachieved the milestone. In addition, four Putnam
fixed-income funds received Lipper Fund Awards for long-
term performance excellence. Putnam’s financial advisor
site was ranked number one by leading consulting firm
kasina, and Putnam’s newly launched iPad app—the fund
analysis tool, FundVisualizer—received top honours from

the Mutual Fund Education Alliance. Putnam's retirement

service offering was named “Best in Class” by plan sponsors
inan Anova Consulting Group study, and the firm won

the DALBAR Service Award for the 23rd consecutive

year for providing the highest levels of service to mutual

fund shareholders.

Inthe retirement area, Putnam announced the
introduction of a personalized health cost estimator within
itsindustry-leading Lifetime Income Analysis Tool and saw
significant growth in new retirement plans on its record-
keeping platform as well as strong investment-only sales

during the year.

Putnam also launched a national marketing and
advertising campaign and announced several fund
introductions for2013. The content-driven multimedia
campaign, “This is Putnam today,” positions Putnam as
aninnovative company with solutions for the challenges
investors face in today’'s markets. The firm's six planned
upcoming fund launchesinclude funds designed to pursue
low-volatility equity strategies, short-term municipal

income, and global dividends.
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IGM
FINANCIAL

IGM Financial is one of Canada’s premier personal financial services

companies, and one of the country’s largest managers and distributors

of mutual funds and other managed asset products, with over

$120 billion in total assets under management at December 31, 2012.

The company serves the financial needs of Canadians through multiple

distinct businesses, including Investors Group, Mackenzie Investments

and Investment Planning Counsel.

IGM Financial and its operating companies experienced

anincrease in total assets under managementin 2012.

Investors Group and Mackenzie Investments, the
company’s principal businesses, continued to generate
business growth through product innovation, pricing
enhancements, additional investment management
resources and overall resource management throughout

theyear.

The company is well diversified through its multiple
distribution channels, product types, investment
management units and fund brands. Assets under
management are diversified by country of investment,

industry sector, security type and management style.

A primary theme in the company's business approach is
to support financial advisors as they work with clients to
planforand achieve their financial goals. Theimportance
of financial advice has become clearer throughout the
financial industry in the last few years based on emerging
research and continued publicinterest in enhanced

financial literacy.
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The scope of the company's business and its association
with other members of the Power Financial Corporation
group of companies have placed IGM Financial in a position
of leadership and strength in the financial services industry.
Together, these elements will enable IGM Financial to
create long-term value forits clients, consultants, advisors,

employees and shareholders over time.

IGM Financial has a long-standing commitment to
responsible management, which it believes is fundamental
tolong-term profitability and value creation. The company
conducts its businessinaway that emphasizes good
governance, operational integrity, ethical practices

and respect for the environment. Fundamental to the
company's activitiesisits belief that advancing the financial
literacy and financial security of Canadians is important

tosociety.

The company has along-standing practice of corporate
giving through a range of philanthropic activities at each
of IGM Financial's operating companies. Its people are
encouraged to volunteerin the community, on industry

committees and through professional associations.



In keeping with its commitment to good governance and
ethical dealing, the company has adopted an extensive
written code of conduct that governs its directors, officers

and employees.

During 2012, IGM Financial introduced formal
responsibilities for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities as it works to enhance CSR disclosures and
coordinate such activities across its companies and with

its parent and sister companies.

The Investors Group consultant network continued to
expand by opening two new region offices during 2012.

The company now has108 region offices across Canada.
There were 4,518 consultants at December 31, 2012. Investors
Group continued to respond to the complex financial needs
of its clients by delivering a diverse range of products and
services in the context of personalized financial advice.

The company enhanced pricing for the majority of its funds
effective June 30, 2012, and added alternative high net

worth series for households investing $500,000 or more.

Mackenzie maintained its focus on delivering consistent

long-term investment performance, while emphasizing
product innovation and communication with advisors and
investors. Mackenzie's relationship with financial advisors
is strengthened by the work it does through investorand
advisor education programs, and through its commitment
tofocusing on active investment management strategies.
During 2012, Mackenzie broadened its investment choices
for Canadians by adding several new funds and more

options, including tax-deferred solutions.

IGM Financial continues to build its business through its
extensive network of distribution opportunities delivering
high-quality advice and innovative, flexible solutions for
investors. The company’s investment in technology and
operations continues to help it manage its resources

effectively and develop long-term growth in its business.
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INVESTORS
GROUP

Investors Group is a national leader in delivering personalized financial

solutions through a network of over 4,500 consultants to nearly one

million Canadians. Investors Group is committed to comprehensive

planning and offers an exclusive family of mutual funds and other

investment vehicles along with a wide range of insurance, securities,

mortgage and other financial services.

In 2012, Investors Group continued to make progress in
anumber of key areas. Enhanced product and pricing
opportunities combined with more stable equity markets
in Canada and around the world increased investor and
consultant confidence. To provide more concentrated focus
on theinvestment management of each fund the company
offers, it recruited several additional experienced portfolio

managers and analysts throughout 2012.

The company's commitment to training and support
isintegral to consultants'ability to deliver effective
financial advice. Investors Group's culture provides
consultants with an entrepreneurial environment and
unique support structure to deliver personalized service
and knowledgeable advice to clients. Clients enhance
theirfinancial literacy and gain financial confidence

as consultants assist them with the development and

deployment of their financial plans.
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Investors Group is committed to the ongoing evolution and
expansion of its product and service offering. In early 2012,
the company implemented the mergers of eight funds with
similarinvestment mandates. In May 2012, Investors Group
announced a number of changes in the pricing of its mutual
funds and product enhancements designed to expand
services toits clients. The changes involved reducing
management fees on approximately two thirds of the
company's funds, representing two thirds of its managed
assets. Moreover, itintroduced a new series of its mutual
funds for clients with household account balances in excess

of $500,000.

Investors Group continues to focus onits strengths

as building blocks for the future. In 2012, the ongoing
recruitment and retention of consultants, together

with the active engagement of over1,800 employees,

the continual refinement of financial planning and the
expansion of product and service offerings demonstrate
the company's commitment to meet the evolving financial

needs of Canadians.



MACKENZIE
INVESTMENTS

Mackenzie Investments is recognized as one of Canada’'s premier

investment managers and provides investment advisory and related

services through multiple distribution channels focused on the provision

of financial advice. Mackenzie offers mutual funds, pooled funds,

segregated accounts and separate accounts for retail and institutional

investors.

In 2012, Mackenzie focused on business growth, investment

excellence and the client experience.

Mackenzie merged, reorganized and closed several funds
to eliminate duplication and increase cost-effectiveness of
certain funds, and to improve the overall relevance of its
product shelf as investors' needs continue to evolve. The
company added a low-volatility component to Symmetry
Portfolios to help manage risk, grow capital and smooth

outreturns.

A continued focus on risk management led to the hiring
of a team that provides enhanced analytical tools and

specialized reporting toits portfolio managers.

Mackenzie established a company-wide Client Experience
initiative to sustainand build its culture of service
excellence, making it easier and more satisfying for advisors

to work with the company.

The company also sold Winfund Software Corp. to allow
it tofocusits energy and resources on its core business of

investment management.

In 2012, Mackenzie relaunched its institutional brand,
building out 13 proprietary mandates, adding staff,
investing in technology resources and establishinga U.S.

presence to lay the groundwork for future growth.

The strength of Mackenzie's retail distribution network is
based onits long-standing and expanding relationships
with financial advisors, consultants and representatives
across the breadth of its distribution channels. These
relationships allow the company’s products to be efficiently
distributed through retail brokers, financial advisors,
insurance agents, banks, pension consulting firmsand
financial institutions, giving the company one of the

broadest retail distribution platformsin Canada.

Mackenzie remains dedicated to providing clients
with high-quality, innovative investment solutions
that meet their needs and strives to maintain strong
long-term investment performance across its multiple

product offerings.
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PARG ESA The Pargesa group holds significant positions in six large companies

GROUP based in Europe: Imerys (industrial minerals), Lafarge (cement,
aggregates and concrete), Total (oil and gas), GDF Suez (electricity
and gas), Suez Environnement (water and waste management) and
Pernod Ricard (wines and spirits).

Power Financial, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Power
Financial Europe B.V., and the Frere family group of Belgium each hold
a 50 per cent interest in Parjointco, a Netherlands-based company.
Parjointco’s principal holding is a 55.6 per cent equity interest (75.4 per
cent of the voting rights) in Pargesa Holding SA, the Pargesa group's

parent company based in Geneva, Switzerland.

The Pargesa group's strategy is to establish a limited > In December2012, the Power group and the Frere family
number of substantial interests in which it can acquire a group announced that the term of the agreementin
position of control or significant influence. effect since1990 within Parjointco, Pargesa’s controlling

Highlights for fiscal 2012 and early 2013 were as follows: shareholder, had been extended to December 31, 2029,

) o ) with provision for possible further extension.
> InMarch 2012, GBLsold its entire interest in Arkema for

€433 million and 2.3 per cent of Pernod Ricard's capital > Injanuary 2013, GBL completed a placement of €1 billion

for €499 million, leaving GBLa 7.5 per cent stake in in bonds exchangeable for existing GDF Suez shares.

the business. This issue covers almost half the GDF Suez securities

) held by GBL. The bonds have a four-year term and
> InSeptember2012, GBLissued bonds exchangeable for

) ) . bearinterestatarate of 1.25 per cent perannum, the
Suez Environnement shares amounting to €400 million

) ) ) exchange price of the bonds representing a 20 per cent
and covering substantially all of the interest. The bonds

) ) premium to the reference share price.
have a three-year maturity and bearinterest ata rate

0f 0125 per cent per annum, the exchange price of At the level of Pargesa, according to the economic

the bonds representing a 20 per cent premium to the presentation of results, net operating earnings increased

reference share price. 4.7 per cent to SF359 million. Net income, after non-
recurring items, stood at SF418 million in 2012, compared to
a SFG5 million netloss in 2011, affected by a writedown on

theinterest held by GBLin Lafarge.
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IMERYS

Theworld leader in mineral-based specialty solutions
forindustry, Imerys processes, enriches and combines

a unique range of minerals, often mined from its own
deposits. The group occupies leading positions in each of
its sectors: Performance and Filtration Minerals; Materials
and Monolithics; Pigments for Papers and Packaging;

Ceramics, Refractaries, Abrasives and Foundry.

In2012, Imerys pursued its growth in an economic
environment characterized by the intensification of
geographic contrasts that emerged in mid-2011. The
United States regained some momentum but several
European countries slowed significantly, while emerging
markets continued to grow, though ata more moderate
pace. Sales grew by 5.7 per cent to €3.9 billion, current
operating income rose 0.6 per cent to €490 million and net
income, after non-recurring items, was up 6.7 per cent to

€301 million.

LAFARGE

With operations in more than 64 countries, Lafarge, a
world leader in building materials, holds leading positions

in each of its markets: cement, aggregates and concrete.

In2012, the group's sales were up 3.5 per cent to €15.8 billion,
sustained by higher prices across all business linesin
response to production costinflation and growthin
emerging countries, which account foralmost 60 per

cent of Lafarge’s sales. Cost-cutting programs continued,
driving operating income up by 12.0 per cent to €2 .4 billion.
Netincome, after non-recurring items, stood at

€432 million, compared to €593 million in 20T1.
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PARGESA GROUP conTinueD

TOTAL

Created from the successive mergers of Total, PetroFina
and EIf Aquitaine, Total is one of the largest international oil

and gas groups and a major player in chemicals.

In 2012, Total benefited from an oil environment that
was extremely stable for upstream operations, with a
Brent price more or less unchanged at USST/barrel and
an average selling price of gas that saw a modest rise
of 3 per centin comparison with 2011. In downstream
operations, the European refining margin rose sharply
to US$36.0/tonne on average from USS17.4/tonne in 2011
In these conditions, Total's 2012 operating income was
up by 2 per centineurosand down 6 per centin dollars
compared to2011. Net income, after non-recurring items,

stood at€10.7 billion versus €12.3 billion in 2011

GDF SUEZ

GDF Suez, created from the 2008 merger of Suez

and Gaz de France, is an international industrial and
services group active across the entire energy value chain
in electricity and natural gas, upstream to downstream.
GDF Suez developsits core business in electricity and
heat generation, trading, transmission and distribution
of electricity and gas (natural and liquified), and energy

and industrial services.

In 2012, the company recorded sales of €97.0 billion, a

7.0 per centincrease mainly driven by higher gas and
electricity salesin France, increased exploration-
production and LNG sales, and continuing international

development, especially in Latin America and Asia.
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Current operating income was up 6.0 per cent to
€9.5 billion, and net income stood at€1.6 billion versus
€4.0 billion in 201, after essentially €2 billion in European

assetimpairments.
SUEZ ENVIRONNEMENT

Suez Environnement integrates water and waste
management operations that were formerly within

the scope of Suez before it merged with Gaz de France.
In the Water sector, the group designs and manages
drinking water production and distribution systems and
wastewater treatment systems, carries out engineering
work and supplies a wide range of services to industry.
In the Waste sector, Suez Environnement is active

in managing (collecting, sorting, recycling, treating,

recovering and storing) industrial and household waste.

In2012, the group's sales were up 1.8 per cent to €151 billion.
Current operatingincome rose10.3 per cent to€11 billion and
netincome declined 22.3 per cent to €251 million as a result of

non-recurring expenses recorded in the first quarter.

PERNOD RICARD

Since the creation of Pernod Ricard in 1975, significant
organic growth and a series of acquisitions, particularly
Seagram in 2001, Allied Domecq in 2005 and Vin & Sprit
in 2008, have made the company the global co-leaderin

wines and spirits.

In 2011-2012, Pernod Ricard's sales grew 7.5 per cent
to€8.2 billion. Current operating income increased
10.7 per cent to €2.1 billion and net income stood at

€146 million, compared to€1,045 million the previous year.
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All tabularamounts are in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

MARCH 13, 2013

This Annual Reportisintended to provide interested shareholders and others with selected information concerning Power Financial Corporation. For further
information concerning the Corporation, shareholders and otherinterested persons should consult the Corporation’s disclosure documents, suchasits Annual
Information Form and Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). Copies of the Corporation’s continuous disclosure documents can be obtained at
www.sedar.com, on the Corporation’s website at www.powerfinancial.com, or from the office of the Secretary at the addresses shown at the end of this report.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS > Certain statements in this document,
other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements based
on certain assumptions and reflect the Corporation’s current expectations, or
with respect to disclosure regarding the Corporation’s public subsidiaries, reflect
such subsidiaries’ disclosed current expectations. Forward-looking statements
are provided for the purposes of assisting the reader in understanding the
Corporation's financial performance, financial position and cash flows as at
and for the periods ended on certain dates and to present information about
management's current expectationsand plansrelating to thefutureand the reader
is cautioned that such statements may not be appropriate for other purposes.
These statements may include, without limitation, statements regarding the
operations, business, financial condition, expected financial results, performance,
prospects, opportunities, priorities, targets, goals, ongoing objectives, strategies
and outlook of the Corporation andits subsidiaries, as wellas the outlook for North
American and international economies for the current fiscal year and subsequent
periods. Forward-looking statements include statements that are predictive in
nature, depend upon orrefer to future events or conditions, orinclude words such
as‘expects”, “anticipates”, “plans’, “believes’, "estimates”, "seeks”, "intends’, “targets’,
“projects”, “forecasts” or negative versions thereof and other similar expressions,
or future or conditional verbs such as "may”, “will", “should”, "would”and “could".

By its nature, this information is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that
may be general or specificand which give rise to the possibility that expectations,
forecasts, predictions, projections or conclusions will not prove to be accurate,
that assumptions may not be correct and that objectives, strategic goals and
priorities will not be achieved. Avariety of factors, many of which are beyond the
Corporation’s and its subsidiaries' control, affect the operations, performance
andresults of the Corporationand its subsidiaries and their businesses, and could
cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations of estimated
oranticipated events or results. These factors include, but are not limited to: the
impactorunanticipated impact of general economic, political and market factors
in North America and internationally, interest and foreign exchangerates, global
equity and capital markets, management of market liquidity and funding risks,

changes in accounting policies and methods used to report financial condition
(including uncertainties associated with critical accounting assumptions and
estimates), the effect of applying future accounting changes, business competition,
operational and reputational risks, technological change, changesin government
regulation and legislation, changes in tax laws, unexpected judicial or regulatory
proceedings, catastrophic events, the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ ability
to complete strategic transactions, integrate acquisitions and implement
other growth strategies, and the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ success in
anticipating and managing the foregoing factors.

The reader is cautioned to consider these and other factors, uncertainties and
potential events carefully and not to put undue reliance on forward-looking
statements. Information contained in forward-looking statements is based
upon certain material assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or
making a forecastor projection, including management's perceptions of historical
trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other
considerations thatare believed to be appropriate in the circumstances, including
that the list of factors in the previous paragraph, collectively, are not expected
to have a material impact on the Corporation and its subsidiaries. While the
Corporation considers these assumptions to be reasonable based oninformation
currently available to management, they may prove to be incorrect.

Other than as specifically required by applicable Canadian law, the Corporation
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect
events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made, or
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, whether as a result of new
information, future events or results, or otherwise.

Additional information about the risks and uncertainties of the Corporation’s
business and material factors or assumptions on which information contained
in forward-looking statements is based is provided in its disclosure materials,
including its most recent MD&A and Annual Information Form, filed with the
securities regulatory authoritiesin Canada and available at www.sedar.com.

Readers are reminded that a list of the abbreviations used throughout can be found at the beginning of this Annual Report. In addition, the following abbreviations are used
in the Review of Financial Performance and in the Financial Statements and Notes thereto: Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Power Financialand Notes thereto

for the year ended December 31, 2012 (the 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements or the Financial Statements); International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); previous

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (previous Canadian GAAP).
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

OVERVIEW

Power Financial, a subsidiary of Power Corporation, is a holding company
with substantial interests in the financial services sector in Canada, the
United States and Europe, through its controlling interests in Lifeco and
IGM. Power Financial also holds, together with the Frére group of Belgium,
aninterestin Pargesa.

As at December 31, 2012, Power Financial and IGM held 68.2% and 4.0%,
respectively, of Lifeco's common shares, representing approximately 65%
of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Lifeco voting shares. As at
December 31,2012, Power Financialand Great-West Life, a subsidiary of Lifeco,
held 58.7% and 3.7%, respectively, of IGM's common shares.

Power Financial Europe B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Financial,
and the Frére group each hold a 50% interest in Parjointco, which, as at
December 31,2012, held a 55.6% equity interest in Pargesa, representing 75.4%
of thevoting rights of that company. These figures do not reflect the dilution
which could result from the potential conversion of outstanding debentures
convertible into new bearer shares issued by Pargesa in 2006 and 2007.

On December 17, 2012, Power Financial and the Fréere group extended the
term of the agreement governing their strategic partnership in Europe
to December 31, 2029, with provision for possible further extension of
the agreement.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On February 19, 2013, Lifeco announced that it had reached an agreement
with the Government of Ireland to acquire, throughits subsidiary Canada Life
Limited, all of the shares of Irish Life Group Limited (Irish Life) for $1.75 billion
(€1.3billion). Establishedin1939, Irish Life is the largest life and pensions group
andinvestment managerin Ireland.

Lifeco also announced a $1.25 billion offering of subscription receipts
exchangeable into Lifeco common shares by way of a $650 million bought
deal public offering as wellas concurrent private placements of subscription
receipts to Power Financial and IGM for an aggregate amount of $600 million.

On March 12, 2013, Power Financial purchased $550 million of Lifeco
subscription receipts. On that date, IGM also purchased $50 million of
Lifeco subscription receipts. Each subscription receipt entitles the holder to
receive one common share of Lifeco upon closing of the acquisition of Irish
Life, without any action on the part of the holder and without payment of
additional consideration. Power Financialand IGM completed the purchase
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The Pargesa group has holdings in major companies based in Europe. These
investments are held by Pargesa through its affiliated Belgian holding
company, Groupe Bruxelles Lambert. As at December 31, 2012, Pargesa held
a50% equity interestin GBL, representing 52% of the voting rights.

As at December 31, 2012, Pargesa’s portfolio was composed of interests in
various sectors, including primarily mineral-based specialties for industry
through Imerys; cement and other building materials through Lafarge; oil,
gas and alternative energies through Total; electricity, natural gas, and
energy and environmental services through GDF Suez; water and waste
management services through Suez Environnement; and wines and spirits
through Pernod Ricard. On March 14, 2012, GBL sold its interest in Arkema
for proceeds of €433 million and realized a gain of €221 million. On March 15,
2012, GBLsold 6.2 million shares of Pernod Ricard, representing approximately
2.3% of the share capital of Pernod Ricard, for proceeds of €499 million and
a gain of €240 million. Following this transaction, GBL held 7.5% of Pernod
Ricard's share capital.

In addition, Pargesa and GBL have also invested, or committed to invest, in
the area of French private equities, including in equity funds Sagard 1and
Sagard2, whose management company is a subsidiary of Power Corporation.

of subscription receipts by private placements concurrently with the closing
of the bought deal public offering of Lifeco’s subscription receipts. The public
offeringand private placements of subscription receipts are at the same price
of $25.70 per subscription receipt.

Should the subscription receipts be converted into common shares of Lifeco,
Power Financial will hold, directly and indirectly, a 69.4% economic interest
in Lifeco.

Theacquisition is expected to closein July of 2013, and is subject to customary
regulatory approvals, including approvals from the European Commission
under the EU Merger Regulation, and certain closing conditions.

The Corporation also announced, on February 28, 2013, the closing of an
offering 0f12,000,0004.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series S
priced at $25.00 per share for gross proceeds of $300 million. Proceeds from
theissue were used to acquire the subscription receipts of Lifeco referred to
above and to supplement the Corporation’s financial resources.



BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared inaccordance
with IFRS and are presented in Canadian dollars.

INCLUSION OF PARGESA’S RESULTS

The investment in Parjointco is accounted for by Power Financial under
the equity method as the Corporation has joint control over its activities.
Parjointco’'s only investmentisits controlling interestin Pargesa. As described
above, the Pargesa portfolio currently consists primarily of investments in
Imerys, Lafarge, Total, GDF Suez, Suez Environnement and Pernod Ricard,
which are held through GBL, whichis consolidated in Pargesa. Imerys'results
are consolidated in the financial statements of GBL, while the contribution
from Total, GDF Suez, Suez Environnement and Pernod Ricard to GBL's
operating earnings consists of the dividends received from these companies.
GBL accounts for its investment in Lafarge under the equity method, and
consequently, the contribution from Lafarge to GBLs earnings consists of
GBLs share of Lafarge's net earnings.

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES

In analyzing the financial results of the Corporation and consistent with
the presentation in previous years, net earnings attributable to common
shareholders are subdivided in the section “Results of Power Financial
Corporation”below into the following components:

> operating earnings attributable to common shareholders; and

> otheritemsornon-operating earnings, whichinclude the after-taximpact
of any item that management considers to be of a non-recurring nature
or that could make the period-over-period comparison of results from
operations less meaningful, and also include the Corporation’s share of
any such item presented in a comparable manner by its subsidiaries and
jointly controlled corporation. Please also refer to the comments above
related to the inclusion of Pargesa’s results.

Management has used these financial measures for many years in its
presentation and analysis of the financial performance of Power Financial,
and believes that they provide additional meaningful information to readers
in theiranalysis of the results of the Corporation.

Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders and operating
earnings per share are non-IFRS financial measures that do not have a
standard meaning and may not be comparable to similar measures used by
other entities. For a reconciliation of these non-IFRS measures to results
reported in accordance with IFRS, see the "Results of Power Financial
Corporation—Earnings Summary—Condensed Supplementary Statements
of Earnings” section below.

RESULTS OF POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

This section is an overview of the results of Power Financial. In this section,
consistent with past practice, the contributions from Lifeco and IGM, which
represent most of the earnings of Power Financial, are accounted for using

the equity method in order to facilitate the discussion and analysis. This
presentation hasnoimpact on Power Financial's net earningsandisintended
toassist readers in theiranalysis of the results of the Corporation.

EARNINGS SUMMARY —CONDENSED SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
Thefollowing table shows a reconciliation of non-IFRS financial measures used herein for the periods indicated, with thereported resultsinaccordance with
IFRS for net earnings attributable to common shareholders and earnings per share.

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Contribution to operating earnings from subsidiaries and Parjointco
Lifeco 1,335 1,298
IGM 433 480
Pargesa 106 110
1,874 1,888
Results from corporate activities (71) (55)
Dividends on perpetual preferred shares (117) (104)
Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,686 1,729
Otheritems (60) @)
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,626 1,722
Earnings per share (attributable to common shareholders)
—operating earnings 2.38 2.44
—non-operating earnings (other items) (0.08) (0.01)
—netearnings 2.30 2.43
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OPERATING EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE

TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders for the year ended
December 31, 2012 were $1,686 million or $2.38 per share, compared with
$1,729 million or $2.44 per sharein the corresponding period in 2011, a decrease
of 2.5% on a per share basis.

A discussion of the reasons for period-over-period changes in operating
earnings attributable to common shareholders is included in the following
sections.

CONTRIBUTION TO OPERATING EARNINGS FROM
SUBSIDIARIES AND INVESTMENT IN PARJOINTCO

Power Financial's share of operating earnings from its subsidiaries and
investment in Parjointco for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
$1,874 million, compared with $1,888 million in the same period in 2011.

Lifeco's contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings was
$1,335 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared with
$1,298 million for the corresponding period in 2011. Details are as follows:

> Lifecoreported operating earnings attributable tocommon shareholders
of $1,955 million or $2.059 per share for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared with $1,898 million or $2.000 per share in the corresponding
period in 2011, anincrease of 3.0% on a per share basis.

> Lifeco in Canada: operating earnings attributable to common
shareholders for the yearended December 31, 2012 were $1,040 million,
compared with $986 million in the corresponding period in 2011.

> Lifecointhe United States: operating earningsattributable to common
shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $325 million,
compared with $370 million in the corresponding period in 2011.

> Lifeco in Europe: operating earnings attributable to common
shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $618 million,
compared with $562 million in the corresponding period in 2011.
The 2011 results include catastrophe provisions of $84 million relating
to earthquake eventsinJapanand New Zealand.

IGM'’s contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings was $433 million
for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2012, compared with
$480 million for the corresponding period in 2011. Details are as follows:

> |GM reported operating earnings available to common shareholders
of $750 million or $2.94 per share for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012, compared with $833 million or $3.22 per share in the
same period in 2011, a decrease of 8.7% on a per share basis.

> IGM's earnings are primarily dependent on the level of assets under
management. Average daily mutual fund assets for the three-month
periods ended December 31, 2012, September 30, 2012, June 30, 2012
and March 31, 2012 were $102.4 billion, $101.0 billion, $100.9 billion and
$103.6 billion, respectively, compared with $99.6 billion, $103.5 billion,
$109.9 billion and $110.0 billion, in the corresponding three-month periods
of 2011.
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> On May 18, 2012, Investors Group announced a number of changes in
the pricing of its mutual funds and product enhancements designed to
expand its services to clients. Investors Group reduced the fees of many
of its mutual funds when their prospectuses renewed on June 30, 2012.
Thishasresulted inadecreasein management feesin the third and fourth
quarters of 2012.

Pargesa’s contribution to Power Financial's operating earnings was
$106 million for the twelve-month period ended December 31,2012, compared
with a contribution of $110 millionin the corresponding period in 2011. Details
are asfollows:

> Pargesa’s operating earnings for the twelve-month period ended
December 31,2012 were SF359 million, compared with operating earnings
of SF343 million in the corresponding period in 2011.

> Thecontribution of Pargesa to the Corporation's earnings was negatively
affectedin2012as aresult of the weakening of the euro and the Swiss franc
against the Canadian dollar.

> Although the results of Imerys for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012 were 2.3% higher than in the corresponding period in
2011, the contribution from Imerys to Pargesa’s earnings decreased by
8.9% in 2012, due to the decrease in percentage of ownership as a result
of Pargesa having sold its direct interest in Imerys to GBL in April 2011, as
previously disclosed.

> The contribution of Lafarge to Pargesa’s earnings increased from
SF56 million in 2011 to SF102 million in 2012.

\

The Pargesa results for 2011 include an additional quarterly dividend of
SF30 million received from Total as a result of Total paying its dividend on
a quarterly basis starting in 2011.

RESULTS FROM CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Results from corporate activities include interest on cash and cash
equivalents, operating expenses, financing charges, depreciation and
income taxes.

Corporate activities represented a net charge of $71 million in the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2012, compared with a net charge of
$55 million in the corresponding period in 2011.

The variation in the results from corporate activities for the twelve-month
period ended December 31, 2012, compared with the corresponding period
in 2011, was mainly due to the recognitionin the first quarter of 201 of the tax
benefits of loss carry forwards transferred to IGM undera loss consolidation
transaction and higher operating expenses in 2012.



OTHER ITEMS / NON-OPERATING EARNINGS

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Share of Lifeco's otheritems

Litigation provisions (charge) reversal (99) 88
Share of IGM's otheritems

Non-cashincome tax charge 4)

Gainondisposal of M.R.S. Trust Company and M.R.S. Inc. 18

Changesin the status of certainincome taxfilings 15 17
Share of Pargesa’s otheritems

Impairment charges (48) (133)

Gainon partial disposal of Pernod Ricard 46

Gainondisposal of Arkema 43

Other (charge) income (13) 3

(60) 7)

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2012, other items
represented a net charge of $60 million, compared with a net charge of
$7million in the corresponding period in 2011.

Otheritemsin 2012 mainly comprised the following:

> The Corporation'sshare ofachargereported by Lifecorelating toalitigation
provisions adjustment of $99 million, net of tax, in the fourth quarter.

> The Corporation's share of a non-cashincome tax charge recorded by IGM
inthe second quarterresulting fromincreasesin Ontario corporate income
tax rates and their effect on the deferred income tax liability related to
indefinite life intangible assets arising from prior business acquisitions,
aswellastherecordingin the fourth quarter of 2012 of a favourable change
inincome tax provision estimates related to certain tax filings.

> The Corporation’s share of GBL's write-down of its investment in GDF Suez
inthe fourth quarter, representing anamount of $48 million, net of foreign
currency gains recorded by Pargesa and the Corporation. Under IFRS, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an
available-for-sale equity instrument below its costis objective evidence of
impairment. Once impaired, any subsequent decrease in the market price
ofastockisautomatically recognized asanimpairmentloss. Arecovery of
the price of a stock that has been impaired is accounted for through Other
comprehensiveincome. Such recovery willimpact earnings only upon the
disposal of the investment.

> The Corporation’s share of the gains realized by GBLin the first quarteron
the partial disposal of its interestin Pernod Ricard was $46 million and on
the disposal of itsinterest in Arkema was $43 million.

> The Corporation’s share of goodwill impairmentand restructuring charges
recorded by Lafargein the first and second quarters.

Otheritemsin 2011 mainly comprised the following:

> A contribution of $88 million representing the Corporation’s share of
non-operating earnings of Lifeco. In the fourth quarter of 2011, Lifeco
re-evaluated and reduced a litigation provision established in the third
quarter of 2010 which positively impacted Lifeco's common shareholders’
net earnings by $223 million. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2011,
Lifeco established a provision of $99 million after tax in respect of the
settlement of litigation relating to its ownership in a U.S.-based private
equity firm. The netimpact to Lifeco of these two unrelated matters was
$124 million.

> The Corporation's share ofanamountrecorded by IGM in the third quarter
relating to changesin the status of certain income taxfilings as well as the
Corporation's share of the gain on the disposal of M.R.S. Trust Company
and M.R.S. Inc. by IGM.

> The Corporation’s share of GBL's write-down of its investment in Lafarge,
representing an amount of $133 million recorded in the third quarter.

NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE

TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

Net earnings attributable to common shareholders for the twelve-month
period ended December 31,2012 were $1,626 million or $2.30 per share, compared
with $1,722 million or $2.43 per sharein the corresponding period in 2011.

A discussion of period-over-period changes in net earnings attributable to
common shareholdersisincluded in the foregoing sections.
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CONDENSED SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED BASIS EQUITY BASIS
AS AT DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cashand cash equivalents® 3,313 3,385 984 707
Investmentin Parjointco 2,149 2,222 2,149 2,222
Investmentin subsidiaries at equity 11,464 11,147
Investments 123,587 117,042
Funds held by ceding insurers 10,537 9,923
Reinsurance assets 2,064 2,061
Intangible assets 4933 5,023
Goodwill 8,673 8,786
Otherassets 8,389 7,654 102 104
Interest on account of segregated fund policyholders 104,948 96,582
Total assets 268,593 252,678 14,699 14,180
LIABILITIES
Insurance and investment contract liabilities 120,658 115,512
Obligations to securitization entities 4,701 3,827
Debenturesand debtinstruments 5,858 5,888 250 250
Capital trust securities 119 533
Other liabilities 7,937 7,521 420 409
Investmentand insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders 104,948 96,582
Total liabilities 244,221 229,863 670 659
EQUITY
Perpetual preferred shares 2,255 2,005 2,255 2,005
Common shareholders’equity 11,774 11,516 11,774 11,516
Non-controlling interests!?! 10,343 9,294
Total equity 24,372 22,815 14,029 13,521
Total liabilities and equity 268,593 252,678 14,699 14,180

[1] Undertheequity basis presentation, cash equivalentsinclude $625 million ($430 million at December 31, 2011) of fixed income securities with maturities of more
than 90 days. In the 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements, thisamount of cash equivalentsis classified in investments.

[2] Non-controlling interests include the Corporation’s non-controlling interests in the common equity of Lifeco and IGM as well as the participating account surplus
in Lifeco'sinsurance subsidiaries and perpetual preferred shares issued by subsidiaries to third parties.

CONSOLIDATED BASIS Investments at December 31, 2012 were $123.6 billion, a $6.5 billion increase
The consolidated balance sheets include Lifeco’s and IGM's assets and ~ from December 31, 2011, primarily related to Lifeco's activities. See also the
liabilities. discussionin the "Cash Flows" section below.

Total assets of the Corporation increased to $268.6 billion at December 31,  Liabilities increased from $229.9 billion at December 31, 2011 to $244.2 billion

2012, compared with $252.7 billion at December 31, 2011. at December 31, 2012, mainly due to an increase in Lifeco’s insurance and
investment contract liabilities as wellasinvestmentand insurance contracts
on account of segregated fund policyholders.
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ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION
Assets underadministration of Lifeco and IGM are as follows:

AS AT DECEMBER 31

(IN BILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS) 2012 2011
Assets under management of Lifeco
Invested assets 120.0 114.6
Other corporate assets 28.8 27.6
Segregated funds net assets 104.9 96.6
Proprietary mutual funds and institutional net assets 134.6 125.4
388.3 364.2
Assets under management of IGM 120.7 118.7
Total assets under management 509.0 4829
Otherassets underadministration of Lifeco 1575 137.8
Total assets under administration 666.5 620.7

Total assets under administration at December 31, 2012 increased by
$45.8 billion from December 31, 2011:

> Total assets under administration by Lifeco at December 31, 2012
increased by $43.8 billion from December 31, 2011. Segregated funds
increased by approximately $8.3 billion and proprietary mutual funds and
institutional net assets increased by $9.2 billion, primarily as a result of
lower government bond rates and, to a lesser extent, higher U.S. equity
market levels. Otherassets underadministration increased by $19.7 billion,
primarily as a result of new plan sales and improved U.S. equity market
levels. Invested assets increased by approximately $5.4 billion, primarily
duetoassetgrowthandanincreasein bondfairvaluesasaresult of lower
government bond rates.

> |GM's assets under management, at market value, were $120.7 billion at
December 31,2012, compared with $118.7 billion at December 31, 2011. This
increase of $2.0 billion since December 31, 2011 represents market and
income gains of $7.6 billion less net redemptions of $5.6 billion.

EQUITY BASIS

Under the equity basis presentation, Lifeco and IGM are accounted for by
the Corporation using the equity method. This presentation has no impact
on Power Financial’s shareholders’ equity and is intended to assist readers
in isolating the contribution of Lifeco and IGM to the assets and liabilities
of the Corporation.

Cashand cash equivalents held by Power Financial amounted to $984 million
at December 31,2012, compared with $707 million at the end of December 2011
(see "Cash Flows—Equity Basis" section below for details). The amount
of quarterly dividends declared by the Corporation but not yet paid was
$278 million at December 31, 2012. The amount of dividends declared by IGM
butnotyetreceived by the Corporation was $80 million at December 31, 2012.

In managing its own cash and cash equivalents, Power Financial may
hold cash balances or invest in short-term paper or equivalents, as well
as deposits, denominated in foreign currencies and thus be exposed to
fluctuationsinexchangerates. In order to protectagainst such fluctuations,
Power Financial may, from time to time, enter into currency-hedging
transactions with counterparties with high credit ratings. As at December 31,
2012, approximately 90% of the $984 million of cash and cash equivalents
was denominated in Canadian dollars orinforeign currencies with currency
hedgesin place.

The carrying value under the equity method of accounting of Power Financial's investments in Lifeco, IGM and Parjointco increased to $13,613 million at
December 31,2012, compared with $13,369 million at December 31, 2011. This increase is explained as follows:

LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO TOTAL

Carryingvalue, at the beginning 8,476 2,671 2,222 13,369

Share of operating earnings 1,335 433 106 1,874
Share of otheritems (95) 7 28 (60)
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) 67) 2) (100) (169)
Dividends (797) (318) (65) (1,180)
Other, including effect of change in ownership 6) (173) (42) (221)

Carryingvalue, at the end 8,846 2,618 2,149 13,613
37

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT



REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

EQUITY

Common shareholders' equity was $11,774 million at December 31, 2012,
compared with $11,516 million at December 31, 2011. This $258 million increase
was primarily due to:

> AS405millionincreasein retained earnings, reflecting mainly net earnings
of $1,743 million, less dividends declared of $1,109 million and a decrease of
$229 million representing:

> Theeffect onequity of the repurchase by a subsidiary of common shares
atapricein excess of the stated value of such shares and theissuance of
common shares by subsidiaries in the amount of $167 million.

> Anegativeamount of $55 million composed of the Corporation’s share
of retained earnings adjustments in subsidiaries and Parjointco.

> Shareissue expenses of the Corporation foran amount of $7 million.

> Alossof $171million, which represents essentially the Corporation's share
of other comprehensive income of its subsidiaries and Parjointco.

There were 930,400 common sharesissued by the Corporationin the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2012 pursuant to the Corporation’s
Employee Stock Option Plan for proceeds of $20 million.

Asaresult of theabove, the book value per common share of the Corporation
was $16.60 at December 31,2012, compared with $16.26 at the end of 2011.

CASH FLOWS

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

On February 23, 2012, the Corporation issued 10,000,000 5.5% Non-
Cumulative First Preferred Shares Series R for gross proceeds of $250 million.

The Corporation filed a short-form base shelf prospectus dated November 23,
2012, pursuant towhich, fora period of 25 months thereafter, the Corporation
may issue up to anaggregate of $1.5 billion of First Preferred Shares, common
shares and unsecured debt securities, or any combination thereof. This
filing provides the Corporation with the flexibility to access debt and equity
markets on a timely basis to make changes to the Corporation’s capital
structurein response to changesin economic conditions and changes in its
financial condition.

Asnoted under"Recent Developments”, on February 28,2013, the Corporation
issued 12,000,000 4.8% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares Series S for
gross proceeds of $300 million.

OUTSTANDING NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

As of the date hereof, there were 709,104,080 common shares of the
Corporation outstanding, compared with 708,173,680 as at December 31,
2011. Theincreasein the number of outstanding common shares reflects the
exercise of options under the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan. As of
the date hereof, options were outstanding to purchase up to an aggregate
of 8,835,797 common shares of the Corporation under the Corporation’s
Employee Stock Option Plan.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Cash flow from operating activities 5,369 5,505
Cash flow from financing activities (561) (2,406)
Cash flow from investing activities (4,872) (3,1006)
Effect of changesin exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ®) 24
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents—continuing operations (72) 17
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning 3,385 3,656
Less: cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations—beginning of period - (288)
Cash and cash equivalents, at the end—continuing operations 3,313 3,385

On a consolidated basis, cash and cash equivalents from continuing
operations decreased by $72 million in the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012, compared with an increase of $17 million in the
corresponding period of 2011.

Operating activities produced a net inflow of $5,369 million in the twelve-
month period ended December 31, 2012, compared with a net inflow of
$5,505 million in the corresponding period of 2011.

Operating activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2012, compared to the same period in 2011, included:

> Lifeco’s cash flow from operations was a net inflow of $4,722 million,
compared with a netinflow of $4,844 million in the corresponding period
in2011. Cash provided by operating activitiesis used by Lifeco primarily to
pay policy benefits, policyholder dividends and claims, as well as operating
expenses and commissions. Cash flows generated by operations are
mainly invested by Lifeco to support future liability cash requirements.

> Operating activities of IGM which, after payment of commissions,

generated cash flows of $710 million, compared with $777 million in the
corresponding period of 2011.
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Cash flows from financing activities, which include dividends paid on the
common and preferred shares of the Corporation, as well as dividends paid
by subsidiaries to non-controlling interests, resulted in a net outflow of
$561millionin the twelve-month period ended December 31,2012, compared
with a net outflow of $2,406 million in the corresponding period of 2011.

Financing activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2012, compared to the same period in 2011, included:

> Dividends paid by the Corporation and by its subsidiaries to non-
controllinginterests of $1,764 million, compared with $1,735 million in the
corresponding period of 2011.

> Issuance of common shares of the Corporation for an amount of
$20 million, compared with $3 million in the corresponding period in 201,
pursuant to the Corporation’'s Employee Stock Option Plan.

> Issuance of common shares by subsidiaries of the Corporation for an
amount of $44 million, compared with $61 million in the corresponding
period of 2011.

> Issuance of preferred shares by the Corporation for an amount of
$250 million, compared to noissuancein the corresponding period of 2011.



> |ssuance of preferred shares by subsidiaries of the Corporation for an
amount of $650 million, compared to no issuance in the corresponding
period of 2011

> Repurchase for cancellation by subsidiaries of the Corporation of their
common shares foranamount of $215 million, compared with $186 million
in the corresponding period of 2011.

> Norepaymentoflong-term debentures by IGM, compared with repayment
oflong-term debentures of $450 million in the corresponding period of 2011.

> Netinflow of $874 million arising from obligations to securitization entities
at IGM, compared with a net inflow of $319 million in the corresponding
period of 2011.

> Net payment of $2 million by IGM arising from obligations related to
assets sold under repurchase agreements, compared to a net payment
of $408 million in 2011. The net payment in 2011 included the settlement
of $428 millionin obligations related to the sale of $426 million in Canada
Mortgage Bonds, whichis reported ininvesting activities.

CASH FLOWS—EQUITY BASIS

> Redemption of capital trust securities by subsidiaries of Lifeco for
an amount of $409 million, compared with no redemptions in the
corresponding period of 2011.

Cashflowsfrominvestingactivities resultedin a net outflow of $4,872 million
in the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2012, compared with a net
outflow of $3,106 million in the corresponding period of 2011.

Investing activities during the twelve-month period ended December 31,2012,
compared to the same period in 2011, included:

> Investing activities at Lifeco resulted in a net outflow of $3,838 million,
compared with a net outflow of $3,407 million in the corresponding
period of 2011.

> Investing activities at IGM resulted in a net outflow of $839 million,
compared with a net inflow of $229 million in the corresponding period
of 2011.

> Inaddition, the Corporation increased its level of fixed income securities
with maturities of more than 90 days, resulting in a net outflow of
$195 million, compared with a reduction in the corresponding period
of 2011 for a net inflow of $40 million.

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings before dividends on perpetual preferred shares 1,743 1,826
Earnings from subsidiaries and Parjointco not received in cash (634) (776)
Other 10 4
1,119 1,054

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid on common and preferred shares (1,105) (1,095)
Issuance of perpetual preferred shares 250 =
Issuance of common shares 20 3
Other (7) -
(842) (1,092)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of advance to Parjointco - 32
- 32
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 277 6)
Cashand cash equivalents, beginning of period 707 713
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 984 707

Power Financial is a holding company. As such, corporate cash flows from
operations, before payment of dividends on common sharesand on preferred
shares, are principally made up of dividends received from its subsidiaries and
Parjointco and income frominvestments, less operating expenses, financing
charges, and income taxes. The ability of Lifeco and IGM, which are also
holding companies, to generally meet their obligations and pay dividends
depends in particular upon receipt of sufficient funds from their subsidiaries.
The payment of interest and dividends by Lifeco’s principal subsidiaries is
subject to restrictions set out in relevant corporate and insurance laws and
regulations, which require that solvency and capital standards be maintained.
Aswell, the capitalization of Lifeco's principal subsidiaries takes into account
the views expressed by the various credit rating agencies that provide
ratings related to financial strength and other measures relating to those
companies. The payment of dividends by IGM’s principal subsidiariesis subject
to corporatelawsand regulations which require that solvency standards be
maintained. In addition, certain subsidiaries of IGM must also comply with
capitaland liquidity requirements established by regulatory authorities.

Dividends declared by Lifeco and IGM during the twelve-month period ended
December 31,2012 on their common shares amounted to $1.23 and $2.15 per
share, respectively, compared with $1.23 and $2.10 per share, respectively,
in the corresponding period in 2011. In the twelve-month period ended
December 31,2012, the Corporation recorded dividends from Lifeco and IGM of
S115 million, compared with $1,108 million in the corresponding period of 2011.

Pargesa pays its annual dividends in the second quarter. The dividend
paid by Pargesa to Parjointco in 2012 amounted to SF2.57 per bearer share
(SF123 million), compared with SF2.72 (SF125 million) in 2011. The Corporation
received from Parjointco dividends of SFG0 million ($65 million) in 2012 (nil
in 2011). In 2011, Parjointco reimbursed an advance from the Corporation of
$32 million.

In the twelve-month period ended December 31,2012, dividends declared on
the Corporation'scommon sharesamounted to $1.40 per share, the same as
inthe corresponding period of 2011.
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SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to adopt accounting policies and to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the Corporation’s 2012
Consolidated Financial Statements. The major accounting policies and
related critical accounting estimates underlying the Corporation’s 2012
Consolidated Financial Statements are summarized below. In applying
these policies, management makes subjective and complex judgments that
frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain.
Many of these policies are common in the insurance and other financial
services industries; others are specific to the Corporation’s businesses
and operations. The significant accounting estimates and judgments are
as follows:

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Insurance and investment contract liabilities represent the amounts
required, in addition to future premiums and investment income, to
provide for future benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission
and policy administrative expenses forallinsurance and annuity policiesin
force with Lifeco. The Appointed Actuaries of Lifeco's subsidiary companies
are responsible for determining the amount of the liabilities to make
appropriate provisions for Lifeco's obligations to policyholders. The
Appointed Actuaries determine the liabilities forinsurance and investment
contracts using generally accepted actuarial practices, according to
the standards established by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The
valuation uses the Canadian Asset Liability Method. This method involves
the projection of future eventsin order to determine the amount of assets
that must be set aside currently to provide for all future obligations and
involves a significant amount of judgment.

In the computation of insurance contract liabilities, valuation assumptions
have been made regarding rates of mortality/morbidity, investment
returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of policy termination and
rates of utilization of elective policy options or provisions. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future experience together with a
margin for adverse deviation. These margins are necessary to provide
for possibilities of misestimation and/or future deterioration in the best
estimate assumptions and provide reasonable assurance that insurance
contractliabilities coverarange of possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed
periodically for continued appropriateness.

Additional detail regarding these estimates can be found in Note 2 to the
Corporation’s 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Financialand otherinstruments held by the Corporation and its subsidiaries
include portfolioinvestments, various derivative financial instruments, and
debenturesand debtinstruments.

Financial instrument carrying values reflect the prevailing market liquidity
and the liquidity premiums embedded in the market pricing methods the
Corporation relies upon.

Inaccordancewith IFRS7, Financial Instruments—Disclosure, the Corporation’s

assetsand liabilities recorded at fairvalue have been categorized based upon

thefollowing fairvalue hierarchy:

> Level 1inputs utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the
ability toaccess.

> Level2inputs utilize other-than-quoted pricesincluded in Level 1that are
observable forthe asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
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> Level3inputs utilize one or more significantinputs that are not based on
observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if
any, market activity for the asset or liability.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value
hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has
been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fairvalue measurementinits entirety. The Corporation’s assessment of the
significance of a particularinput to the fairvalue measurementinits entirety
requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

Referto Note 26 to the Corporation’s 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements
for disclosure of the Corporation’s financial instruments fair value
measurementas at December 31, 2012.

Fairvalues for bonds classified as fairvalue through profit orloss or available
for sale are determined using quoted market prices. Where prices are not
quotedinanormally active market, fair values are determined by valuation
models primarily using observable market data inputs. Fair values for
bonds and mortgages and other loans, classified as loans and receivables,
are determined by discounting expected future cash flows using current
market rates.

Fairvalues for public stocks are generally determined by the last bid price for
the security from the exchange whereitis principally traded. Fair values for
stocks for which there is no active market are determined by discounting
expected future cash flows based on expected dividends and where market
value cannot be measured reliably, fairvalueis estimated to be equal to cost.
Fair values for investment properties are determined using independent
appraisal services and include management adjustments for material
changes in property cash flows, capital expenditures or general market
conditionsin theinterim period between appraisals.

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS

Investments are reviewed regularly on an individual basis to determine
impairment status. The Corporation considers various factors in the
impairment evaluation process, including, but not limited to, the financial
condition of the issuer, specific adverse conditions affecting an industry
or region, decline in fair value not related to interest rates, bankruptcy or
defaults and delinqguency in payments of interest or principal. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale shares are recorded if the loss is significant or
prolonged and subsequentlossesarerecorded in netearnings. Investments
are deemed to beimpaired when thereis nolonger reasonable assurance of
timely collection of the fullamount of the principal and interest due. The fair
value of an investment is not a definitive indicator of impairment, as it may
besignificantly influenced by otherfactors, including the remaining term to
maturity and liquidity of the asset. However, market price must be takeninto
consideration when evaluating impairment.

Forimpaired mortgages and other loans, and bonds classified as loans and
receivables, provisions are established or impairments recorded to adjust
the carrying value to the net realizable amount. Wherever possible, the fair
value of collateral underlying the loans or observable market priceis used to
establishnetrealizablevalue. Forimpaired available-for-sale bonds, recorded
at fair value, the accumulated loss recorded in investment revaluation
reservesisreclassified to netinvestmentincome. Impairments on available-
for-sale debt instruments are reversed if there is objective evidence that a
permanent recovery has occurred. All gains and losses on bonds classified
or designated as fair value through profit or loss are already recorded in
earnings, thereforeareduction due toimpairment of assets will be recorded
inearnings. Aswell, when determined to be impaired, contractual interestis
no longeraccrued and previous interestaccruals are reversed.



GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT TESTING
Goodwill and intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if eventsindicate thatimpairment may have occurred. Intangible
assets that were previously impaired are reviewed at each reporting date
forevidence of reversal. In the event that certain conditions have been met,
the Corporation would be required to reverse the impairment charge or a
portion thereof.

Goodwill has been allocated to cash generating units (CGU), representing the
lowest level in which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
Goodwillis tested forimpairment by comparing the carrying value of the CGU
groups to therecoverableamount to which the goodwill has been allocated.
Intangible assets are tested forimpairment by comparing the asset's carrying
amount toits recoverableamount.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
isthe higherof the asset's fairvalue less cost to selland valuein use, which is
calculated using the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated.

INCOME TAXES

The Corporation is subject to income tax laws in various jurisdictions. The
Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ operations are complex and related tax
interpretations, regulations and legislation that pertain to its activities are
subject to continual change. Lifeco's primary Canadian operating subsidiaries
aresubject toaregime of specialized rules prescribed under the Income Tax Act
(Canada) for purposes of determining the amount of the companies'income
that will be subject to tax in Canada. Accordingly, the provision for income
taxesrepresentstheapplicable corporation’s management'sinterpretation
of the relevant tax laws and its estimate of current and future income tax
implications of the transactions and events during the period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recorded based on expected future tax rates and
management's assumptions regarding the expected timing of the reversal
of temporary differences. The Corporation has substantial deferred income
taxassets. Therecognition of deferred tax assets depends on management'’s
assumption that future earnings will be sufficient to realize the deferred
benefit. The amount of the asset recorded is based on management's best
estimate of the timing of the reversal of the asset.

The audit and review activities of the Canada Revenue Agency and other
jurisdictions' tax authorities affect the ultimate determination of the
amounts of income taxes payable or receivable, future income tax assets

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The Corporation continuously monitors the potential changes proposed by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and analyzes the effect
that changes in the standards may have on the Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements when they become effective:

EFFECTIVE FOR THE CORPORATION IN 2013

IAS 19—Employee Benefits Effective on January 1, 2013, the Corporation
adopted theamended IAS19, Employee Benefits. The amended IAS 19 includes
requirements for the measurement, presentation and disclosure for defined
benefit plans. Amendments include:

> The elimination of the deferral and amortization approach (corridor
approach) for recognizing actuarial gains and losses in net earnings.
Actuarial gains and losses will be recognized in other comprehensive
income. Actuarial gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to net earnings in subsequent periods.

or liabilities and income tax expense. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that taxes will be payable as anticipated and/or the amount and timing
of receipt or use of the tax-related assets will be as currently expected.
Management's experience indicates the taxation authorities are more
aggressively pursuing perceived taxissuesand have increased theresources
they put to these efforts.

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Corporationandits subsidiaries maintain defined benefit pension plansas
wellas defined contribution pension plansforeligible employeesand advisors.
The plans provide pensions based on length of service and final average
earnings. Certain pension paymentsare indexed either on anad hoc basis or
aguaranteed basis. The defined contribution pension plans provide pension
benefits based on accumulated employee and Corporation contributions.
The Corporation and its subsidiaries also provide certain post-employment
healthcare, dentalandlifeinsurance benefits to eligible retirees, employees
andadvisors. Forfurtherinformation on the Corporation’s pension plansand
other post-employment benefits refer to Note 24 to the Corporation’s 2012
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting for pension and other post-employment benefits requires
estimates of future returns on plan assets, expected increases in
compensation levels, trends in healthcare costs, and the period of time
over which benefits will be paid, as well as the appropriate discount rate
for accrued benefit obligations. These assumptions are determined by
management using actuarial methods and are reviewed and approved
annually. Emerging experience, which may differ from theassumptions, will
berevealed in future valuations and will affect the future financial position
of the plansand net periodic benefit costs.

DEFERRED SELLING COMMISSIONS

Commissions paid on the sale of certain mutual fund products are deferred
and amortized over their useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years. IGM
regularly reviews the carrying value of deferred selling commissions with
respect to any events or circumstances that indicate impairment. Among
the tests performed by IGM to assess recoverability is the comparison of
the future economic benefits derived from the deferred selling commission
asset in relation to its carrying value. At December 31, 2012, there were no
indications of impairment to deferred selling commissions.

> The elimination of the concept of an expected return on assets (EROA).
Amended IAS19 requires the use of the discountratein the place of EROAIN
the determination of the netinterest component of the pension expense.
This discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end
of thereporting period on high-quality corporate bonds.

> Changes in the recognition of past service costs. Past service costs
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments will be recognized in
netearningsinthe period in which the planamendments or curtailments
occur, without regard to vesting.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 19, this change in
IFRS will be applied retroactively and is anticipated to decrease equity
by approximately $470 million at January 1, 2012 (decrease of $330 million
in shareholders’ equity, and $140 million in non-controlling interests)
with an additional decrease to equity of approximately $240 million at
January1,2013 (decrease of $165 million in shareholders’ equity and $75 million
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in non-controlling interests). Furthermore, the effect of applying this
standard retroactively will decrease earnings before tax by approximately
$12 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

IFRS10—Consolidated Financial Statements Effectiveforthe Corporation
onJjanuary1,2013, IFRS10, Consolidated Financial Statements uses consolidation
principles based on a revised definition of control. The definition of control
is dependent on the power of the investor to direct the activities of the
investee, the ability of the investor to derive variable returns fromits holdings
in the investee, and a direct link between the power to direct activities and
receive benefits.

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10 and IFRS 12 in October 2012 that
introduced an exception from consolidation for the controlled entities of
investment entities. Lifeco continues to review the financial reporting of
the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders presented within Lifeco’s
financial statements to determine whether it would be different than the
currentreporting under IFRS.

IFRS T1—Joint Arrangements Effective for the Corporation on January 1,
2013, IFRST1, Joint Arrangements separates jointly controlled entities between
joint operations and joint ventures. The standard eliminates the option
of using proportionate consolidation in accounting for interests in joint
ventures, requiring an entity to use the equity method of accounting. The
standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Corporation’s
financial position or results of operations.

IFRS 12—Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities Effective for the
Corporation on January 1, 2013, IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
provides new disclosure requirements for the interest an entity has in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates, and structured entities.
The standard requires enhanced disclosure, including how control was
determined and any restrictions that might exist on consolidated assets
and liabilities presented within the financial statements. The standard is
expected toresultin additional disclosures.

IFRS 13—Fair Value Measurement Effective for the Corporation on
January1,2013, IFRS13, Fair Value Measurement provides guidance to increase
consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related
disclosures through a “fair value hierarchy”. The hierarchy categorizes the
inputsusedinvaluation techniquesinto threelevels. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to (unadjusted) quoted pricesin active markets foridentical
assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

The standard relates primarily to disclosure and will notimpact the financial
results of the Corporation.

IAS1—Presentation of Financial Statements Effective forthe Corporation
on January 1, 2013, IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements includes
requirements that other comprehensive income be classified by nature and
grouped between those items that will be classified subsequently to profit or
loss (when specific conditions are met) and those that will not be reclassified.

This revised standard relates only to presentation and will not impact the
financial results of the Corporation.

IFRS 7—Financial Instruments: Disclosure Effective for the Corporation
onJjanuary1,2013, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7regarding disclosure
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments
allow users of financial statements to improve their understanding of
transfer transactions of financial assets (for example, securitizations),
including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain
with the entity that transferred the assets. The amendments also require
additional disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken near the end of a reporting period.

This revised standard relates only to disclosure and will not impact the
financial results of the Corporation.
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EFFECTIVE FOR THE CORPORATION

SUBSEQUENT TO 2013

IFRS 4—Insurance Contracts ThelASBissuedanexposuredraft proposing
changes to theaccounting standard forinsurance contractsinJuly2010. The
proposal would require an insurer to measure insurance liabilities using a
model focusing on theamount, timing, and uncertainty of future cash flows
associated with fulfilling itsinsurance contracts. Thisis vastly different from
the connection betweeninsurance assetsand liabilities considered under the
Canadian Asset Liability Method (CALM) and may cause significant volatility
in the results of Lifeco. The exposure draft also proposes changes to the
presentation and disclosure within the financial statements.

Since the release of the exposure draft, there have been discussions within
theinsurance industry and between accounting standards setters globally
recommending significant changes to the 2010 exposure draft. At this time
no new standard has been either re-exposed or released.

Lifecowill continue to measure insurance contract liabilities using CALM until
such time when a new IFRS for insurance contract measurement is issued.
Afinal standard is not expected to be implemented for several years; Lifeco
continues to actively monitor developments in this area.

IFRS 9—Financial Instruments Effectiveforthe Corporation onjanuary]l,
2015, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments requires all financial assets to be classified
on initial recognition at amortized cost or fair value while eliminating
the existing categories of available for sale, held to maturity, and loans
and receivables.

Thenew standard will also require:

> embedded derivatives to be assessed for classification together with their
financial asset host;

> anexpected lossimpairment method be used for financial assets; and

> amendments to the criteria for hedge accounting and measuring
effectiveness.

The full impact of IFRS 9 on the Corporation will be evaluated after the
remaining stages of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement—impairment methodology, hedge accounting,
and asset and liability offsetting—are finalized. The current timetable for
adoption of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments is for the annual period beginning
January1,2015; however, the Corporation continues to monitor this standard
in conjunction with developments to IFRS 4.

IAS 32—Financial Instruments: Presentation Effective forthe Corporation
on January 1, 2014, IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation clarifies the
existing requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Corporation is evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
presentation of its financial statements.

EXPOSURE DRAFTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

IAS 17—Leases The IASB issued an exposure draft proposing a new
accounting model for leases where both lessees and lessors would record
theassetsand liabilities on the balance sheetat the presentvalue of the lease
payments arising from all lease contracts. The new classification would be
theright-of-use model, replacing the operating and finance lease accounting
models that currently exist.

Thefullimpact of adoption of the proposed changes will be determined once
the final leases standard isissued.



IAS18—Revenue ThelASBissuedasecondexposuredraftin November201
which proposed a single revenue recognition standard to align the financial
reporting of revenue from contracts with customers and related costs. A
company would recognize revenue when it transfers goods or services to a
customerin theamount of the consideration the company expects to receive
from the customer.

RISK FACTORS

There are certain risks inherent in an investment in the securities of the
Corporationandin the activities of the Corporation, including the following
and others disclosed elsewhere in this document, which investors should
carefully consider before investing in securities of the Corporation. This
description of risks does notinclude all possible risks, and there may be other
risks of which the Corporationis not currently aware.

Power Financial is a holding company that holds substantial interests
in the financial services sector through its controlling interest in each of
Lifeco and IGM. As a result, investors in Power Financial are subject to the
risks attributable to its status as a shareholder of its subsidiaries, including
those that Power Financial has as the principal shareholder of each of Lifeco
and IGM.

As a holding company, Power Financial's ability to pay interest and other
operating expenses and dividends, to meet its obligations and to complete
current or desirable future enhancement opportunities or acquisitions
generally depends upon receipt of sufficient dividends from its principal
subsidiaries and other investments and its ability to raise additional
capital. The likelihood that shareholders of Power Financial will receive
dividends will be dependent upon the operating performance, profitability,
financial position and creditworthiness of the principal subsidiaries of
Power Financial and on their ability to pay dividends to Power Financial. The
payment of interest and dividends by certain of these principal subsidiaries
to Power Financial is also subject to restrictions set forth in insurance,
securities and corporate laws and regulations which require that solvency
and capital standards be maintained by such companies. If required, the
ability of Power Financial to arrange additional financing in the future will
depend in part upon prevailing market conditions as well as the business

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

GUARANTEES

Inthe normal course of their businesses, the Corporationand its subsidiaries
may enter into certain agreements, the nature of which precludes the
possibility of making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential
amount the Corporation or subsidiary could be required to pay third parties,
as some of these agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the
amounts are dependent on the outcome of future contingent events, the
nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined.

The full impact of adoption of the proposed changes will be determined
once the final revenue recognition standard is issued, which is targeted for
releasein 2013.

performance of Power Financial and its subsidiaries. In recent years, global
financial conditionsand market events have experienced increased volatility
and resulted in the tightening of credit that has reduced available liquidity
and overalleconomicactivity. There can be no assurance that debt or equity
financing will be available, or, together with internally generated funds, will
be sufficient to meet or satisfy Power Financial's objectives or requirements
or, if theforegoing are available to Power Financial, that they will be on terms
acceptable to Power Financial. The inability of Power Financial to access
sufficient capital on acceptable terms could have a material adverse effect
on Power Financial’s business, prospects, dividend paying capability and
financial condition, and further enhancement opportunities oracquisitions.

The market price for Power Financial's securities may be volatile and subject
to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are
beyond Power Financial's control. Economic conditions may adversely
affect Power Financial, including fluctuations in foreign exchange, inflation
and interest rates, as well as monetary policies, business investment and
the health of capital markets in Canada, the United States and Europe.
In recent years, financial markets have experienced significant price
and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices of equity
securities held by the Corporation and its subsidiaries and that have often
been unrelated to the operating performance, underlying asset values or
prospects of such companies. Additionally, these factors, as well as other
related factors, may cause decreases in asset values that are deemed to be
significant or prolonged, which may result in impairment losses. In periods
of increased levels of volatility and related market turmoil, Power Financial's
subsidiaries operations could be adversely impacted and the trading price of
Power Financial's securities may be adversely affected.

LETTERS OF CREDIT

In the normal course of their reinsurance business, Lifeco's subsidiaries
provide letters of credit to other parties or beneficiaries. A beneficiary will
typically hold a letter of creditas collateral in order to secure statutory credit
for reserves ceded to or amounts due from Lifeco's subsidiaries. A letter of
credit may be drawn upondemand. Ifanamountisdrawn onaletter of credit
by a beneficiary, the bankissuing the letter of credit will make a payment to
the beneficiary for theamount drawn, and Lifeco’s subsidiaries will become
obligated to repay thisamount to the bank.

Lifeco, through certain of its operating subsidiaries, has provided letters of

credit to both external and internal parties, which are described in Note 30
to the Corporation's 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Corporationandits subsidiaries are from time to time subject tolegal actions,
including arbitrationsand classactions, arising in the normal course of business.
Itisinherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these proceedings with
certainty, and it is possible that an adverse resolution could have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Corporation. However,
based oninformation presently known, itis not expected thatany of the existing
legalactions, eitherindividually orin the aggregate, will have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial position of the Corporation.

A subsidiary of Lifeco has declared a partial windup in respect of an Ontario
defined benefit pension plan which will not likely be completed for some time.
The partial windup could involve the distribution of the amount of actuarial
surplus, if any, attributable to the wound-up portion of the plan. In addition to
the regulatory proceedings involving this partial windup, a related class action
proceeding has been commenced in Ontario related to the partial windup and
three potential partial windups under the plan. The class action also challenges
thevalidity of charging expenses to the plan. The provisions for certain Canadian
retirement plans in the amounts of $97 million after tax established by Lifeco's
subsidiariesin the third quarter of 2007 have been reduced to $34 million. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

The Court of Appeal for Ontario released a decision on November 3, 2011in regard
to the involvement of the participating accounts of Lifeco subsidiaries London
Life and Great-West Life in the financing of the acquisition of London Insurance
Group Inc.in1997 (the Appeal Decision).

The Appeal Decision ruled Lifeco subsidiaries achieved substantial success and
required that there be adjustments to the original trial judgment regarding
amounts which were to be reallocated to the participating accounts going
forward. Any monies to be reallocated to the participating accounts will be
dealt with in accordance with Lifeco subsidiaries’ participating policyholder
dividend policies in the ordinary course of business. No awards are to be paid
outtoindividual class members. On May 24, 2012, the Supreme Court of Canada
dismissed the plaintiff's application for leave to appeal the Appeal Decision.
The Appeal Decision directed the parties back to the trial judge to work out
the remaining issues. On January 24, 2013 the Ontario Superior Court of Justice
released a decision ordering that $285 million be reallocated to the participating
accountsurplus. Lifeco will be appealing that decision.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, in response to the Appeal Decision, Lifeco
re-evaluated and reduced thelitigation provision established in the third quarter
of 2010, which positively impacted common shareholder net earnings of Lifeco
in 201 by $223 million after tax (Power Financial's share—S$158 million).

During the subsequent event period, in response to the Ontario Superior
Court of Justice decision on January 24, 2013, Lifeco established an incremental
provision of $140 million after taxin the common shareholders account of Lifeco
(Power Financial's share—$99 million). Lifeco now holds $290 million in after-tax
provisions for these proceedings.

Regardless of the ultimate outcome of this case, there will not be any impact
on the capital position of Lifeco or on participating policy contract terms and
conditions. Based on information presently known, this matteris not expected
to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of
the Corporation.

In connection with the acquisition of its subsidiary Putnam, Lifeco has an
indemnity froma third party against liabilities arising from certain litigationand
regulatoryactionsinvolving Putnam. Putnam continues to have potential liability
forthese mattersin theeventtheindemnityis not honoured. Lifeco expects the
indemnity will continue to be honoured and that any liability of Putnam would
not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position.

On October17,2012, a subsidiary of Lifeco received an administrative complaint
from the Massachusetts Securities Divisionin relation to that subsidiary'sroleas
collateralmanager of two collateralized debt obligations. The complaintis seeking
certain remedies, including the disgorgement of fees, a civil administrative fine
and a cease and desist order. In addition, that same subsidiary is a defendantin
two civillitigation matters brought by institutionsinvolvedin those collateralized
debt obligations. Based on information presently known, Lifeco believes these
matters are without merit. The potential outcome of these matters is not
yetdetermined.

Subsidiaries of Lifeco have an investment in a USA-based private equity
partnershipwhereinadisputearose over the terms of the partnershipagreement.
Lifeco established a provision in the fourth quarter of 2011 for $99 million after
tax. Thedisputewasresolved onjanuary10,2012, andasa result, Lifeconolonger
holds the provision.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Thefollowing table providesa summary of future consolidated contractual obligations.

LESS THAN MORE THAN
PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD TOTAL 1YEAR 1-5YEARS SYEARS
Long-term debt! 5,858 296 302 5,260
Depositsand certificates 163 145 13 5
Obligations to securitization entities 4,701 789 3,877 35
Operating leases!? 733 153 422 158
Purchase obligations®! 83 58 25
Contractual commitmentsi 516 470 46
Total 12,054 1,911 4,685 5,458

Letters of credit!®

1
[2
3
4

Please refer to Note 13 to the Corporation’s 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Includes office space and certain equipment used in the normal course of business. Lease payments are charged to operations in the period of use.

Purchase obligations are commitments of Lifeco to acquire goods and services, essentially related to information services.

Represents commitments by Lifeco. These contractual commitments are essentially commitments of investment transactions made in the normal course of

operations, in accordance with its policies and guidelines, which are to be disbursed upon fulfilment of certain contract conditions.

[5
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the Corporation’s financial
instruments. Fairvalue represents the amount that would be exchanged in
anarm’'s-length transaction between willing partiesand is best evidenced by
aquoted market price, if one exists. Fair values are management's estimates

and are generally calculated using market conditions at a specific pointin
time and may not reflect future fair values. The calculations are subjective
in nature, involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment (please
refer to Note 26 to the Corporation’'s 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements).

2012 2011
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AS AT DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
ASSETS
Cashand cash equivalents 3,313 3,313 3,385 3,385
Investments (excluding investment properties) 120,062 122,805 113,841 116,170
Funds held by ceding insurers 10,537 10,537 9,923 9,923
Derivative financial instruments 1,060 1,060 1,056 1,056
Otherfinancial assets 4,212 4,212 3,539 3,539
Total financial assets 139,184 141,927 131,744 134,073
LIABILITIES
Obligation to securitization entities 4701 4,787 3,827 3,930
Debentures and debtinstruments 5,858 6,830 5,888 6,502
Capital trust securities 119 171 533 577
Derivative financial instruments 413 413 427 427
Otherfinancial liabilities 4,923 4,925 4,509 4,510
Total financial liabilities 16,014 17,126 15,184 15,946

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the course of their activities, the Corporation and its subsidiaries use
derivative financialinstruments. When using such derivatives, they only act
aslimited end-users and not as market-makersin such derivatives.

The use of derivatives is monitored and reviewed on a regular basis by senior
management of the companies. The Corporation and its subsidiaries have
each established operating policies and processes relating to the use of
derivative financial instruments, which in particularaim at:

> prohibiting the use of derivative instruments for speculative purposes;

> documenting transactions and ensuring their consistency with risk
management policies;

> demonstrating the effectiveness of the hedging relationships; and

> monitoring the hedging relationship.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

There were no major changes to the Corporation’sandits subsidiaries’ policies
and procedures with respect to the use of derivative instruments in the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2012. There has been an increase
in the notional amount outstanding (516,888 million at December 31, 2012,
compared with $14,948 million at December 31, 2011) and an increase in the
exposure to credit risk (51,060 million at December 31, 2012, compared with
$1,056 million at December 31, 201) that represents the market value of those
instruments, which are in a gain position. During the third quarter of 2012,
Lifeco purchased equity put options with a notional amount of $849 million
as a macro balance sheet credit hedge against a decline in European equity
market levels. See Note 25 to the Corporation’s 2012 Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information on the type of derivative financial
instruments used by the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Based on theirevaluations as of December 31,2012, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Corporation’s disclosure

controls and procedures were effective as at December 31, 2012.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Based on their evaluations as of December 31,2012, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Corporation'sinternal
controls over financial reporting were effective as at December 31, 2012. During the fourth quarter of 2012, there have been no changesin the Corporation's
internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation's internal control over

financial reporting.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 2010
Total revenue including discontinued operations 32,412 32,433 32,559
Operating earnings attributable to common shareholders! 1,686 1,729 1,625
per share—basic 2.38 2.44 2.30
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,626 1,722 1,468
per share—basic 2.30 2.43 2.08
per share—diluted 2.28 2.41 2.06
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to common shareholders - 38 1
per share—basic - 0.05 =
per share—diluted - 0.05 =
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders 1,626 1,684 1,467
per share—basic 2.30 2.38 2.08
per share—diluted 2.28 2.36 2.06
Consolidated assets 268,593 252,678 244 644
Total financial liabilities 16,014 15,184 17,748
Debentures and debt instruments 5,858 5,888 6,313
Shareholders' equity 14,029 13,521 12,811
Book value per share 16.60 16.26 15.26
Number of common shares outstanding [millions] 709.1 708.2 708.0
Dividends per share [declared]
Common shares 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000
First preferred shares
Series A 0.5250 0.5250 0.45238
Series C1? 0.9750
Series D 1.3750 1.3750 1.3750
Series E 1.3125 1.3125 1.3125
Series F 1.4750 1.4750 1.4750
Series H 1.4375 1.4375 1.4375
Series| 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Series J&! 0.5875
Series K 1.2375 1.2375 1.2375
Series L 1.2750 1.2750 1.2750
Series M 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Series O 1.4500 1.4500 1.4500
Series P 1.1000 1.1000 0.6487
Series RE! 1.2837

[1] Operatingearningsand operating earnings per share are non-IFRS financial measures.

[2] Redeemedin October 2010.
[3] Redeemed injuly 2010.

[4] Issuedinjune 2010.

[5] Issuedin February 2012.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 3] 3,313 3,385
Investments [Note 4]
Bonds 83,387 78,759
Mortgages and otherloans 22,797 21,518
Shares 6,796 6,402
Investment properties 3,525 3,201
Loans to policyholders 7,082 7,162
123,587 117,042
Funds held by ceding insurers [Note 5] 10,537 9,923
Reinsurance assets [Note11] 2,064 2,061
Investmentin jointly controlled corporation [Note 6] 2,149 2,222
Owner-occupied properties and capital assets [Note 7] 791 738
Derivative financial instruments [Note 25] 1,060 1,056
Otherassets [Note 8] 5368 4,653
Deferred tax assets [Note16] 1,170 1,207
Intangible assets [Note 9] 4933 5023
Goodwill [Note 9] 8,673 8,786
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders [Note 10] 104,948 96,582
Total assets 268,593 252,678
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities [Note 11] 119,919 114,730
Investment contract liabilities [Note 11] 739 782
Obligation to securitization entities [Note 12] 4,701 3,827
Debentures and debt instruments [Note 13] 5,858 5,888
Capital trust securities [Note 14] 119 533
Derivative financial instruments [Note 25] 413 427
Other liabilities [Note 15] 6,311 5,836
Deferred tax liabilities [Note 16] 1,213 1,258
Investment and insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders [Note10] 104,948 96,582
Total liabilities 244,221 229,863
EQUITY
Stated capital [Note17]
Perpetual preferred shares 2,255 2,005
Common shares 664 639
Retained earnings 11,148 10,743
Reserves (38) 134
Total shareholders' equity 14,029 13,521
Non-controlling interests [Note 19] 10,343 9,294
Total equity 24,372 22,815
Total liabilities and equity 268,593 252,678
Approved by the Board of Directors
Signed, Signed,
Raymond Royer R. Jeffrey Orr
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

FORTHEYEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] 2012 2011
REVENUES
Premiumincome
Gross premiums written 21,839 20,013
Ceded premiums (3,019) (2,720)
Total net premiums 18,820 17,293
Net investmentincome [Note 4]
Regular netinvestmentincome 5711 5,610
Changein fairvalue 2,650 4,154
8,361 9,764
Feeincome 5231 5,343
Total revenues 32,412 32,400
EXPENSES
Policyholder benefits
Insurance and investment contracts
Gross 17,431 16,591
Ceded (1,457) (1,217)
15,974 15,374
Policyholder dividends and experience refunds 1,437 1,424
Changeininsurance and investment contract liabilities 5,040 6,245
Total paid or credited to policyholders 22,451 23,043
Commissions 2,501 2,312
Operating and administrative expenses [Note 22] 3,696 3,006
Financing charges [Note 23] 395 409
Total expenses 29,043 28,770
3,369 3,630
Share of earnings (losses) of investment in jointly controlled corporation [Note 6] 134 (20)
Earnings beforeincome taxes—continuing operations 3,503 3,610
Income taxes [Note 16] 563 706
Net earnings—continuing operations 2,940 2,904
Net earnings—discontinued operations - 63
Net earnings 2,940 2,967
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests [Note 19] 1,197 1,141
Perpetual preferred shareholders 117 104
Common shareholders 1,626 1,722
2,940 2,967
Earnings per common share [Note 28]
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders
—Basic 2.30 2.43
—Diluted 2.28 2.41
Net earnings from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders
—Basic 2.30 2.38
—Diluted 2.28 2.36
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] 2012 2011

Net earnings 2,940 2,967

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale assets

Unrealized gains (losses) 85 226
Income tax (expense) benefit (25) (48)
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings (126) (116)
Income tax expense (benefit) 31 30

(35) 92

Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges

Unrealized gains (losses) 14 (24)
Income tax (expense) benefit (5) 10
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings 2 2
Income tax expense (benefit) (1) (1)

10 (13)

Net unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations (78) 214
Share of other comprehensive income of jointly controlled corporation (100) (222)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (203) 71
Total comprehensive income 2,737 3,038

Attributable to

Non-controlling interests 1,165 1,269
Perpetual preferred shareholders 117 104
Common shareholders 1,455 1,665
2,737 3,038
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES INEQUITY

STATED CAPITAL

RESERVES

PERPETUAL COMPREHS\T;\E/E NON-

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 PREFERRED COMMON RETAINED SHARE-BASED INCOME CONTROLLING TOTAL
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] SHARES SHARES EARNINGS COMPENSATION [NOTE 27] TOTAL INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance, beginning of year 2,005 639 10,743 111 23 134 9,294 22,815
Net earnings - - 1,743 - - - 1,197 2,940
Other comprehensive income (10ss) - - - - (171) (171) (32) (203)
Total comprehensive income - - 1,743 - (171) (171) 1,165 2,737
Issue of perpetual preferred shares 250 - - - - - - 250
Dividends to shareholders

Perpetual preferred shares - - 117) - - - - 117)

Common shares - - (992) - - - - (992)
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (659) (659)
Share-based compensation - - - 9 - 9 4 13
Stock options exercised - 25 - (10) - (10) (3) 12
Effects of changes in ownership and

capital on non-controlling interests,

and other - - (229) - - - 542 313
Balance, end of year 2,255 664 11,148 110 (148) (38) 10,343 24,372

STATED CAPITAL RESERVES
OTHER

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 ;FZESFPEEIIF:J?DL COMMON RETAINED SHARE-BASED COMPRE}I—:\IE’C\‘OS‘I\\A/E CONTROLT\(I)\I’\GF TOTAL
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] SHARES SHARES EARNINGS COMPENSATION [NOTE 27] TOTAL INTERESTS EQUITY
Balance, beginning of year 2,005 636 9,982 108 80 188 8,741 21,552
Net earnings = = 1,826 = = = 1,141 2,967
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - (57) (57) 128 71
Total comprehensive income - - 1,826 - (57) (57) 1,269 3,038
Dividends to shareholders

Perpetual preferred shares - - (104) - - - - (104)

Common shares - - (991) - - - - (991)
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (640) (640)
Share-based compensation = = = 8 = 8 2 10
Stock options exercised - 3 - (5) - (5) 2) (4)
Effects of changesin ownership and

capital on non-controlling interests,

and other - - 30 - - - (76) (46)
Balance, end of year 2,005 639 10,743 111 23 134 9,294 22,815
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS] 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES—CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Earnings before income taxes—continuing operations 3,503 3,610
Income tax paid, net of refunds received (414) (4)
Adjusting items
Changeininsurance andinvestment contract liabilities 5,034 6,029
Changeinfunds held by ceding insurers 205 464
Changeinfunds held underreinsurance contracts 201 25
Changeinreinsurance assets 45 415
Changein fairvalue through profit or loss (2,650) (4,182)
Other (555) (852)
5,369 5,505
FINANCING ACTIVITIES—CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Dividends paid
By subsidiaries to non-controlling interests (659) (640)
Perpetual preferred shares (114) (104)
Common shares (991) (991)
(1,764) (1,735)
Issue of common shares by the Corporation [Note17] 20 3
Issue of common shares by subsidiaries 44 61
Issue of perpetual preferred shares by the Corporation [Note 17] 250 =
Issue of preferred shares by subsidiaries 650 -
Repurchase of common shares by subsidiaries (215) (186)
Changesin debt instruments (1) (©)
Repayment of debentures [Note 13] - (450)
Changein obligations related to assets sold under repurchase agreements () (408)
Changeinobligations to securitization entities 874 319
Redemption of capital trust securities [Note 14] (409) =
Other (8) (4)
(561) (2,406)
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES—CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Bond sales and maturities 24,516 20,486
Mortgage loan repayments 2,071 1,756
Sale of shares 2,152 2,355
Changeinloans to policyholders (57) (198)
Changein repurchase agreements (23) (1,053)
Investment in bonds (27,716) (20,510)
Investment in mortgage loans (3,394) (3,361)
Investmentin shares (2,162) (2,643)
Proceeds on disposal of business - 199
Investment in investment properties and other (259) (137)
(4,872) (3,106)
Effect of changesin exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents—continuing operations ®) 24
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents—continuing operations (72) 17
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,385 3,656
Less: Cash and cash equivalents—discontinued operations, beginning of year - (288)
Cash and cash equivalents—continuing operations, end of year 3,313 3,385
NET CASH FROM CONTINUING OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDES
Interest and dividends received 5,062 5,044
Interest paid 492 493
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All tabularamounts are in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

NOTE 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Power Financial Corporation (Power Financial or the Corporation) is a
publicly listed company (TSX: PWF) incorporated and domiciled in Canada.
The registered address of the Corporation is 751 Victoria Square, Montréal,
Québec, Canada, H2Y 2)3.

Power Financial is a diversified international management and holding
company that holds interests, directly or indirectly, in companies in the
financial services industry in Canada, the United States and Europe and,
through its indirect investment in Pargesa, has substantial holdings in

companies basedin Europe, active in the following industries: oiland gasand
alternative energies, electricity, energy and environmental services, water
and waste management services, cementand other building materials, and
winesand spirits.

The Consolidated Financial Statements (financial statements) of
Power Financial for the year ended December 31,2012 were approved forissue
by the Board of Directors on March 13, 2013. The Corporation is controlled by
171263 Canada Inc., which is wholly owned by Power Corporation of Canada.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Power Financial at December 31, 2012 have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statementsinclude the accounts of Power Financial
and all its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis after elimination of
intercompany transactions and balances. Subsidiaries of the Corporation
are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Corporation obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

The principal subsidiaries of the Corporation are:

> Great-West Lifeco Inc. (direct interest of 68.2% (2011-68.2%)), whose
major operating subsidiary companies are The Great-West Life Assurance
Company, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company, London Life
Insurance Company, The Canada Life Assurance Company, and Putnam
Investments, LLC.

> IGM Financial Inc. (direct interest of 58.7% (2011-57.6%)), whose major
operating subsidiary companies are Investors Group Inc. and Mackenzie
Financial Corporation.

> IGM Financial Inc. holds 4.0% (2011-4.0%) of the common shares of
Great-West Lifeco Inc., and The Great-West Life Assurance Company holds
3.7% (2011-3.6%) of the common shares of IGM Financial Inc.

The Corporation also holds a 50% (2011-50%) interest in Parjointco N.V.
Parjointco holds a 55.6% (2011-56.5%) equity interest in Pargesa Holding
SA. The Corporation accounts for its investment in Parjointco using the
equity method.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries to exercise judgment
in the process of applying accounting policies and requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparation of the financial statements, management of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries are required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net earnings and related
disclosures. Although some variability is inherent in these estimates,
managementof the Corporationand its subsidiaries believe that theamounts
recorded are reasonable. Key sources of estimation uncertainty include:
valuation of insurance and investment contracts, determination of the fair
value of financial instruments, carrying value of goodwill, intangible assets,
deferred selling commissions, investmentin ajointly controlled corporation,
legal and other provisions, income taxes and pension plans and other post-
employment benefits. Areas where significant estimates and assumptions
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have been used by management and its subsidiaries are further described
in the relevant accounting policies of this note and other notes throughout
the financial statements. The reported amounts and note disclosures are
determined using management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries’
bestestimates.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS

In preparation of the financial statements, management of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries is required to make significant judgments that affect
the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses recorded during the period. Significant
judgments have been made in the following areas and are discussed
throughout the notes of the financial statements: insurance and investment
contract liabilities, classification and fair value of financial instruments,
goodwill and intangible assets, pension plans and other post-employment
benefits, income taxes, the determination of which financial assets should be
derecognized, provisions, subsidiaries and special purpose entities, deferred
acquisition costs, deferred income reserves, owner-occupied properties and
fixed assets.

The results reflect judgments of management of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries regarding the impact of prevailing global credit, equity and
foreign exchange market conditions. The estimation of insurance and
investment contract liabilities relies upon investment credit ratings. Lifeco’s
practiceis to use third-party independent credit ratings where available.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

For Lifeco, premiums for all types of insurance contracts and contracts with
limited mortality or morbidity risk are generally recognized as revenue when
due and collectionis reasonably assured.

Interest income on bonds and mortgages is recognized and accrued using
the effective yield method.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is
established. This is the dividend date for listed stocks and usually the
notification date or date when the shareholders have approved the dividend
for private equity instruments.

Investment property incomeincludes rents earned from tenants underlease
agreementsand property taxand operating cost recoveries. Rental income
leases with contractual rentincreases and rent-free periods are recognized
onastraight-line basis over the term of the lease.

For Lifeco, feeincome primarily includes fees earned from the management
of segregated fund assets, proprietary mutual fund assets, fees earned on
the administration of administrative services only Group health contracts
and fees earned from management services. Fee income is recognized
when the service is performed, the amount is collectible and can be
reasonably estimated.



NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ForIGM, management fees are based on the net asset value of mutual fund
assets under management and are recognized on an accrual basis as the
service is performed. Administration fees are also recognized on an accrual
basisastheserviceis performed. Distribution fees derived from mutual fund
and securities transactions arerecognized on a trade-date basis. Distribution
fees derived from insurance and other financial services transactions are
recognized on an accrual basis. These management, administration and
distribution fees areincluded in feeincome in the Consolidated Statements
of Earnings (statements of earnings).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, current operating accounts,
overnight bank and term deposits with original maturities of three months
orless, and fixed income securities with an original term to maturity of three
months orless.

INVESTMENTS

Investmentsinclude bonds, mortgagesand otherloans, shares, investment
properties, and loans to policyholders. Investments are classified as either
fair value through profit or loss, available for sale, held to maturity, loans
and receivables or as non-financial instruments, based on management's
intention relating to the purpose and nature for which the instruments were
acquired orthe characteristics of theinvestments. The Corporation currently
has not classified any investments as held to maturity.

Investmentsin bondsand shares normally actively traded on a public market
are either designated or classified as fair value through profit or loss or
classified as available for sale and are recorded on a trade-date basis. Fixed
income securities areincluded in bonds on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
(balance sheets). Fairvalue through profit or loss investments are recognized
at fair value on the balance sheets with realized and unrealized gains and
lossesreportedin the statements of earnings. Available-for-sale investments
are recognized at fair value on the balance sheets with unrealized gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
are reclassified from other comprehensive income and recorded in the
statements of earnings when the available-for-sale investment is sold or
impaired. Interest income earned on both fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale bondsis recorded asinvestmentincome earned in the
statements of earnings.

Investments in shares where a fair value cannot be measured reliably are
classified as available for sale and carried at cost.

Investments in mortgages and other loans and bonds not normally actively
traded on a public market and other loans are classified as loans and
receivablesand are carried at amortized cost net of any allowance for credit
losses. Interest income earned and realized gains and losses on the sale of
investments classified asloansandreceivablesare recorded in netinvestment
incomein the statements of earnings.

Investment properties are real estate held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially measured at cost
and subsequently carried at fair value on the balance sheets. All changes
in fair value are recorded as net investment income in the statements of
earnings. Properties held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
that have aninsignificant portion thatis owneroccupied or where thereisno
intentto occupy onalong-term basis are classified asinvestment properties.
Properties that do not meet these criteria are classified as owner-occupied
properties. Property that is leased that would otherwise be classified as
investment property if owned by the Corporation is also included with
investment properties.

Fair value measurement Financialinstrumentcarrying values necessarily
reflect the prevailing market liquidity and theliquidity premiums embedded
in the market pricing methods the Corporation relies upon.

Thefollowingisadescription of the methodologies used tovalue instruments
carried atfairvalue:

Bonds at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale  Fair values for
bonds classified as fair value through profit or loss or available for sale are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices primarily provided
by third-partyindependent pricing sources. The Corporation obtains quoted
prices in active markets, when available, for identical assets at the balance
sheet date to measure bonds at fair value in its fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale portfolios. Where prices are not quoted in a
normally active market, fair values are determined by valuation models.
The Corporation maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

The Corporation estimates the fairvalue of bonds not traded in active markets
by referring to actively traded securities with similar attributes, dealer
quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted cash flow analyses
and/orinternal valuation models. This methodology considers such factors
astheissuer'sindustry, the security’s rating, term, coupon rate and position
in the capital structure of the issuer, as well as yield curves, credit curves,
prepaymentrates and other relevant factors. For bonds that are not traded
in active markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect illiquidity, and such
adjustmentsare generally based on available market evidence. In the absence
of such evidence, management'’s best estimate is used.

Shares at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale Fair values for
publicly traded shares are generally determined by the last bid price for the
security from the exchange whereitis principally traded. Fair values for shares
forwhich thereisnoactive market are determined by discounting expected
future cash flows. The Corporation maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
The Corporation obtains quoted prices inactive markets, when available, for
identical assets at the balance sheets dates to measure shares atfairvaluein
its fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale portfolios.

Mortgages and other loans, and Bonds classified as loans and receivables  Fair
values for bonds and mortgages and other loans, classified as loans and
receivables, are determined by discounting expected future cash flows using
current market rates.

Investment properties Fairvaluesforinvestment propertiesare determined
usingindependentappraisal servicesand include managementadjustments
formaterial changesin property cash flows, capital expenditures or general
market conditions in the interim period between appraisals.

Impairment Investments are reviewed reqularly on an individual basis to
determineimpairment status. The Corporation considers various factorsin
theimpairmentevaluation process, including, but not limited to, the financial
condition of the issuer, specific adverse conditions affecting an industry
or region, decline in fair value not related to interest rates, bankruptcy or
defaults, and delinquency in payments of interest or principal. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale shares are recorded if the loss is significant or
prolonged and subsequent losses are recorded in net earnings.

Investments are deemed to be impaired when thereis nolonger reasonable
assurance of timely collection of the fullamount of the principal and interest
due. Thefairvalue of aninvestmentis not a definitive indicator of impairment,
asitmay be significantly influenced by otherfactors, including the remaining
term to maturity and liquidity of the asset. However, market price must be
taken into consideration when evaluating impairment.
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Forimpaired mortgages and other loans, and bonds classified as loans and
receivables, provisions are established or impairments recorded to adjust
the carrying value to the net realizable amount. Wherever possible the fair
value of collateral underlying the loans or observable market price is used to
establish netrealizable value. Forimpaired available-for-sale bonds, recorded
at fair value, the accumulated loss recorded in the investment revaluation
reservesis reclassified to netinvestmentincome. Impairments on available-
for-sale debt instruments are reversed if there is objective evidence that a
permanentrecovery hasoccurred. All gains and losses on bonds classified or
designated asfairvalue through profit orloss are already recorded in earnings,
therefore, a reduction due toimpairment of these assets will be recorded in
earnings. As well, when determined to be impaired, contractual interest is
nolongeraccrued and previous interest accruals are reversed.

Fairvalue movement on the assets supporting insurance contract liabilities
isa major factorin the movement of insurance contract liabilities. Changes
in the fair value of bonds designated or classified as fair value through
profit or loss that support insurance contract liabilities are largely offset by
corresponding changes in the fair value of liabilities except when the bond
has been deemed impaired.

TRANSACTION COSTS

Transaction costsare expensedasincurred forfinancial instruments classified
or designated as fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs for
financial assets classified as available for sale or loans and receivables are
added to the value of the instrument at acquisition and taken into net
earnings using the effective interest method. Transaction costs for financial
liabilities classified as other than fairvalue through profit orloss are deducted
fromthevalue of theinstrumentissued and takeninto net earnings using the
effectiveinterest method.

INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED CORPORATION
Ajointly controlled corporation is any entity in which unanimous consent is
required over the entity’s management and operating and financial policy.
Theinvestmentin the jointly controlled corporationisaccountedforusing the
equity method. The sharein net earnings of the jointly controlled corporation
isrecognizedin the statement of earnings, the sharein other comprehensive
income of the jointly controlled corporation is recognized in the statement
of othercomprehensive income and the changein equity isrecognizedin the
statement of changes in equity.

LOANS TO POLICYHOLDERS

Loans to policyholders are shown at their unpaid principal balance and are
fully secured by the cash surrender values of the policies. The carrying value
of loans to policyholders approximates fair value.

REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

Lifeco, in the normal course of business, is both a user and a provider of
reinsurance in order to limit the potential for losses arising from certain
exposures. Assumed reinsurance refers to the acceptance of certaininsurance
risks by Lifeco underwritten by another company. Ceded reinsurance refers
to the transfer of insurance risk, along with the respective premiums, to
oneor more reinsurers who will share therisks. To the extent thatassuming
reinsurers are unable to meet their obligations, Lifeco remains liable to its
policyholdersforthe portionreinsured. Consequently, allowances are made
forreinsurance contracts which are deemed uncollectible.

Assumed reinsurance premiums, commissions and claim settlements, as

well as the reinsurance assets associated with insurance and investment
contracts, are accounted for in accordance with the terms and conditions
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of theunderlying reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are reviewed for
impairment on a regular basis for any events that may trigger impairment.
Lifeco considers various factors in the impairment evaluation process,
including, but not limited to, collectability of amounts due under the terms
of the contract. The carrying amount of a reinsurance asset is adjusted
through an allowance account with any impairment loss being recorded in
the statements of earnings.

Any gains orlosses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the statement of
earnings immediately at the date of purchase and are not amortized.

Premiums and claims ceded for reinsurance are deducted from premiums
earnedandinsuranceandinvestment contract benefits. Assetsand liabilities
related toreinsurance are reported ona gross basisin the balance sheets. The
amount of liabilities ceded to reinsurersis estimated in a manner consistent
with the claim liability associated with reinsured risks.

DERECOGNITION

IGM enters into transactions where it transfers financial assets recognized
on its balance sheets. The determination of whether the financial assets
are derecognized is based on the extent to which the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred.

If substantially all of the risks and rewards of a financial asset are not retained,
IGM derecognizes the financial asset. The gains or losses and the servicing
fee revenue for financial assets that are derecognized are reported in net
investmentincome in the statements of earnings.

If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, the financial assets
are not derecognized and the transactions are accounted for as secured
financing transactions.

OWNER-OCCUPIED PROPERTIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets and property held for own use are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciationand impairments. Depreciation is charged to write
off the cost of assets, using the straight-line method, over their estimated
useful lives, which vary from 3 to 50 years. Capital assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changesin circumstancesindicate thatthe
carryingamount may not be recoverable.

> Building, owner-occupied properties, and components 10-50years
> Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-10years
> Othercapital assets 3-10years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least
annually and adjusted if necessary.

OTHER ASSETS

Trading account assets consist of investments in Putnam-sponsored funds,
which are carried at fair value based on the net asset value of these funds.
Investmentsin theseassetsareincludedin otherassetson the balance sheet
with realized and unrealized gains and losses reported in the statements
of earnings.

Also included in other assets are deferred acquisition costs relating to

investment contracts. Deferred acquisition costs are recognized if the costs
areincremental andincurred due to the contract beingissued.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fairvalue
of netassets acquired. Following recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.
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Intangible assets represent finite life and indefinite life intangible assets
acquired and software acquired or internally developed by the Corporation
and itssubsidiaries. Finitelifeintangibleassetsinclude thevalue of software,
some customer contracts, distribution channels, distribution contracts,
deferred selling commissions, property leases and technology. Finite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of 30 years.

Commissions paid by IGM on the sale of certain mutual funds are deferred and
amortized over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of seven
years. Commissions paid on the sale of deposits are deferred and amortized
over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years. When
a client redeems units in mutual funds that are subject to a deferred sales
charge, a redemption fee is paid by the client and is recorded as revenue by
IGM. Any unamortized deferred selling commission asset on the initial sale
of these mutual fund units is recorded as a disposal. IGM regularly reviews
thecarryingvalue of deferred selling commissions with respect to any events
or circumstances that indicate impairment. Among the tests performed
by IGM to assess recoverability is the comparison of the future economic
benefits derived from the deferred selling commission asset in relation to
its carrying value.

Indefinite life intangible assets include brands and trademarks, some
customer contracts, the shareholders'portion of acquired future participating
account profits, trade names and mutual fund management contracts.
Amounts are classified as indefinite life intangible assets when based on an
analysis of all the relevant factors, and when there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows
for the Corporation. The identification of indefinite life intangible assets is
made by reference to relevant factors such as product life cycles, potential
obsolescence, industry stability and competitive position.

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events indicate that impairment may have
occurred. Intangible assets that were previously impaired are reviewed
at each reporting date for evidence of reversal. In the event that certain
conditions have been met, the Corporation would berequired to reverse the
impairment charge ora portion thereof.

Goodwill has been allocated to groups of cash generating units (CGU),
representing the lowest level in which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying value of the groups of CGU to the recoverableamount to which the
goodwill has been allocated. Intangible assets are tested forimpairment by
comparing the asset's carryingamount to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's fair value less cost to sell or value in use, which is
calculated using the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated.

SEGREGATED FUNDS

Segregated fund assetsand liabilities arise from contracts where all financial
risks associated with the related assets are borne by policyholders and are
presented separately in the balance sheets at fair value. Investmentincome
and changes in fair value of the segregated fund assets are offset by a
corresponding changein the segregated fund liabilities.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Contractclassification Lifeco's productsare classified at contractinception,
foraccounting purposes, as insurance contracts or investment contracts,
depending on the existence of significantinsurance risk. Significantinsurance
risk exists when Lifeco agrees to compensate policyholders or beneficiaries
of the contract for specified uncertain future events that adversely affect the
policyholder and whose amount and timing is unknown.

When significant insurance risk exists, the contract is accounted for as an
insurance contract in accordance with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4).
Referto Note 21foradiscussion of insurance risk.

In the absence of significant insurance risk, the contract is classified as an
investment or service contract. Investment contracts with discretionary
participating features are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 4 and
investment contracts without discretionary participating features are
accounted forinaccordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Lifeco has not classified any contracts asinvestment contracts
with discretionary participating features.

Investment contracts may be reclassified as insurance contracts after
inception if insurance risk becomes significant. A contract that is classified
asaninsurance contractatcontractinception remainsassuch untilall rights
and obligations under the contract are extinguished or expire.

Investment contracts are contracts that carry financial risk, which is the
risk of a possible future change in one or more of the following: interest rate,
commodity price, foreign exchangerate, or credit rating. Refer to Note 21for
a discussion on risk management.

Measurement Insurance contract liabilities represent the amounts
required, in addition to future premiums and investmentincome, to provide
forfuture benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission and policy
administrative expenses for all insurance and annuity policies in force
with Lifeco. The Appointed Actuaries of Lifeco’s subsidiary companies are
responsible fordetermining the amount of theliabilities to make appropriate
provisions for Lifeco's obligations to policyholders. The Appointed Actuaries
determine the liabilities for insurance contracts and investment contracts
using generally accepted actuarial practices, according to the standards
established by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The valuation uses the
Canadian Asset Liability Method (CALM). This method involves the projection
of futureeventsinorderto determine theamount of assets that must be set
aside currently to provide forall future obligations and involves a significant
amount of judgment.

Insurance contract liabilities are computed with the result that benefits and
expenses are matched with premium income. Under fair value accounting,
movement in the fair value of the supporting assets is a major factorin the
movement of insurance contract liabilities. Changesin the fair value of assets
are largely offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of liabilities.

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value through profitand
loss, except for certain annuity products measured at amortized cost.

DEFERRED INCOME RESERVES

Included in other liabilities are deferred income reserves relating to
investment contract liabilities. Deferred income reserves are amortized on
a straight-line basis to recognize the initial policy fees over the policy term,
not to exceed 20 years.
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POLICYHOLDER BENEFITS

Policyholder benefitsinclude benefitsand claims on lifeinsurance contracts,
maturity payments, annuity payments and surrenders. Gross benefits and
claimsforlifeinsurance contractsinclude the cost of all claims arising during
theyearand settlement of claims. Death claimsand surrenders are recorded
on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are
recorded when due.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities, other than insurance and investment contract liabilities,
are classified as other liabilities. Debentures and debt instruments, capital
trust securities and other liabilities are initially recorded on the balance
sheets at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method with amortization expense recorded in the
statements of earnings.

EQUITY

Financial instruments issued by the Corporation are classified as stated
capital if they represent a residual interest in the assets of the Corporation.
Preferred shares are classified as equity if they are non-redeemable, or
retractable only at the Corporation’s option and any dividends are
discretionary. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of share capital arerecognized as a deduction from equity, net of income tax.

Reserves are composed of share-based compensation and other
comprehensive income. Share-based compensation represents the vesting
of share options less share options exercised.

Other comprehensive income represents the total of the unrealized foreign
exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations, the unrealized
gains (losses) on available-for-sale assets, the unrealized gains (losses) on
cash flow hedges, and the share of other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled corporation.

Non-controlling interest represents the proportion of equity that is
attributable to minority shareholders.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value-based method of accounting is used for the valuation of
compensation expense for options granted to employees. Compensation
expense is recognized as an increase to operating and administrative
expenses in the statements of earnings over the period that the stock
options vest, with a corresponding increase in share-based compensation
reserves. When the stock options are exercised, the proceeds, together with
the amount recorded in share-based compensation reserves, are added to
the stated capital of the entity issuing the corresponding shares.

Lifeco follows the liability method of accounting for share-based awards
issued by its subsidiaries Putnam and PanAgora Asset Management, Inc.
Compensation expenseisrecognized asan increase to operating expensesin
the statements of earnings and aliability is recognized on the balance sheets
overthevesting period of the share-based awards. Theliability is remeasured
atfairvalueateach reporting period with the changein the liability recorded
in operating expense and is settled in cash when the shares are purchased
from employees.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
Lifecoentersintorepurchaseagreements with third-party broker-dealersin
which Lifeco sells securities and agrees to repurchase substantially similar
securities at a specified date and price. As substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are retained, Lifeco does not derecognize
theassets. Such agreements are accounted foras investment financings.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation and its subsidiaries use derivative products as risk
management instruments to hedge or manage asset, liability and capital
positions, including revenues. The Corporation’s policy guidelines prohibit
the use of derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets. The method
of recognizing unrealized and realized fair value gains and losses depends
on whether the derivatives are designated as hedging instruments. For
derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments, unrealized
and realized gains and losses are recorded in net investment income on the
statements of earnings. For derivatives designated as hedging instruments,
unrealized and realized gains and losses are recognized according to the
nature of the hedged item.

Derivatives arevalued using market transactions and other market evidence
whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, broker or dealer
quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. When models are used, the selection of a particular model
tovalue a derivative depends on the contractual terms of, and specific risks
inherentin theinstrument, as well as the availability of pricing information
in the market. The Corporation generally uses similar models to value
similarinstruments. Valuation models require a variety of inputs, including
contractual terms, market prices and rates, yield curves, credit curves,
measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs.

To qualify for hedge accounting, the relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument must meet several strict conditions on
documentation, probability of occurrence, hedge effectiveness and reliability
of measurement. If these conditions are not met, then the relationship
does not qualify forhedge accounting treatment and both the hedged item
and the hedging instrument are reported independently, as if there was no
hedging relationship.

Where a hedging relationship exists, the Corporation documentsall relationships
between hedginginstrumentsand hedgeditems, aswellasits risk management
objectivesand strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process
includes linking derivatives that are used in hedging transactions to specific
assets and liabilities on the balance sheets or to specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions. The Corporation also assesses, both at the hedge's
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items. Hedge effectiveness is reviewed quarterly through
correlation testing.

Fair value hedges For fair value hedges, changes in fair value of both the
hedginginstrumentand the hedged itemarerecorded in netinvestmentincome
and consequently any ineffective portion of the hedge is recorded immediately
innetinvestmentincome.

Cashflow hedges Forcashflowhedges, theeffective portion of the changes
in fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the same manner as the
hedged item in either net investment income or other comprehensive income,
while theineffective portionisrecognizedimmediately in netinvestmentincome.
Gainsand losses on cash flow hedges that accumulate in other comprehensive
income are recorded in net investment income in the same period the hedged
item affects netearnings. Gainsandlosseson cashflow hedges areimmediately
reclassified from other comprehensive incometo netinvestmentincomeifand
whenitis probable thataforecasted transactionisnolongerexpected to occur.
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Net investment hedges Foreign exchange forward contracts may be used
to hedge net investment in foreign operations. Changes in the fair value of
these hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income. Hedge accounting
isdiscontinued when the hedging no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

An embedded derivative is a component of a host contract that modifies
the cash flows of the host contract in a manner similar to a derivative,
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, foreign
exchangerate, underlyingindexor othervariable. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate contractsandare recorded at fairvalueif theireconomic
characteristicsand risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
andthe host contractis notitself recorded at fairvalue through the statement
of earnings. Embedded derivatives that meet the definition of an insurance
contractareaccounted forand measured asaninsurance contract.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The Corporation and its subsidiaries operate with multiple functional
currencies. The Corporation’'s financial statements are prepared in Canadian
dollars, whichis the functional and presentation currency of the Corporation.

For the purpose of presenting financial statements, assets and liabilities are
translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheetdatesandallincome and expenses are translated atan average
of daily rates. Unrealized foreign currency translation gainsandlosses on the
Corporation’'s netinvestmentinitsforeign operationsandajointly controlled
corporation are presented separately asa component of other comprehensive
income. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized in earnings when there
has been a disposal of a foreign operation or a jointly controlled corporation.

Allotherassetsand liabilitiesdenominated inforeign currencies are translated
into each entity's functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet dates for monetary items and at exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates for non-monetary items. Realized and unrealized
exchangegainsandlossesareincludedinnetinvestmentincomeandare not
material to the financial statements of the Corporation.

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Corporation andits subsidiaries maintain defined benefit pension plansas
wellasdefined contribution pension plans foreligible employees and advisors.

The plans provide pension based on length of service and final average
earnings. The benefit obligation is actuarially determined and accrued
using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service. Pension expense
consists of theaggregate of the actuarially computed cost of pension benefits
providedinrespectof the currentyear'sservice,and imputed intereston the
accrued benefit obligation, less expected returns on plan assets, which are
valued at market value. Past service costs are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. Vested past
service costsare recognized immediately in pension expense. For the defined
benefit plans, actuarial gainsand losses areamortized into the statements of
earnings using the straight-line method over the average remaining working
life of employees covered by the plan to the extent that the net cumulative
unrecognized actuarial gainsand lossesat the end of the previous reporting
period exceed corridor limits. The corridor is defined as ten per cent of the
greater of the presentvalue of the defined benefit obligation or thefairvalue
of planassets. Theamortization chargeis reassessed at the beginning of each
year. The cost of pension benefitsis charged to earnings using the projected
benefit method pro-rated on services.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries also have unfunded supplementary
pension plans for certain employees. Pension expense related to current
services is charged to earnings in the period during which the services
arerendered.

In addition, the Corporation and its subsidiaries provide certain post-
employment healthcare, dental, andlifeinsurance benefits to eligibleretirees,
employeesand advisors. The current cost of post-employment health, dental
and life benefitsis charged to earnings using the projected unit credit method
pro-rated on services.

FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS /

FUNDS HELD UNDER REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

Under certain forms of reinsurance contracts, itis customary for the ceding
insurer to retain possession of the assets supporting the liabilities ceded.
Lifeco records an amount receivable from the ceding insurer or payable to
the reinsurer representing the premium due. Investment revenue on these
funds withheld is credited by the ceding insurer.

INCOME TAXES

Theincome tax expense for the period represents the sum of currentincome
tax and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized as an expense or
income in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items that are
recognized outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive income
ordirectlyinequity), in which case the income taxis also recognized outside
profit orloss.

Current income tax Current income tax is based on taxable income for
the year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at theamount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation
authorities using the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
atthebalance sheetdate. Current taxassetsand currentincome tax liabilities
are offset, ifalegally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts
and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be payable
or recoverable on tax loss carry forwards and on differences arising between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding bases used in the computation of taxable income and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assetsarerecognized to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
theinitial recognition ofanassetorliability ina transaction other thanabusiness
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profitorloss.

Deferred taxassetsand liabilities are measuredat the tax rates expected to apply
intheyearwhen theassetis realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to net current tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Thecarryingamount of deferred taxassetsisreviewed at each balance sheet date

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

57

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Unrecognized deferred taxassetsare reassessed at each balance sheet dateand
arerecognizedtotheextentthatithasbecome probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxliabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differencesarising on
investmentsin the subsidiariesandajointly controlled corporation, except where
thegroup controlsthe timing of the reversal of thetemporary differenceanditis
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Underthebalance sheetliability method, a provision for tax uncertainties which
meet the probable threshold for recognition is measured. Measurement of the
provisionis based on the probability weighted average approach.

LEASES

Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases, where the Corporation is the lessee, are charged to net earnings over
the period of use.

Where the Corporation is the lessor under an operating lease for its
investment property, the assets subject to the lease arrangement are
presented within the balance sheets. Income from these leasesis recognized
in the statements of earnings on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing net earnings available to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for theyear. Diluted earnings per share is determined using the
same method as basicearnings per share, except that the weighted average
number of common shares outstandingincludes the potential dilutive effect
of outstanding stock options granted by the Corporation andits subsidiaries,
as determined by the treasury stock method.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The Corporation continuously monitors the potential changes proposed by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and analyzes the effect
that changes in the standards may have on the Corporation’s consolidated
financial statements when they become effective.

EFFECTIVE FOR THE CORPORATION IN 2013

IAS 19—Employee Benefits Effective on January 1, 2013, the Corporation
adopted theamended IAS19, Employee Benefits. Theamended IAS19includes
requirements for the measurement, presentation and disclosure for defined
benefit plans. Amendmentsinclude:

> The elimination of the deferral and amortization approach (corridor
approach) for recognizing actuarial gains and losses in net earnings.
Actuarial gains and losses will be recognized in other comprehensive
income. Actuarial gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to net earnings in subsequent periods.

> The elimination of the concept of an expected return on assets (EROA).
Amended IAS19requires the use of the discount rate in the place of EROA
inthedetermination of the netinterest component of the pension expense.
This discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end
of thereporting period on high-quality corporate bonds.

> Changes in the recognition of past service costs. Past service costs
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments will be recognized in
netearningsinthe period in which the planamendments or curtailments
occur, without regard to vesting.
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In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 19, this change in
IFRS will be applied retroactively and is anticipated to decrease equity by
approximately $470 million at January 1, 2012 (decrease of $330 million in
shareholders’ equity and $140 million in non-controlling interests) with an
additional decrease to equity by approximately $240 million at January1, 2013
(decrease of $165 million in shareholders’ equity and $75 million in non-
controlling interests). Furthermore, the effect of applying this standard
retroactively will decrease earnings before tax by approximately $12 million
forthe year ended December 31,2012.

IFRS10—Consolidated Financial Statements Effective for the Corporation
onJjanuary1,2013, IFRS10, Consolidated Financial Statements uses consolidation
principles based on a revised definition of control. The definition of control
is dependent on the power of the investor to direct the activities of the
investee, the ability of theinvestor to derive variable returns fromits holdings
in theinvestee, and a direct link between the power to direct activities and
receive benefits.

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10 and IFRS 12 in October 2012 that
introduced an exception from consolidation for the controlled entities of
investment entities. Lifeco continues to review the financial reporting of
the segregated funds for the risk of policyholders presented within Lifeco’s
financial statements to determine whether it would be different than the
currentreporting under IFRS.

IFRS T1—Joint Arrangements Effective for the Corporation on January1,
2013, IFRST1, Joint Arrangements separates jointly controlled entities between
joint operations and joint ventures. The standard eliminates the option
of using proportionate consolidation in accounting for interests in joint
ventures, requiring an entity to use the equity method of accounting. The
standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Corporation'’s
financial position or results of operations.

IFRS 12—Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities Effective for the
Corporation on January 1, 2013, IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
proposes new disclosure requirements for the interest an entity has in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates, and structured entities.
The standard requires enhanced disclosure, including how control was
determinedand any restrictions that might exist on consolidated assets and
liabilities presented within the financial statements. The standard is expected
toresultin additional disclosures.

IFRS 13—Fair Value Measurement Effective for the Corporation on
January1,2013, IFRS13, Fair Value Measurement provides guidance to increase
consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related
disclosures through a “fair value hierarchy”. The hierarchy categorizes the
inputsusedinvaluation techniquesinto three levels. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets foridentical
assets orliabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

This standard relates primarily to disclosure and will notimpact the financial
results of the Corporation.

IAS1—Presentation of Financial Statements Effectiveforthe Corporation
on January 1, 2013, IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements includes
requirements that other comprehensive income be classified by nature and
grouped between those items that will be classified subsequently to profit or
loss (when specific conditions are met) and those that will not be reclassified.

This revised standard relates only to presentation and will not impact the
financial results of the Corporation.



NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 7—Financial Instruments: Disclosure Effective for the Corporation
onJjanuary1,2013, the IASBissued amendments to IFRS 7regarding disclosure
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments
will allow users of financial statements to improve their understanding
of transfer transactions of financial assets (for example, securitizations),
including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain
with the entity that transferred the assets. The amendments also require
additional disclosuresifadisproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken near the end of a reporting period.

This revised standard relates only to disclosure and will not impact the
financial results of the Corporation.

EFFECTIVE FOR THE CORPORATION

SUBSEQUENT TO 2013

IFRS 4—Insurance Contracts The IASB issued an exposure draft proposing
changes to the accounting standard for insurance contracts in July 2010. The
proposal would requirean insurer to measure insurance liabilities using a model
focusingontheamount, timing, and uncertainty of future cash flows associated
withfulfillingitsinsurance contracts. Thisis vastly different from the connection
between insurance assets and liabilities considered under the Canadian Asset
Liability Method (CALM) and may cause significant volatility in the results
of Lifeco. The exposure draft also proposes changes to the presentation and
disclosure within the financial statements.

Since the release of the exposure draft, there have been discussions within
the insurance industry and between accounting standards setters globally
recommending significant changes to the 2010 exposure draft. At this time no
new standard has been either re-exposed or released.

Lifecowill continue to measure insurance contract liabilities using the Canadian
Asset Liability Method until such time when a new IFRS for insurance contract
measurement isissued. Afinal standard is not expected to be implemented for
several years; Lifeco continues to actively monitor developmentsin this area.

IFRS 9—Financial Instruments Effective for the Corporation on January 1,
2015, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments requires all financial assets to be classified on
initial recognition atamortized cost or fair value while eliminating the existing

categories of available for sale, held to maturity, and loans and receivables.

NOTE3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The new standard also requires:

> embedded derivatives to be assessed for classification together with their
financial asset host;

> anexpected lossimpairment method be used for financial assets; and

> amendments to the criteria for hedge accounting and measuring
effectiveness.

Thefullimpactof IFRS9 on the Corporation will be evaluated after theremaining
stages of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement—impairment methodology, hedge accounting, and asset
and liability offsetting—are finalized. The current timetable for adoption of
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments is for the annual period beginning January 1, 2015;
however, the Corporation continues to monitor this standard in conjunction
with developments to IFRS 4.

IAS 32—Financial Instruments: Presentation Effective for the Corporation
onJanuary1,2014, IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation clarifies the existing
requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Corporation is evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
presentation of its financial statements.

EXPOSURE DRAFTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

IAS 177—Leases The IASB issued an exposure draft proposing a new
accounting model for leases where both lessees and lessors would record
theassetsand liabilities on the balance sheet at the present value of the lease
payments arising from all lease contracts. The new classification would be
theright-of-use model, replacing the operating and finance lease accounting
models that currently exist.

Thefullimpact of adoption of the proposed changes will be determined once
the final leases standard isissued.

IAS18—Revenue ThelASBissuedasecondexposuredraftin November201
which proposed a single revenue recognition standard to align the financial
reporting of revenue from contracts with customers and related costs.
A company would recognize revenue when it transfers goods or services
to a customer in the amount of the consideration the company expects to
receive from the customer.

The full impact of adoption of the proposed changes will be determined
once the final revenue recognition standard is issued, which is targeted for
releasein 2013.

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Cash 1,152 912
Cash equivalents 2,161 2,473
Cashand cash equivalents 3,313 3,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE4 INVESTMENTS

CARRYING VALUES AND FAIR VALUES
Carrying values and estimated fair values of investments are as follows:

2012 2011
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE

Bonds
Designated as fair value through profit or loss® 62,963 62,963 60,112 60,112
Classified as fair value through profit or loss!! 2,113 2,113 1,853 1,853
Available for sale 7,377 7,377 7,050 7,050
Loans and receivables 10,934 12,438 9,744 10,785
83,387 84,891 78,759 79,800

Mortgages and otherloans

Loansand receivables 22,548 23,787 21,226 22,514
Designated as fair value through profit or loss 249 249 292 292
22,797 24,036 21,518 22,806

Shares
Designated as fair value through profit or loss®! 5971 5971 5,502 5,502
Available for sale 825 825 900 900
6,796 6,796 6,402 6,402
Investment properties 3,525 3,525 3,201 3,201
Loans to policyholders 7,082 7,082 7,162 7162

123,587 126,330 117,042 119,371

[1] Investments can be categorized as fair value through profit or loss in two ways: designated as fair value through profit or loss at the option of management, or
classified as fairvalue through profit or loss if they are actively traded for the purpose of earning investmentincome.

BONDS AND MORTGAGES
Carrying value of bonds and mortgages due over the currentand non-current term are as follows:

CARRYING VALUE

TERM TO MATURITY

DECEMBER 31, 2012 1YEARORLESS 1-5YEARS OVER 5 YEARS TOTAL
Bonds 8,351 16,899 57,744 82,994
Mortgage loans 2,057 10,069 10,401 22,527

10,408 26,968 68,145 105,521

CARRYING VALUE

TERM TO MATURITY

DECEMBER 31, 2011 1YEAR ORLESS 1-5YEARS OVER 5 YEARS TOTAL
Bonds 7,627 17,450 53,367 78,444
Mortgage loans 2,042 8,916 10,249 21,207

9,669 26,366 63,616 99,651

The above table excludes the carrying value of impaired bonds and mortgages, as the ultimate timing of collectability is uncertain.
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NOTE4 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRED INVESTMENTS, ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES, INVESTMENTS WITH RESTRUCTURED TERMS

Carryingamount of impaired investments

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Impaired amounts by type
Fairvalue through profitorloss 365 290
Available for sale 27 51
Loansand receivables 41 36
Total 433 377

The allowance for credit losses and changes in the allowance for credit losses related to investments classified as loans and receivables are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year 37 68
Net provision (recovery) for credit losses (9) (13)
Write-offs, net of recoveries (5) (15)
Other (including foreign exchange rate changes) 1) (3)
Balance, end of year 22 37
The allowance for credit losses is supplemented by the provision for future credit losses included in insurance contract liabilities.
NET INVESTMENT INCOME
MORTGAGE
AND OTHER INVESTMENT
2012 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Regular netinvestmentincome:
Investmentincome earned 3,698 946 230 255 532 5,661
Net realized gains (losses) (available for sale) 124 - 2 - - 126
Net realized gains (losses) (other classifications) 10 46 2 - 1 59
Net recovery (provision) for credit losses (loans and receivables) 1 8 - - - 9
Otherincome (expenses) - (12) - (63) (69) (144)
3,833 988 234 192 464 5711
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit or loss assets:
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses) (classified fair value through
profit or loss) 22 5 - - 2 29
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses) (designated fair value
through profit orloss) 2,196 - 389 104 68) 2,621
2,218 5 389 104 (66) 2,650
Net investmentincome 6,051 993 623 296 398 8,361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE4 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
MORTGAGE
AND OTHER INVESTMENT
2011 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Regular netinvestmentincome:
Investmentincome earned 3,780 940 190 254 396 5,560
Net realized gains (losses) (available for sale) 119 - 7 - - 126
Net realized gains (losses) (other classifications) 11 33 - - - 44
Net recovery (provision) for credit losses (loans and receivables) 20 @) - - - 13
Otherincome (expenses) - 2) - (65) (66) (133)
3,930 964 197 189 330 5,610
Changes in fairvalue on fair value through profit or loss assets:
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses) (classified fair value through
profit orloss) 74 — - - — 74
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses) (designated fair value
through profit orloss) 4,166 @) (280) 143 58 4,080
4,240 @) (280) 143 58 4,154
Net investmentincome 8,170 957 (83) 332 388 9,764

Investment income earned comprises income from investments that
are classified as available for sale, loans and receivables and classified or
designated as fair value through profit or loss. Investment income from
bondsand mortgages and otherloansincludesinterestincomeand premium
and discount amortization. Income from shares includes dividends and

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

distributions. Investment properties income includes rental income earned
on investment properties, ground rent income earned on leased and sub-
leasedland, feerecoveries, lease cancellationincome, and interest and other
investmentincome earned on investment properties.

The carrying value of investment properties and changes in the carrying value of investment properties are as follows:

2012 2011

Balance, beginning of year 3,201 2,957
Additions 166 161
Changeinfairvalue through profitorloss 104 143
Disposals - (99)
Foreign exchange rate changes 54 39
Balance, end of year 3,525 3,201

TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

Lifeco engages in securities lending to generate additional income. Lifeco’s
securities custodians are used as lending agents. Collateral, which exceeds
the market value of the loaned securities, is deposited by the borrower
with Lifeco’s lending agent and maintained by the lending agent until the
underlying security has been returned. The market value of the loaned
securities is monitored on a daily basis by the lending agent, who obtains
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or refunds additional collateral as the fair value of the loaned securities
fluctuates. Included in the collateral deposited with Lifeco's lending agentis
cash collateral of S141million as at December 31,2012. Inaddition, the securities
lending agent indemnifies Lifeco against borrower risk, meaning that the
lending agent agrees contractually to replace securities not returned due
to aborrower default. As at December 31, 2012, Lifeco had loaned securities
(whichareincluded ininvested assets) with a market value of $5,930 million.



NOTES5 FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS

Included in funds held by ceding insurers of $10,537 million at December 31,2012
(59,923 million at December 31, 2011) is an agreement with Standard Life
Assurance Limited (Standard Life). During 2008, Canada Life International Re
Limited (CLIRE), Lifeco's indirect wholly owned Irish reinsurance subsidiary,
signed anagreementwith Standard Life, a U.K.-based provider of life, pension
and investment products, toassume by way of indemnity reinsurancealarge
block of payout annuities. Under the agreement, CLIRE is required to put
amountsondeposit with Standard Life and CLIRE has assumed the credit risk

Carrying values and estimated fair values:

on the portfolio of assetsincluded in theamounts on deposit. Theseamounts
on deposit are included in funds held by ceding insurers on the balance
sheets. Income and expensesarising from theagreementare included in net
investmentincome on the statements of earnings.

At December 31, 2012 CLIRE had amounts on deposit of $9,951 million
(89,411 million at December 31, 2011).

The details of the funds on deposit and related credit risk on the funds are
asfollows:

2012 2011
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
Cashand cash equivalents 120 120 49 49
Bonds 9,655 9,655 9,182 9,182
Otherassets 176 176 180 180
9,951 9,951 9,411 9,411
Supporting:
Reinsurance liabilities 9,406 9,406 9,082 9,082
Surplus 545 545 329 329
9,951 9,951 9,411 9,411
The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds included in the funds on deposit by industry sector:
DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Bondsissued or guaranteed by:
Canadian federal government 71 -
Provincial, state and municipal governments 16 88
U.S. treasury and other U.S. agencies 16 -
Otherforeign governments 2,455 3,074
Government-related 443 369
Supranationals 172 128
Asset-backed securities 258 242
Residential mortgage-backed securities 87 73
Banks 2,070 1,807
Other financial institutions 1,007 747
Basic materials 58 21
Communications 224 239
Consumer products 617 404
Industrial products/services 31 26
Natural resources 320 220
Real estate 475 381
Transportation 145 117
Utilities 1,119 1,135
Miscellaneous 71 111
Total bonds 9,655 9,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES5 FUNDS HELD BY CEDING INSURERS (CONTINUED)

The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds by asset quality:

BOND PORTFOLIO QUALITY

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
AAA 3,103 3,520
AA 2,183 1,819
A 3,539 3,116
BBB 507 468
BBand lower 323 259
Total bonds 9,655 9,182
NOTE 6 INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED CORPORATION
As at December 31,2012, Parjointco, 50% held by the Corporation, held a 55.6% equity interest in Pargesa (56.5% as at December 31, 201).
Pargesa’s financial information as at December 31,2012 can be obtained in its publicly available information.
Carrying value of the investment in ajointly controlled corporation is as follows:
2012 2011
Carrying value, beginning of year 2,222 2,448
Share of earnings (losses) 134 (20)
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) (100) (222)
Dividends (65) -
Other (42) 16
Carryingvalue, end of year 2,149 2,222

During 2012, Pargesa recorded an impairment charge on its investment in
GDF Suez. The Corporation’s net share of this charge was $48 million.

During 2011, Pargesa recorded an impairment charge on its investment in
Lafarge SA. An impairment test was performed as Lafarge’s share price
has persistently been at a level significantly below its carrying value. In
2011, the test was renewed in a weakened economic environment, and

64

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

led to determining a value in use below the existing carrying value. The
impairment recorded results in a reduction of the carrying value of Lafarge.
The Corporation’s share of this charge was $133 million.

Thefairvalue of the Corporation’'sindirectinterestin Pargesaisapproximately
$2,300 million as at December 31,2012. The carrying value of the investment
in Pargesa, adjusted forinvestment revaluation reserve, is $1,700 million.



NOTE 7 OWNER-OCCUPIED PROPERTIES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets and the changes in the carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets

are as follows:

2012 2011
OWNER- OWNER-
OCCUPIED CAPITAL OCCUPIED CAPITAL
DECEMBER 31 PROPERTIES ASSETS PROPERTIES ASSETS
Cost, beginning of year 577 846 521 802
Additions 33 93 52 77
Disposal - (32) - (16)
Change in foreign exchange rates (3) - 4 17)
Cost, end of year 607 907 577 846
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (36) (649) (32) (626)
Amortization ) (52) 4 (52)
Disposal - 24 = 11
Changeinforeign exchange rates - 3) = 18
Accumulated amortization, end of year (43) (680) (36) (649)
Carryingvalue, end of year 564 227 541 197
The following table provides details of the carrying value of owner-occupied properties and capital assets by geographic location:
DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Canada 589 536
United States 172 175
Europe 30 27
791 738
NOTE8 OTHER ASSETS
DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Accounts receivable 1,285 1,095
Interest due and accrued 1,096 1,106
Income taxes receivable 204 181
Premiums in course of collection 484 422
Deferred acquisition costs 541 529
Trading account assets 313 207
Prepaid expenses 120 129
Accrued benefit asset [Note 24] 495 456
Other 830 528
5,368 4,653
Itis expected that $4,248 million of otherassets will be realized within12 months from the reporting date.
Changes in deferred acquisition costs forinvestment contracts are as follows:
2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year 529 508
Additions 120 123
Amortization (69) (71)
Foreign exchange 9 6
Disposals (48) (37)
Balance, end of year 541 529
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTEQ GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

The carrying value of the goodwill and changes in the carrying value of the goodwill are as follows:

2012 2011
ACCUMULATED CARRYING ACCUMULATED CARRYING
DECEMBER 31 COST IMPAIRMENT VALUE COST IMPAIRMENT VALUE
Balance, beginning of year 9,703 (917) 8,786 9,607 (890) 8,717
Changein foreign exchange rates (31) 27 (4) 31 (27) 4
Other (109) - (109) 65 = 65
Balance, end of year 9,563 (890) 8,673 9,703 (917) 8,786
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The carrying value of the intangible assets and changes in the carrying value of the intangible assets are as follows:
INDEFINITE LIFE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SHAREHOLDER
PORTION OF
ACQUIRED
CUSTOMER FUTURE MUTUALFUND
BRANDS AND CONTRACT- PARTICIPATING MANAGEMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2012 TRADEMARKS RELATED ~ ACCOUNT PROFIT TRADE NAMES CONTRACTS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 726 2,321 354 285 740 4,426
Change in foreign exchange rates 9) (57) - - - (66)
Cost, end of year 717 2,264 354 285 740 4,360
Accumulated impairment, beginning of year (94) (825) - - - (919)
Changeinforeign exchange rates 3 23 - - - 26
Accumulated impairment, end of year (91) (802) - - - (893)
Carryingvalue, end of year 626 1,462 354 285 740 3,467
SHAREHOLDER
PORTION OF
ACQUIRED
CUSTOMER FUTURE MUTUALFUND
BRANDS AND CONTRACT- PARTICIPATING MANAGEMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2011 TRADEMARKS RELATED ACCOUNT PROFIT TRADE NAMES CONTRACTS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 714 2,264 354 285 740 4,357
Changeinforeign exchange rates 12 57 = = = 69
Cost, end of year 726 2,321 354 285 740 4,426
Accumulated impairment, beginning of year (91) (801) — — — (892)
Changein foreign exchange rates (3) (24) — - — 27)
Accumulated impairment, end of year (94) (825) - - - (919)
Carryingvalue, end of year 632 1,496 354 285 740 3,507
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NOTEG GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

FINITE LIFE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TECHNOLOGY
E(L)JSNTFORA:E'?' DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION PROPEAR’\'IFI?/ DESFEELRLTNEE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 RELATED CHANNELS CONTRACTS LEASES SOFTWARE COMMISSIONS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 571 100 107 25 545 1,551 2,899
Additions - - 3 - 105 212 320
Disposal/redemption - - - - (19) (103) (122)
Change in foreign exchange rates ) 3 - - (3) - )
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - 27 (212) (185)
Cost, end of year 564 103 110 25 655 1,448 2,905
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (204) (29) (33) (22) (295) (800) (1,383)
Amortization (31) (5) (8) (3) (72) (223) (342)
Disposal/redemption - - - - 15 59 74
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - - 212 212
Accumulated amortization, end of year (235) (34) (41) (25) (352) (752) (1,439)
Carrying value, end of year 329 69 69 - 303 696 1,466
TECHNOLOGY
EgVSV-[TOR’\/QE'?- DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION PROP?RNT"D/ DESFEEFLT:IE
DECEMBER 31, 2011 RELATED CHANNELS CONTRACTS LEASES SOFTWARE COMMISSIONS TOTAL
Cost, beginning of year 564 100 103 25 449 1,623 2,864
Additions = = 4 = 38 238 280
Disposal/redemption - - - - @) (104) (105)
Changeinforeign exchange rates 7 = = = 5 = 12
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - 54 (206) (152)
Cost, end of year 571 100 107 25 545 1,551 2,899
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year (169) (24) (26) 17) (240) (829) (1,305)
Amortization (34) 4) @) (5) (61) (237) (348)
Impairment = = = = (4) = (4)
Disposal/redemption = = = = = 60 60
Changein foreign exchange rates 1) (1) = - (3) - (5
Other, including write-off of assets fully amortized - - - - 13 206 219
Accumulated amortization, end of year (204) (29) (33) (22) (295) (800) (1,383)
Carryingvalue, end of year 367 71 74 3 250 751 1,516

RECOVERABLE AMOUNT

The recoverable amount of all cash generating units is determined as the
higher of fairvalueless cost to selland value-in-use. Fair value is determined
using a combination of commonly accepted valuation methodologies,
namely comparable trading multiples, comparable transaction multiplesand
discounted cash flow analysis. Comparable trading and transaction multiples
methodologies calculate value by applying multiples observed in the market
against historical results or projections approved by management, as
applicable. Value calculated by discounted cash flow analysis uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
aninitial period (typically four or five years). Value beyond the initial period is
derived from applying a terminal value multiple to the final year of the initial
projection period. The terminal value multiple is a function of the discount
rateand the estimated terminal growth rate. The estimated terminal growth
rateis not to exceed the long-term average growth rate (inflation rate) of the
markets in which the subsidiaries of the Corporation operate.

For Lifeco, the key assumptions used for the discounted cash flow calculations
are based on past experience and external sources of information. The key
assumptions are as follows:

> Risk-adjusted discount rates used for the calculation of presentvalue are
based on Lifeco's weighted average cost of capital.

> Economic assumptions are based on market yields on risk-free interest
rates at the end of each reporting period.

> Terminal growth rate represents the rate used to extrapolate new
business contributions beyond the business plan period, and is based on
management's estimate of future growth; itranges between 0% and 3.0%,
depending on the nature of the business.

ForIGM, the valuation models used to assess fairvalue utilized assumptions
thatincludelevels of growthin assets under management from net salesand
market pricingand margin changes, synergies achieved, discountrates, and
observable data from comparable transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTEQ GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The fair value less cost to sell was compared with the carrying amount of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets and it was determined there was no
impairmentin the value of these assets.

ALLOCATION TO CASH GENERATING UNITS
Goodwill and indefinite lifeintangible assets have been assigned to cash generating units as follows:

2012 2011
DECEMBER 31 GOODWILL INTANGIBLES TOTAL GOODWILL INTANGIBLES TOTAL
LIFECO
Canada
Group 1,142 - 1,142 1,142 = 1,142
Individual insurance / wealth management 3,028 973 4,001 3,028 973 4,001
Europe
Insurance and annuities 1,563 109 1,672 1,563 107 1,670
Reinsurance 1 - 1 1 = 1
United States
Financial services 123 - 123 127 = 127
Asset management - 1,360 1,360 = 1,402 1,402
IGM
Investors Group 1,443 - 1,443 1,500 = 1,500
Mackenzie 1,250 1,003 2,253 1,302 1,003 2,305
Otherand corporate 123 22 145 123 22 145
8,673 3,467 12,140 8,786 3,507 12,293
NOTE 10 SEGREGATED FUNDS
INVESTMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS
DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 4 837 5,334
Bonds 24,070 21,594
Mortgage loans 2,303 2,303
Shares (69,254 63,885
Investment properties 6,149 5,457
Accrued income 239 287
Other liabilities (1,904) (2,278)
104,948 96,582
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NOTE 10 SEGREGATED FUNDS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT AND INSURANCE CONTRACTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year 96,582 94,827
Additions (deductions):
Policyholder deposits 13,819 13,462
Netinvestmentincome 1,189 755
Net realized capital gains (losses) on investments 1,094 1,048
Net unrealized capital gains (losses) on investments 4316 (3,539)
Unrealized gains (losses) due to changes in foreign exchange rates (213) 887
Policyholder withdrawals (11,831) (10,876)
Net transfer from General Fund (8) 18
8,366 1,755
Balance, end of year 104,948 96,582
NOTE 1T INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Insurance contract liabilities 119,919 2,064 117,855
Investment contract liabilities 739 - 739
120,658 2,064 118,594
GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2011 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Insurance contract liabilities 114,730 2,061 112,669
Investment contract liabilities 782 = 782
115,512 2,061 113,451
COMPOSITION OF INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND RELATED SUPPORTING ASSETS
The composition of insurance and investment contract liabilities of Lifeco is as follows:
GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Participating
Canada 27,851 (88) 27,939
United States 8,942 14 8,928
Europe 1,241 - 1,241
Non-participating
Canada 27,283 746 26,537
United States 17,356 241 17,115
Europe 37,985 1,151 36,834
120,658 2,064 118,594
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NOTE 11 INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

GROSS REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31, 2011 LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Participating
Canada 26,470 (50) 26,520
United States 8,639 18 8,621
Europe 1,230 = 1,230
Non-participating
Canada 27,099 919 26,180
United States 16,657 276 16,381
Europe 35,417 898 34,519
115,512 2,061 113,451
The composition of the assets supporting liabilities and equity of Lifeco is as follows:
MORTGAGE INVESTMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2012 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Carryingvalue
Participating liabilities
Canada 12,818 6,903 4,221 932 2,977 27,851
United States 4,307 188 - - 4,447 8,942
Europe 874 40 162 19 146 1,241
Non-participating liabilities
Canada 17,519 4,428 1,565 3 3,768 27,283
United States 14,280 2,464 - - 612 17,356
Europe 22,420 2,827 127 2,173 10,438 37,985
Other 6,507 493 - 4 108,470 115,474
Total equity 3,811 532 1,023 394 11,826 17,586
Total carrying value 82,536 17,875 7,098 3,525 142,684 253,718
Fairvalue 84,040 19,067 7,136 3,525 142,684 256,452
MORTGAGE INVESTMENT
DECEMBER 31, 2011 BONDS LOANS SHARES PROPERTIES OTHER TOTAL
Carryingvalue
Participating liabilities
Canada 11,862 6,686 3,864 507 3,551 26,470
United States 4,059 152 - - 4,428 8,639
Europe 855 56 176 22 121 1,230
Non-participating liabilities
Canada 16,674 4,738 1,329 20 4,338 27,099
United States 13,523 2,369 - - 765 16,657
Europe 20,449 2,506 119 2,092 10,251 35,417
Other 6,563 484 - 6 100,099 107,152
Total equity 4,088 441 1,216 554 9,805 16,104
Total carrying value 78,073 17,432 6,704 3,201 133,358 238,768
Fairvalue 79,114 18,662 6,772 3,201 133,358 241,107

Cashflows of assets supporting insurance and investment contract liabilities ~ Changesin the fair values of assets backing capital and surplus, less related
are matched within reasonable limits. Changes in the fair values of these  income taxes, would result in a corresponding change in surplus over time
assets are essentially offset by changes in the fair value of insurance and  inaccordance with investmentaccounting policies.

investment contract liabilities.
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NOTE 11

CHANGES IN INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The changeininsurance contract liabilities during the year was the result of the following business activities and changes in actuarial estimates:

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

PARTICIPATING

NON-PARTICIPATING

GROSS

REINSURANCE

GROSS

REINSURANCE

TOTAL

DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET NET
Balance, beginning of year 36,303 (32) 36,335 78,427 2,093 76,334 112,669
Impact of new business 72 - 72 4664 326 4 338 4410
Normal changeinforce 1,621 6) 1,627 (528) 35 (563) 1,064
Management action and changes in assumptions (260) (34) (226) (380) (306) (74) (300)
Business movement from/to external parties - - - (48) (7) (41) (41)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (262) (2) (260) 310 (3) 313 53
Impact of Crown amalgamation 529 - 529 (529) - (529) -
Balance, end of year 38,003 (74) 38,077 81,916 2,138 79,778 117,855
PARTICIPATING NON-PARTICIPATING

GROSS REINSURANCE GROSS REINSURANCE TOTAL

DECEMBER 31, 2011 LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET NET
Balance, beginning of year 34,398 25 34,373 73,007 2,508 70,499 104,872
Crown Ancillary reclassification (89) - (89) 89 - 89 -
Impact of new business 133 = 133 3,088 (329) 3,417 3,550
Normal changeinforce 1,719 (14) 1,733 1,910 476 1,434 3,167
Management action and changes in assumptions (139) (45) (94) (806) (583) (223) (317)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 281 2 279 1,139 21 1118 1,397
Balance, end of year 36,303 (32) 36,335 78,427 2,093 76,334 112,669

Under fair value accounting, movement in the fair value of the supporting
assets is a major factor in the movement of insurance contract liabilities.
Changesinthefairvalue of assetsare largely offset by corresponding changes
inthefairvalue of liabilities. The changein the value of the insurance contract
liabilities associated with the changein the value of the supporting assetsis
includedin the normal changein force above.

In 2012, the major contributors to the increase in net insurance contract
liabilities were the impact of new business ($4,410 million increase) and the
normal change in the in-force business (51,064 million increase), primarily
due to the changein fairvalue.

Lifeco's net non-participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by
$74 million in 2012 due to management actions and assumption changes
including a $138 million decrease in Canada, a $97 million increase in Europe
and a $33 million decrease in the United States.

The decreasein Canada was primarily due to updated lifeinsurance mortality
(579 million decrease), updated expenses and taxes ($75 million decrease),
modelling refinements across the Canadian segment (571 million decrease),
updated longevity assumptions (521 million decrease) and updated morbidity
assumptions ($9 million decrease), partially offset by provisions forasset and
mismatch risk (§66 million increase) and increased provisions for policyholder
behaviourinindividual insurance (541 million increase).

Theincreasein Europe was primarily due to updated longevity improvement
assumptions (5348 million increase), increased provisions for policyholder
behaviour in reinsurance ($109 million increase), increase in provision for
expensesand taxes (536 million increase), modelling refinements ($32 million
increase), increased provisions for asset and mismatch risk ($15 million
increase)and updated morbidity assumptions ($3 millionincrease), partially
offset by updated base longevity assumptions ($358 million decrease) and
updated lifeinsurance mortality (585 million decrease).

The decreasein the United States was primarily due to updated life mortality
(533 million decrease), updated longevity assumptions (53 million decrease),
decrease in provisions for policyholder behaviour (53 million decrease) and
updated expenses and taxes (51 million decrease), partially offset by provisions
forasset and mismatch risk (57 million increase).

Net participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $226 million
in 2012 due to management actions and assumption changes. The decrease
was primarily due to decreases in the provision for future policyholder
dividends (52,078 million decrease), improved Individual Life mortality
(8124 million decrease), updated expenses and taxes (592 million decrease)
and modelling refinements in Canada ($10 million decrease), partially offset
by lower investment returns (52,056 million increase), increased provisions
for policyholder behaviour ($19 million increase) and updated morbidity
assumptions (53 million increase).

In 201, the major contributors to the increase in net insurance contract
liabilities were the impact of new business (53,550 million increase) and the
normal changein the in-force business ($3,167 million increase) primarily due
to the changein fairvalue.

Net non-participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $223 million
in 2011 due to management actions and assumption changes, including
a $68 million decrease in Canada, a $132 million decrease in Europe and a
$23 million decrease in the United States.

Lifecoadopted therevised Actuarial Standards of Practice for subsection 2350
relating to future mortality improvementin insurance contract liabilities for
lifeinsurance and annuities. The resulting decrease in net non-participating
insurance contract liabilities for life insurance was $446 million, including a
$182 million decrease in Canada, a $242 million decrease in Europe (primarily
reinsurance) and a $22 million decrease in the United States. The resulting
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NOTE 11

change in net insurance contract liabilities for annuities was a $47 million
increase, including a $53 million increase in Canada, a $58 million decrease
in Europeanda $52 millionincreaseinthe U.S.

The remaining increase in Canada was primarily due to increased provisions
for policyholder behaviour in Individual Insurance (5172 million increase),
provision for asset liability matching (5147 million increase), updated
base annuity mortality (543 million increase) and a reclassification
from miscellaneous liabilities ($29 million increase), partially offset by
updated expenses and taxes ($137 million decrease), updated morbidity
assumptions (5101 million decrease), updated base life insurance mortality
(538 million decrease), modelling refinements across the Canadian segment
(540 million decrease) and reinsurance-related management actions
(816 million decrease).

The remaining increase in Europe was primarily due to increased provisions
for policyholder behaviour in reinsurance (5227 million increase), updated
base life insurance mortality ($50 million increase) and updated morbidity

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

assumptions ($15 million increase), partially offset by modelling refinements
inthe U.K. and Reinsurance segments (569 million decrease), updated base
annuity mortality (542 million decrease), and reduced provisions for asset
liability matching (516 million decrease).

The remaining decrease in the United States was primarily due to updated
base annuity mortality (528 million decrease) and updated base lifeinsurance
mortality (523 million decrease).

Net participating insurance contract liabilities decreased by $94 millionin 2011
due to management actions and assumption changes. The decrease was
primarily due to decreases in the provision for future policyholder dividends
(81,556 million decrease), modelling refinements in Canada ($256 million
decrease), improved Individual Life mortality (5256 million decrease, including
$27 million from the Standards of Practice revision) and updated expenses
and taxes (515 million decrease), partially offset by lower investment returns
(51,952 million increase), and increased provisions for policyholder behaviour
(S40 million increase).

CHANGES IN INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year 782 791
Normal change in-force business (87) (54)
Investment experience 51 35
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (7) 10
Balance, end of year 739 782

The carrying value of investment contract liabilities approximates their fair
value. No investment contract liabilities have been reinsured.

CANADIAN UNIVERSAL LIFE EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES
Lifeco bifurcated the index-linked component of the universal life contracts
as thisembedded derivative is not closely related to the insurance host and
is not itself an insurance contract. The forward contracts are contractual
agreements in which the policyholder is entitled to the performance of the
underlying index. The policyholder may select one or more indices from a
list of majorindices.

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

In the computation of insurance contract liabilities, valuation assumptions
have been made regarding rates of mortality/morbidity, investment
returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of policy termination and
rates of utilization of elective policy options or provisions. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future experience together with
a margin for adverse deviation. These margins are necessary to provide
for possibilities of misestimation and/or future deterioration in the best
estimate assumptions and provide reasonable assurance that insurance
contractliabilities coverarange of possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed
periodically for continued appropriateness.

The methods forarriving at these valuation assumptions are outlined below:

Mortality A life insurance mortality study is carried out annually for each
major block of insurance business. The results of each study are used to update
Lifeco's experience valuation mortality tables for that business. When there
isinsufficient data, useis made of the latestindustry experience to derive an
appropriate valuation mortality assumption. The actuarial standards were
amended to remove the requirement that, for life insurance, any reduction
in liabilities due to mortality improvement assumption be offset by an equal
amount of provision foradverse deviation. Appropriate provisions have been
made for future mortality deterioration on term insurance.
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Annuitant mortality is also studied regularly and the results are used
to modify established industry experience annuitant mortality tables.
Mortality improvement has been projected to occur throughout future
years forannuitants.

Morbidity Lifeco uses industry-developed experience tables modified to
reflect emerging Lifeco experience. Both claim incidence and termination
are monitored reqgularly and emerging experience is factored into the
currentvaluation.

Property and casualty reinsurance Insurance contract liabilities for
propertyand casualty reinsurance written by London Reinsurance Group Inc.
(LRG), a subsidiary of London Life, are determined using accepted actuarial
practicesforpropertyand casualtyinsurersin Canada. The insurance contract
liabilities have been established using cash flow valuation techniques,
including discounting. The insurance contract liabilities are based on
cession statements provided by ceding companies. In certaininstances, LRG
management adjusts cession statement amounts to reflect management’s
interpretation of the treaty. Differences will be resolved via audits and
other loss mitigation activities. In addition, insurance contract liabilities
also include an amount for incurred but not reported losses which may
differ significantly from the ultimate loss development. The estimates
and underlying methodology are continually reviewed and updated, and
adjustments to estimates are reflected in earnings. LRG analyses the
emergence of claims experience against expected assumptions for each
reinsurance contract separately and at the portfolio level. If necessary, a more
in-depth analysis is undertaken of the cedant experience.

Investment returns The assets which correspond to the different liability
categories are segmented. For each segment, projected cash flows from
the current assets and liabilities are used in the Canadian Asset Liability
Method to determine insurance contract liabilities. Cash flows from assets
arereduced to provide forasset defaultlosses. Testing under several interest
rateand equity scenarios (including increasing and decreasing rates) is done
to provide for reinvestment risk (refer to Note 21).



NOTE 11

Expenses Contractual policy expenses (e.g., sales commissions) and tax
expensesarereflected on a best estimate basis. Expense studies for indirect
operating expenses are updated reqgularly to determine an appropriate
estimate of future operating expenses for the liability type being valued.
Improvements in unit operating expenses are not projected. An inflation
assumption is incorporated in the estimate of future operating expenses
consistent with the interest rate scenarios projected under the Canadian
Asset Liability Method as inflation is assumed to be correlated with new
money interest rates.

Policy termination Studies to determine rates of policy termination are
updated regularly to form the basis of this estimate. Industry data is also
available and is useful where Lifeco has no experience with specific types of
policies orits exposureis limited. Lifeco has significant exposures in respect
of theT-100 and Level Cost of Insurance Universal Life products in Canada and
policy termination rates at the renewal period for renewable term policiesin
Canadaand Reinsurance. Industry experience has guided Lifeco’s persistency
assumption for these products as Lifeco's own experienceis very limited.

Utilization of elective policy options There are a wide range of elective
options embedded in the policies issued by Lifeco. Examples include term
renewals, conversion to whole life insurance (term insurance), settlement
annuity purchase at guaranteed rates (deposit annuities) and guarantee
resets (segregated fund maturity guarantees). The assumed rates of
utilization are based on Lifeco or industry experience when it exists and,
whennot, onjudgment considering incentives to utilize the option. Generally,
whenever it is clearly in the best interests of an informed policyholder to
utilize an option, then itisassumed to be elected.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Policyholder dividends and adjustable policy features Future
policyholder dividends and other adjustable policy features are included
in the determination of insurance contract liabilities with the assumption
that policyholder dividends or adjustable benefits will change in the future
inresponseto therelevant experience. Thedividend and policy adjustments
are determined consistent with policyholders reasonable expectations, such
expectations being influenced by the participating policyholder dividend
policies and/or policyholder communications, marketing material and past
practice. It is Lifeco's expectation that changes will occur in policyholder
dividend scales oradjustable benefits for participating oradjustable business
respectively, corresponding to changes in the best estimate assumptions,
resulting inanimmaterial net change ininsurance contractliabilities. Where
underlying guarantees may limit the ability to pass all of this experience
back to the policyholder, the impact of this non-adjustability impacting
shareholder earnings is reflected in the impact of changes in best estimate
assumptions above.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Insurance risk Insurance risk is the risk that the insured event occurs
and that there are large deviations between expected and actual actuarial
assumptions, including mortality, persistency, longevity, morbidity, expense
variations and investment returns.

Asaninsurance company, Lifecoisin the business of acceptingrisk associated
with insurance contractliabilities. Lifeco’s objectiveis to mitigate its exposure
to risk arising from these contracts through product design, product and
geographical diversification, theimplementation of its underwriting strategy
guidelines, and through the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The following table providesinformation about Lifeco’s insurance contract liabilities' sensitivities to management's best estimate of the approximate impact
asaresultof changesinassumptions used to determine Lifeco’s liability associated with these contracts.

2012 2011
IMPACT ON POWER IMPACT ON POWER
CHANGES IN LIFECO PROFIT FINANCIAL'S CHANGES IN LIFECO PROFIT FINANCIAL'S
ASSUMPTIONS ORLOSS SHARE ASSUMPTIONS ORLOSS SHARE
Mortality (increase) 2% (208) (147) 2% (188) (133)
Annuitant mortality (decrease) 2% (274) (194) 2% (176) (124)
Morbidity (adverse change) 5% (188) (133) 5% (181) (128)
Investment returns
Parallel shiftinyield curve
Increase 1% 121 85 1% 123 87
Decrease 1% (504) (356) 1% (511) (361)
Changeinequity markets
Increase 10% 18 13 10% 21 15
Decrease 10% (96) (68) 10% (57) (40)
Changein best estimate returns for equities
Increase 1% 342 242 1% 292 206
Decrease 1% (376) (266) 1% (316) (223)
Expenses (increase) 5% (56) (40) 5% (55) (39)
Policy termination (adverse change) 10% (473) (334) 10% (435) (307)
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NOTE 11

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Concentration risk may arise from geographic regions, accumulation of risks and market risks. The concentration of insurance risk before and after reinsurance

by geographicregion is described below.

2012 2011

GROSS  REINSURANCE GROSS  REINSURANCE
DECEMBER 31 LIABILITY ASSETS NET LIABILITY ASSETS NET
Canada 55134 658 54,476 53,569 869 52,700
United States 26,298 255 26,043 25,296 294 25,002
Europe 39,226 1,151 38,075 36,647 898 35,749
120,658 2,064 118,594 115,512 2,061 113,451

Reinsurance risk Maximum limits per insured life benefit amount (which
vary by line of business) are established for life and health insurance and
reinsuranceis purchased foramounts in excess of those limits.

Reinsurance costsand recoveries as defined by the reinsurance agreementare
reflected in thevaluation with these costsand recoveries being appropriately
calibrated to the directassumptions.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve Lifeco from its obligations to
policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to honour their obligations could result
in losses to Lifeco. Lifeco evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers
to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies.

Certain of the reinsurance contracts are on a funds withheld basis where
Lifeco retains the assets supporting the reinsured insurance contract
liabilities, thus minimizing the exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvency on those contracts.

NOTE 12 OBLIGATION TO SECURITIZATION ENTITIES

IGM securitizes residential mortgages through the Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation (CMHC)-sponsored National Housing Act Mortgage-
Backed Securities (NHA MBS) Program and Canada Mortgage Bond (CMB)
Program and through Canadian bank-sponsored asset-backed commercial
paper (ABCP) programs. These transactions do not meet the requirements
for derecognition as IGM retains prepayment risk and certain elements of
credit risk. Accordingly, IGM has retained these mortgages on its balance
sheets and has recorded an offsetting liability for the net proceeds received
as obligations to securitization entities which is carried at amortized cost.

IGM earns interest on the mortgages and pays interest on the obligations
to securitization entities. As part of the CMB transactions, IGM enters
into a swap transaction whereby IGM pays coupons on CMBs and receives
investment returns on the NHA MBS and the reinvestment of repaid

mortgage principal. A component of this swap, related to the obligation
to pay CMB coupons and receive investment returns on repaid mortgage
principal, isrecorded asaderivative and had a negative fair value of $56 million
at December 31, 2012

Under the NHA MBS and CMB Programs, IGM has an obligation to make
timely payments to security holders regardless of whether amounts are
received from mortgagors. All mortgages securitized under the NHA MBS and
CMB Programs are insured by CMHC or another approved insurer under the
program. As part of the ABCP transactions, IGM has provided cash reserves
for credit enhancement which are carried at cost. Credit risk is limited to
these cashreservesand future netinterestincomeas the ABCP Trusts have no
recourse to IGM's otherassets for failure to make payments when due. Credit
riskis furtherlimited to the extent these mortgages are insured.

DECEMBER 31, 2012 MORTGAGES SECURITIZATION ENTITIES NeT
Carryingvalue
NHA MBS and CMB Programs 3,285 3,312 27)
Bank-sponsored ABCP 1,354 1,389 (35)
Total 4,639 4,701 (62)
Fairvalue 4,685 4,787 (102)

The carryingvalue of obligations to securitization entities, which is recorded net of issue costs, includes principal payments received on securitized mortgages
thatare not due to be settled until after the reporting period. Issue costs are amortized over the life of the obligation on an effective interest rate basis.
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NOTE 15 DEBENTURES AND DEBT INSTRUMENTS

2012 2011
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
DEBT INSTRUMENTS
GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.
Commercial paper and other short-term debt instruments with interest rates from 0.27%
t00.35% (0.20% to 0.39% in 2011) 97 97 100 100
Revolving credit facility with interest equal to LIBOR rate plus1% or U.S. prime rate loan
(US$200 million) 198 198 204 204
Term note due October18, 2015, bearing an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.75%
(USS$304 million), unsecured 301 301 304 308
Notes payable with interest rate of 8.0% due May 6, 2014, unsecured 2 2 3 3
TOTALDEBT INSTRUMENTS 598 598 611 615
DEBENTURES
POWER FINANCIALCORPORATION
6.90% debentures, due March 11, 2033, unsecured 250 324 250 295
GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.
6.14% debentures due March 21, 2018, unsecured 199 234 199 229
4.65% debentures due August 13, 2020, unsecured 498 557 497 522
6.40% subordinated debentures due December 11,2028, unsecured 100 117 100 115
6.74% debentures due November 24, 2031, unsecured 191 256 190 237
6.67% debentures due March 21, 2033, unsecured 397 512 397 472
6.625% deferrable debentures due November15, 2034, unsecured (US$175 million) 170 176 175 170
5.998% debentures due November16, 2039, unsecured 342 431 343 383
Subordinated debentures due May 16, 2046, bearing an interest rate of 7153% until May 16, 2016
and, thereafter, a rate of 2.538% plus the 3-month LIBOR rate, unsecured (US$300 million) 296 307 310 298
Subordinated debentures due June 21,2067, bearing an interest rate of 5.691% until jJune 21, 2017
and, thereafter, at arate equal to the Canadian 90-day bankers'acceptance rate plus
1.49%, unsecured 995 1,097 994 1,028
Subordinated debentures due June 26,2068, bearing an interest rate of 7127% until
June 26,2018 and, thereafter, at a rate equal to the Canadian 90-day bankers'acceptance
rate plus 3.78%, unsecured 497 592 497 551
IGM FINANCIALINC.
6.58% debentures 2003 Series, due March 7, 2018, unsecured 150 176 150 175
7.35% debentures 2009 Series, due April 8, 2019, unsecured 375 466 375 457
6.65% debentures1997 Series, due December13, 2027, unsecured 125 151 125 148
7.45% debentures 2001 Series, due May 9, 2031, unsecured 150 194 150 189
7.00% debentures 2002 Series, due December 31,2032, unsecured 175 220 175 213
7N% debentures 2003 Series, due March7,2033, unsecured 150 190 150 185
6.00% debentures 2010 Series, due December10, 2040, unsecured 200 232 200 220
TOTAL DEBENTURES 5,260 6,232 5,277 5,887
5,858 6,830 5,888 6,502
On May 9, 2011, IGM repaid the $450 million 2001 Series 6.75% debentures which had matured.
The principal payments on debentures and debt instruments in each of the next five years is as follows:
2013 296
2014 1
2015 301
2016 -
2017 -
Thereafter 5,260
75

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14 CAPITAL TRUST SECURITIES

2012 2011

CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
GREAT-WEST LIFE CAPITALTRUST

5.995% capital trust securities due December 31,2052, unsecured - - 350 363

CANADA LIFE CAPITALTRUST

6.679% capital trust securities due June 30, 2052, unsecured - - 300 307

7.529% capital trust securities due June 30, 2052, unsecured 150 216 150 197

150 216 800 867

Acquisition-related fairvalue adjustment 14 - 15 =

Trust securities held by subsidiaries of Lifeco as investments (45) (45) (44) (44)

Trust securities held by Lifeco as investments - - (238) (246)

119 171 533 577

Canada Life Capital Trust (CLCT) redeemed all of its outstanding $300 million
principalamount Canada Life Capital Securities—Series A (CLICS—Series A) on
June 29,2012 at par. Lifeco previously held $122 million of these CLICS—Series A
asalong-terminvestment.

Great-West Life Capital Trust redeemed all of its outstanding $350 million
principal amount Great-West Life Capital Trust Securities—Series A on
December 31, 2012 at par. Lifeco previously held $116 million of these capital
trust securitiesasalong-terminvestment.

NOTE 15 OTHER LIABILITIES

CLCT, a trust established by Canada Life, had issued $150 million of Canada
Life Capital Securities—Series B (CLICS—Series B), the proceeds of which
were used by CLCT to purchase Canada Life senior debenturesin theamount
of $150 million.

Distributions and interest on the capital trust securities are classified as
financing charges on the statements of earnings (see Note 23). The fair value
for capital trust securities is determined by the bid-ask price.

Subject to regulatory approval, CLCT may redeem the CLiCS—Series B, in
wholeorinpart, atany time.

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Bank overdraft 448 437
Accounts payable 1,842 1,760
Dividends and interest payable 332 330
Income taxes payable 684 513
Repurchase agreements 225 250
Deferred income reserves 427 406
Depositsand certificates 163 151
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 335 169
Accrued benefit liability [Note 24] 920 867
Other 935 953

6,311 5,836

Itis expected that $4,205 million of other liabilities will be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED INCOME RESERVES
Changesin deferred income reserves are as follows:

2012 2011

Balance, beginning of year 406 377
Additions 103 97
Amortization (42) (38)
Foreign exchange 8 5
Disposals (48) (35)
Balance, end of year 427 406

DEPOSITS AND CERTIFICATES

Included inassetson the balance sheetsare cash and cash equivalents, shares, loans, and accounts and other receivables amounting to $163 million ($151 million

at December 31, 201) related to deposits and certificates.

TERM TO MATURITY

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
2012 2011
DEMAND 1YEAR OR LESS 1-5YEARS OVERSYEARS TOTAL TOTAL
Deposits 136 9 12 2 159 147
Certificates - - 1 3 4 4
136 9 13 5 163 151
NOTE 16 INCOME TAXES
EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE
The Corporation’s effective income tax rate is derived as follows:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Combined basic Canadian federal and provincial tax rates 26.5 28.0
Increase (decrease) in the income tax rate resulting from:
Non-taxableinvestmentincome (5.4) (3.4)
Lower effective tax rates on income not subject to tax in Canada (2.0) (2.5)
Earnings of investmentin jointly controlled corporation (1.0 0.2
Impact of rate changes on deferred income taxes 0.1) 0.2)
Loss consolidation transaction - (0.4)
Other (1.9) (2.1)
Effectiveincome taxrate 16.1 19.6
Asof January1, 2012, the federal corporate tax rate decreased from16.5% t015.0%.
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The components of income tax expense on continuing operations recognized in net earnings are:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Currentincome taxes 603 519
Deferred income taxes (40) 187
563 706
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NOTE 16 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes consist of the following taxable temporary differences on:

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Insurance and investment contract liabilities (272) (321)
Loss carry forwards 1,184 1,007
Investments (839) (788)
Deferred selling commissions (186) (197)
Intangible assets 77 162
Other @) 86
(43) (51)

Classified on the balance sheets as:
Deferred income tax assets 1,170 1,207
Deferred income tax liabilities (1,213) (1,258)
43) (51)

Adeferred income taxassetis recognized for deductible temporary difference
and unused losses and carry forwards only to the extent that realization of
therelated income tax benefit through future taxable profitsis probable.

Recognition is based on the fact that it is probable that the entity will have
taxable profits and/or tax planning opportunities available to allow the
deferred income taxasset to be utilized. Changesin circumstancesinfuture
periods may adversely impact the assessment of the recoverability. The
uncertainty of the recoverability is taken into account in establishing the
deferred income tax assets.

Management of the Corporation and its subsidiaries assesses the
recoverability of the deferred income tax asset carrying values based on
future years' taxable income projections and believes the carrying values
of the deferred income tax assets as of December 31,2012 are recoverable.

At December 31,2012 Lifeco had taxloss carry forwards totalling $3,600 million
(63,013 millionin 2011). Of thisamount, $3,471 million expires between 2013 and
2032, while $129 million has no expiry date. Lifeco will realize this benefit in
futureyears through a reduction in currentincome taxes payable.

One of Lifeco's subsidiaries has had a history of recent losses. The subsidiary
has a net deferred tax asset balance of $1,088 million (US$1,088 million) as at
December 31, 2012 composed principally of net operating losses and future
deductions related to goodwill which has been previously impaired for book
accounting purposes. Management of Lifeco has concluded thatitis probable
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that the subsidiary and other historically profitable subsidiaries with which
it files orintends to file a consolidated United States income tax return will
generate sufficient taxable income against which the unused United States
losses and deductions will be utilized. Certain state net operating losses in
the amount of $46 million (US$46 million) which were incurred before 2012,
otherstate temporary differences of $99 million (US$100 million) and federal
charitable contributions of $9 million (US$9 million) have been excluded from
the deferred tax assets.

A deferred income tax liability has not been recognized in respect of the
temporary differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, branches
and a jointly controlled corporation as the Corporation and its subsidiaries
are able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences,
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Asat December 31,2012, the Corporationandits subsidiaries have non-capital
losses of $288 million ($311 million in 2011) available to reduce future taxable
income for which the benefits have not been recognized. These losses expire
atvarious datesto2032. Inaddition, the Corporation and its subsidiaries have
capitalloss carry forwards that can be used indefinitely to offset future capital
gains of approximately $96 million (596 million in 2011) for which the benefits
have not been recognized.



NOTE 17 STATED CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED
Unlimited number of first preferred shares, issuable in series; of second preferred shares, issuable in series; and of common shares.

ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING

2012 2011
NUMBER STATED NUMBER STATED
DECEMBER 31 OF SHARES CAPITAL OF SHARES CAPITAL
First Preferred Shares (perpetual)
Series All 4,000,000 100 4,000,000 100
Series DIl 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series Elil 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series Fivl 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series HY 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series |V 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series KWil 10,000,000 250 10,000,000 250
Series LWil 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series M 7,000,000 175 7,000,000 175
Series O™ 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series P 11,200,000 280 11,200,000 280
Series RK 10,000,000 250 = =
2,255 2,005
COMMON SHARES il 709,104,080 664 708,173,680 639
COMMON SHARES
Balance, beginning of year 708,173,680 639 708,013,680 636
Issued under Stock Option Plan 930,400 25 160,000 3
Balance, end of year 709,104,080 664 708,173,680 639

U

(if]

[iii]

[iv]

[v]

The Series A First Preferred Shares are entitled to an annual cumulative
dividend at a floating rate equal to 70% of the prime rate of two major
Canadian chartered banks and are redeemable, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share.

The 5.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series D are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.375 per share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series D First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.25% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series E are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.3125 per share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series E First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.90% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series F are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.475 per share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series F First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

The 5.75% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series H are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.4375 per share perannum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series H First Preferred Shares in whole orin part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

[vi] The 6.00% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series | are entitled

to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.50 per share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series | First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.00 per share, together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

[vii] The 4.95% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series K are entitled

to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.2375 per share perannum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series K First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.50 per share if redeemed prior to October 31, 2013,
$25.25 per shareif redeemed thereafterand prior to October 31,2014, and
$25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each case together with all
declaredand unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

[viii] The 5.10% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series L are entitled

to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.2750 per share perannum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series L First Preferred Shares in whole or in part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $25.75 per share if redeemed prior to October 31, 2013,
$25.50 per share if redeemed thereafter and prior to October 31, 2014,
$25.25 per shareif redeemed thereafterand prior to October 31,2015, and
$25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each case together with all
declaredand unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

lix] The6.00% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series M are entitled

to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.50 per share per annum. On January 31, 2014 and on January 31 every
five years thereafter, the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series M
First Preferred sharesinwhole orin part, at the Corporation’s option, at
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NOTE 17 STATED CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

$25.00 pershare plus all declared and unpaid dividends to the date fixed
for redemption, or the Series M First Preferred Shares are convertible
to Non-Cumulative Floating Rate First Preferred Shares, Series N, at
the option of the holders on January 31, 2014 or on January 31 every five
years thereafter.

[x] Theb5.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series O are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$1.45 per share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the
Series O First Preferred Shares in whole orin part, at the Corporation’s
option, at $26.00 per share if redeemed prior to October 31, 2015,
$25.75 per share if redeemed thereafter and prior to October 31, 2016,
$25.50 per share if redeemed thereafter and prior to October 31, 2017,
$25.25 pershareif redeemed thereafterand prior to October 31,2018, and
$25.00 per share if redeemed thereafter, in each case together with all
declared and unpaid dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption.

[xil] The4.40% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series P are entitled
to fixed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to
$110 per share per annum. On January 31, 2016 and on January 31 every
fiveyears thereafter, the Corporation may redeem for cash the Series P
First Preferred Sharesinwhole orin part, at the Corporation’'s option, at
$25.00 pershare plus all declared and unpaid dividends to the date fixed
for redemption, or the Series P First Preferred Shares are convertible

NOTE 18 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

DEFERRED SHARE UNIT PLAN

On October 1, 2000, the Corporation established a Deferred Share Unit
Plan for the Directors of the Corporation to promote a greater alignment
of interests between Directors and shareholders of the Corporation. Under
this plan, each Director may elect to receive his or her annual retainer and
attendance fees entirely in the form of deferred share units, entirely in
cash, or equally in cash and deferred share units. The number of deferred
share units granted is determined by dividing the amount of remuneration
payable by the five-day-average closing price on the Toronto Stock Exchange
of the Common Shares of the Corporation on the last five days of the fiscal
quarter (the value of a deferred share unit). A Director who has elected to
receive deferred share units will receive additional deferred share units in
respect of dividends payable on the Common Shares, based on thevalue of a
deferred shareunitat thattime. Adeferred share unitis payable, atthetimea
Director'smembership onthe Board is terminated orin the event of the death
of a Director, by a lump sum cash payment, based on the value of a deferred
shareunitat that time. At December 31, 2012, the value of the deferred share
units outstanding was $13 million ($10 million in 2011). Alternatively, Directors
may participate in the Directors Share Purchase Plan.

to Non-Cumulative Floating Rate First Preferred Shares, Series Q, at
the option of the holders on January 31, 2016 or on January 31 every five
years thereafter.

In 2012, the Corporation issued 10,000,000 5.50% Non-Cumulative First
Preferred Shares, Series R for cash proceeds of $250 million. The 5.50%
Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series R are entitled to fixed
non-cumulative preferential cash dividends at a rate equal to $1.375 per
share per annum. The Corporation may redeem for cash the Series R

[xii

First Preferred Shares in whole orin part, at the Corporation’s option,
at $26.00 per share if redeemed prior to April 30, 2018, $25.75 per share
if redeemed thereafter and prior to April 30, 2019, $25.50 per share
if redeemed thereafter and prior to April 30, 2020, $25.25 per share if
redeemed thereafter and prior to April 30, 2021 and $25.00 per share if
redeemed thereafter, in each case together with all declared and unpaid
dividends to, but excluding, the date of redemption. Share issue costs
of $7millionin connection with the Series R First Preferred Shares were
charged to retained earnings.

[xiii] During the year, 930,400 common shares (160,000 in 2011) were issued
under the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan fora consideration
of $20 million ($3 million in 2011).

Fortheyearended December 31,2012, dividends declared on the Corporation’s
common shares amounted to $1.40 per share (51.40 per share in 2011).

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE PROGRAM

Effective May1,2000, an Employee Share Purchase Program was implemented,
giving employees the opportunity to subscribe for up to 6% of their gross
salary to purchase Subordinate Voting Shares of Power Corporation of
Canada on the open market and to have the Corporation invest, on the
employee's behalf, up to an equal amount. The amount paid on behalf of
employees was $0.1 million in 2012 (50.1 million in 2011).

STOCK OPTION PLAN

Compensation expense is recorded for options granted under the
Corporation'sandits subsidiaries'stock option plans based on the fair value
of the options at the grant date, amortized over the vesting period.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, 668,579 options (777,503 options
in 201) were granted under the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan.
Thefairvalue of these options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2012 2011
Dividendyield 4.8% 4.9%
Expected volatility 18.7% 19.2%
Risk-freeinterest rate 1.7% 2.3%
Expected life (years) 9 9
Fair value per stock option (S/option) $2.08 $2.47
Weighted-average exercise price ($/option) §25.31 $26.54
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Expected volatility has been estimated based on the historical volatility
of the Corporation’s share price over nine years which is reflective of the
expected option life.

Fortheyearended December 31,2012, compensation expenserelating to the
stock options granted by the Corporation and its subsidiaries amounted to
$13 million ($10 million in 2011).

Under the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan, 16,491,200 additional
shares are reserved for issuance. The plan requires that the exercise price
under the option must not be less than the marketvalue of a share on the date
of the grant of the option. Generally, options granted vest on a delayed basis
over periods beginning no earlier than one year from date of grantand no later
than five years from date of grant. Options recently granted, which are not
fully vested, have the following vesting conditions: grants of 830,980 options

in2008 which vest equally over a period of five years beginning in 2009; grants
0f19,039 optionsin 2010 which vest as follows: the first 50% three years from
the date of grant, and the remaining 50% four years from the date of grant;
a grant of 679,525 options in 2010 which vest equally over a period of five
years beginning in 2011; grants of 743,080 options in 2011 which vest equally
over a period of five years beginning in 2012; grants of 21,537 in 2011 options
which vest as follows: the first 50% three years from the date of grant, and
theremaining 50% fouryears from the date of grant; grants of 598,325 in 2012
optionswhich vest equally over a period of five years beginning in 2013; grants
0f70,254in 2012 options which vest as follows: the first 50% three years from
the date of grant, and the remaining 50% four years from the date of grant.

Asummary of the status of the Corporation’s Employee Stock Option Plan as
at December 31,2012 and 2011, and changes during the years ended on those
datesis as follows:

2012 2011

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE

s $

Outstanding at beginning of year 9,097,618 27.85 8,480,115 27.77
Granted 668,579 25.31 777,503 26.54
Exercised (930,400) 21.65 (160,000) 16.87
Outstanding at end of year 8,835,797 28.32 9,097,618 27.85
Options exercisable at end of year 6,958,267 28.73 7,267,535 27.82

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2012:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES OPTIONS REMAINING LIFE  EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS  EXERCISE PRICE
S (YRS) $ $
21.65 2,069,600 0.6 21.65 2,069,600 21.65
25.07-28.13 2,254,992 8.3 26.55 606,608 27.17
29.05-30.18 887,777 5.7 29.63 677,670 29.61
31.59-32.46 2,567,777 3.1 3211 2,548,738 3211
34.46-3713 1,055,651 5.2 34.81 1,055,651 34.81
8,835,797 4.4 28.32 6,958,267 28.73

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN OF PUTNAM

Effective September 25, 2007, Putnam sponsored the Putnam
Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the EIP). Under the terms of the EIP,
Putnam is authorized to grant or sell Class B Shares of Putnam (the Putnam
Class B Shares), subject to certain restrictions and to grant options to
purchase Putnam Class B Shares (collectively, the Awards) to certain senior
management and key employees of Putnam at fair value at the time of the
award. Fair value is determined under the valuation methodology outlined
inthe EIP. Awards vest over a period of up to five yearsand are specified in the
individual's award letter. Holders of Putnam Class B Shares are not entitled
to vote other than in respect of certain matters in regards to the EIP and
have norights to convert their shares into any other securities. The number
of Putnam Class B Shares that may be subject to Awards under the EIP is
limited to 10,000,000. The share-based payments awarded under the EIP
are cash-settled and included within other liabilities on the balance sheets.

Lifeco uses the fair-value based method to account for restricted Class B
Shares and options on Class B Shares granted to employees under the
EIP. The fair value of restricted Class B Shares and options on Class B
Shares is determined on each grant date. During 2012, Putnam granted
1,789,000 (1,189,169 in 201) restricted Class B common shares and no options
in 2012 or 2011 to certain members of senior management and key employees.

Compensation expense recorded for the year ended December 31,2012 related
torestricted Class B common shares and Class B stock options earned was
$22 million ($3 million in2011) and is recorded in operating and administrative
expenses in the statements of earnings. At December 31, 2012, the carrying
value and intrinsic value of the restricted Class B Share and stock option
liability was $99 million (5101 million in 2011).
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NOTE 19 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Non-controlling interests include:
Participating account surplusin subsidiaries 2,505 2,227
Preferred shareholders of subsidiaries 2,694 2,044
Common shareholders of subsidiaries 5,144 5,023
10,343 9,294
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Earnings attributable to non-controlling interests include:
Earningsattributable to common shareholders of subsidiaries 797 916
Dividends to preferred shareholders of subsidiaries 124 105
Earnings attributable to participating account surplusin subsidiaries 276 120
1,197 1,141

NOTE 20 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As a holding company, Power Financial's objectives in managing its capital
are to:

> provide sufficient financial flexibility to pursue its growth strategy and
supportits group companiesand otherinvestments.

> maintain an appropriate credit rating to achieve access to the capital
markets at the lowest overall cost of capital.

> provide attractive long-term returns to shareholders of the Corporation.

The Corporation manages its capital taking into consideration the risk
characteristics and liquidity of its holdings. In order to maintain or adjustits
capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid
toshareholders, return capital to shareholders orissue new forms of capital.

The capital structure of the Corporation consists of preferred shares,
debentures and equity composed of stated capital, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests in the equity of subsidiaries of the Corporation.
The Corporation utilizes perpetual preferred sharesasa permanentand cost-
effective source of capital. The Corporation considersitself to bealong-term
investorandassuch holds positionsin long-term investmentsas wellas cash
and short-term investments for liquidity purposes.

The Corporation is not subject to externally imposed regulatory
capital requirements.

The Corporation’s major operating subsidiaries are subject to regulatory
capital requirements along with capital standards set by rating agencies.

Lifeco’s subsidiaries Great-West Life and Great-West Life & Annuity are
subject to minimum regulatory capital requirements. Lifeco’s practice is to
maintain the capitalization of its regulated operating subsidiaries at a level
that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory capital requirements in
thejurisdictionsin which they operate:

> In Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions
has established a capital adequacy measurement for life insurance
companiesincorporated under the Insurance Companies Act (Canada) and
theirsubsidiaries, known as the Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus
Requirements (MCCSR). As at December 31, 2012, the MCCSR ratio for
Great-West Life was 207%.
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> AtDecember 31,2012, the Risk-Based Capital ratio (RBC) of Great-West Life
& Annuity, Lifeco's requlated U.S. operating company, was estimated to
be 440% of the Company Action Level set by the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners. Great-West Life & Annuity reportsits RBCratio
annually to U.S. insurance regulators.

> In the United Kingdom, Canada Life UK is required to satisfy the
capital resources requirements set out in the Integrated Prudential
Sourcebook, part of the Financial Services Authority Handbook. The
capital requirements are prescribed by a formulaic capital requirement
(Pillar 1) and an individual capital adequacy framework which requires
an entity to self-assess an appropriate amount of capital it should hold,
based on the risks encountered from its business activities. At the end of
2012, Canada Life UK complied with the capital resource requirements in
the United Kingdom.

> Other foreign operations and foreign subsidiaries of Lifeco are required
to comply with local capital or solvency requirements in their respective
jurisdictions. At December 31,2012 and 2011 Lifeco maintained capital levels
above the minimum local regulatory requirements in each of its other
foreign operations. One of the foreign operations is in discussions with
itsregulator regarding the admissibility of certain assets for the purpose
of calculating such local regulatory requirements.

IGM subsidiaries subject to regulatory capital requirements include
investment dealers, mutual fund dealers, exempt market dealers, portfolio
managers, investment fund managersand a trust company. IGM subsidiaries
arerequired to maintain minimum levels of capital based on either working
capital, liquidity or shareholders’ equity. IGM subsidiaries have complied with
all regulatory capital requirements.



NOTE21 RISK MANAGEMENT

Power Financial andits subsidiaries have policies relating to the identification,
measurement, monitoring, mitigating and controlling of risks associated
with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments
are liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (currency, interest rate and
equity price).

The Corporation andits subsidiaries have also established policies, guidelines
or procedures designed to identify, measure and report all material risks.
Managementis responsible for establishing capital management procedures
forimplementing and monitoring the capital plan. The Board of Directors of
the Corporation and the boards of directors of its subsidiaries review and
approve all capital transactions undertaken by management.

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity riskis the risk that the Corporation and its subsidiaries will not be
able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come due.

Power Financial is a holding company. As such, corporate cash flows from
operations, before payment of dividends to its common and preferred
shareholders, are principally made up of dividends received from its
subsidiariesand jointly controlled corporation, and income from investments,
less operating expenses, financing charges and income taxes. The ability of
Lifecoand IGM, which are also holding companies, to meet their obligations
and pay dividends dependsin particularuponreceipt of sufficient funds from
theirown subsidiaries.

Power Financial seeks to maintain a sufficient level of liquidity to meet all its
cash flow requirements. In addition, Power Financial and its parent, Power
Corporation of Canada, jointly have a $100 million uncommitted line of credit
with a Canadian chartered bank. Power Corporation and Power Financial
never accessed the uncommitted line of credit in the past; however, any
advances made by the bank under the uncommitted line would be at the
bank’s sole discretion.

Principal payments on debentures (other than those of Lifeco and IGM
discussed below) of $250 million due after five years, represent the only
significant contractual liquidity requirement of Power Financial.

Power Financial's liquidity position and its management of liquidity risk have
not changed materially since December 31, 2011.

For Lifeco, the following policies and procedures are in place to manage

liquidity risk:

> Lifeco closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching
of assets and liabilities and forecasting earned and required yields, to
ensure consistency between policyholder requirements and the yield
of assets. Approximately 70% (72% in 2011) of insurance and investment
contractliabilities are non-cashable prior to maturity or subject to market
value adjustments.

> Management of Lifeco monitors the use of lines of credit ona regular basis,
and assesses the ongoing availability of these and alternative forms of
operating credit.

> Management of Lifeco closely monitors the solvency and capital positions
of its principal subsidiaries opposite liquidity requirements at the holding
company. Additional liquidity is available through established lines of
credit or the capital markets. Lifeco maintains a $200 million committed
line of credit with a Canadian chartered bank. As well, Putnam maintains
a USS$500 million revolving credit agreement with a consortium of banks
and on October 18, 2012, Lifeco renewed a US$304 million Putnam non-
revolving term loan facility, guaranteed by Lifeco, for three years.

In the normal course of business, Lifeco enters into contracts that give rise
to commitments of future minimum payments thatimpact short-term and
long-termliquidity. The following table summarizes the principal repayment
schedule of certain of Lifeco's financial liabilities.

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

AFTER
DECEMBER 31, 2012 1YEAR 2YEARS 3YEARS 4YEARS S5YEARS SYEARS TOTAL
Debentures and debtinstruments 296 1 301 - - 3,714 4,312
Capital trust securitiest! - - - - - 150 150
Purchase obligations 58 13 10 2 - - 83
Pension contributions 133 - - - - - 133
487 14 311 2 - 3,864 4,678

[1] Payments due have not been reduced to reflect that Lifeco held capital trust securities of $37 million principal amount (545 million carrying value).

IGM'’s liquidity management practices include: controls over liquidity
management processes; stress testing of various operating scenarios; and
oversight over liquidity management by committees of the board of directors
of IGM.

Akey liquidity requirement for IGM is the funding of commissions paid on the
sale of mutual funds. Commissions on the sale of mutual funds continue to
be paid from operating cash flows.

IGM also maintains sufficient liquidity to fund and temporarily hold

mortgages. Throughits mortgage banking operations, residential mortgages
are sold or securitized to:

> Investors Mortgage and Short Term Income Fund and Investors Canadian
Corporate Bond Fund;

> third parties, including Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
(CMHC) or Canadian bank-sponsored securitization trusts;

> institutional investors through private placements.

Certain subsidiaries of IGM are approved issuers of National Housing Act
Mortgage-Backed Securities (NHA MBS) and approved sellers into the
Canada Mortgage Bond Program (CMB Program). Thisissuerand seller status
provides IGM with additional funding sources for residential mortgages.
IGM's continued ability to fund residential mortgages through Canadian
bank-sponsored securitization trusts and NHA MBS is dependent on
securitization market conditions that are subject to change. A condition of
the NHA MBS and CMB Programs is that securitized loans be insured by an
insurer thatis approved by CMHC. The availability of mortgage insurance is
dependent upon market conditions that are subject to change.

83

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 21 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

IGM's contractual obligations were as follows:

LESSTHAN AFTER
DECEMBER 31, 2012 DEMAND 1YEAR 1-5YEARS S5YEARS TOTAL
Repurchase agreements - 225 - - 225
Derivative financial instruments - 23 45 3 71
Depositsand certificates 136 9 13 163
Obligations to securitization entities - 789 3,877 35 4,701
Long-term debt - - - 1,325 1,325
Operation leases - 53 152 79 284
Total contractual obligations 136 1,099 4,087 1,447 6,769

In addition to IGM's current balance of cash and cash equivalents, liquidity
is available through IGM's operating lines of credit. IGM's operating lines of
credit with various Schedule | Canadian chartered banks totalled $525 million
asat December 31,2012, compared to $325 million as at December 31, 2011. On
October 26, 2012, IGM entered into an additional $200 million committed
line of credit to provide financing for IGM's mortgage operations. The
operating lines of credit as at December 31, 2012 consisted of committed
lines of $350 million ($150 million in 2011) and uncommitted lines of $175 million
($175 million in 2011). IGM has accessed its uncommitted operating lines
of credit in the past; however, any advances made by the banks under
the uncommitted operating lines are at the banks' sole discretion. As at
December 31,2012and 2011, IGM was not utilizing its committed lines of credit
oritsuncommitted operating lines of credit.

IGM accessed capital markets most recently in December 2010; IGM's
ability to access capital markets to raise funds in future is dependent on
market conditions.

IGM's liquidity position and its management of liquidity risk have not changed
materially since December 31, 2011.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss to the Corporation and its
subsidiaries if a counterpartyin a transaction fails to meet its obligations.

For Power Financial, cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities, and
derivativesare subject to credit risk. The Corporation continuously monitors
its creditrisk.

Cash and cash equivalents amounting to $359 million and fixed income
securities amounting to $625 million consist primarily of highly liquid
temporary deposits with Canadian chartered banks as well as bankers’
acceptances and short-term securities guaranteed by the Canadian
government. The Corporation regularly reviews the credit ratings of its
counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial
instruments is their carrying value. The Corporation mitigates credit risk
on these financial instruments by adhering to its Investment Policy which
outlines credit risk parameters and concentration limits.
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Derivatives or derivatives not designated as hedges continue to be utilized
on a basis consistent with the risk management policies of the Corporation
and aremonitored by the Corporation for effectiveness as economic hedges
even if specifichedge accounting requirements are not met. The Corporation
regularly reviews the credit ratings of derivative financial instrument
counterparties. Derivative contracts are over-the-counter traded with
counterparties that are highly rated financial institutions. The exposure to
creditrisk of these derivativesis limited to their fair values which were nil at
December 31, 2012.

For Lifeco, the following policies and procedures are in place to manage
creditrisk:

> Investment guidelines are in place that require only the purchase of
investment-grade assets and minimize undue concentration of assets in
any single geographicarea, industry and company.

> Investment guidelines specify minimum and maximum limits for each
asset class. Credit ratings are determined by recognized external credit
rating agencies and/orinternal credit review.

> Investment guidelines also specify collateral requirements.

> Portfolios are monitored continuously, and reviewed regularly with the
board of directors of Lifeco or the investment committee of the board of
directors of Lifeco.

> Creditrisk associated with derivative instruments is evaluated quarterly
based on conditions that existed at the balance sheet date, using practices
thatareatleastas conservative as those recommended by regulators.

> Lifecoisexposed tocreditrisk relating to premiums due from policyholders
during the grace period specified by theinsurance policy or until the policy
is paid up or terminated. Commissions paid to agents and brokers are
netted against amounts receivable, if any.

> Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating
and concentration of credit risk is managed by following policy guidelines
set each year by the board of directors of Lifeco. Management of Lifeco
continuously monitors and performs an assessment of creditworthiness
of reinsurers.

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk for Lifeco The following table
summarizes Lifeco’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial
instruments. The maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of the asset
net of any allowances for losses.
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DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Cashand cash equivalents 1,895 2,056
Bonds

Fairvalue through profitorloss 64,850 61,709

Available for sale 6,752 6,620

Loansand receivables 10,934 9,744
Mortgage loans 17,875 17,432
Loans to policyholders 7,082 7,162
Funds held by ceding insurers!t 10,537 9,923
Reinsurance assets 2,064 2,061
Interest due and accrued 1,098 1,108
Accounts receivable 977 813
Premiums in course of collection 484 422
Trading account assets 313 207
Otherfinancial assets? 973 685
Derivative assets 997 968
Total balance sheet maximum credit exposure 126,831 120,910

[1] Includes $9,951 million (59,411 million at December 31, 2011) of funds held by ceding insurers where Lifeco retains the credit risk of the assets supporting the liabilities

ceded (see Note 5).

[2] Includesitems such as currentincome taxes receivable and miscellaneous other assets of Lifeco.

Credit risk is also mitigated by entering into collateral agreements. The
amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the
credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding

the acceptability of types of collateral and the valuation parameters.

Management of Lifeco monitors the value of the collateral, requests
additional collateral when needed and performs an impairment valuation
when applicable. Lifeco has $25 million of collateral received in 2012 (521 million
at December 31, 2011) relating to derivative assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk for Lifeco Concentrations of creditrisk arise
from exposures to a single debtor, a group of related debtors or groups of
debtors that have similar credit risk characteristics in that they operate in
the same geographic region or in similar industries. The characteristics are
similar in that changes in economic or political environments may impact
their ability to meet obligations as they come due.

The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds of Lifeco
by industry sectorand geographicdistribution:

DECEMBER 31, 2012 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Bondsissued or guaranteed by:
Canadian federal government 4873 3 43 4919
Provincial, state and municipal governments 6,454 1,881 61 8,396
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies 305 3,421 976 4702
Other foreign governments 151 29 8,044 8,224
Government-related 1,584 - 1,205 2,789
Supranationals 453 11 289 753
Asset-backed securities 2,587 3,117 830 6,534
Residential mortgage-backed securities 16 452 165 633
Banks 2,140 359 2,317 4,816
Other financial institutions 801 1,578 1,964 4,343
Basic materials 252 724 231 1,207
Communications 499 181 553 1,233
Consumer products 1,903 1,975 1,867 5,745
Industrial products/services 873 984 323 2,180
Natural resources 1,100 665 565 2,330
Real estate 850 - 1,739 2,589
Transportation 1,747 696 598 3,041
Utilities 4,257 3,317 3,342 10,916
Miscellaneous 2,317 856 312 3,485
Total long-term bonds 33,162 20,249 25,424 78,835
Short-term bonds 2,388 358 955 3,701
35,550 20,607 26,379 82,536
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NOTE 21 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2011 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Bondsissued or guaranteed by:
Canadian federal government 4,328 2 42 4,372
Provincial, state and municipal governments 6,430 1,980 53 8,463
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies 271 2,857 1,006 4,134
Otherforeign governments 185 25 8,216 8,426
Government-related 1,293 = 955 2,248
Supranationals 443 12 211 666
Asset-backed securities 2,696 3,401 803 6,900
Residential mortgage-backed securities 26 638 146 810
Banks 2,168 416 1,858 4,442
Otherfinancial institutions 855 1,449 1,615 3,919
Basic materials 233 748 214 1,195
Communications 508 221 501 1,230
Consumer products 1,848 1,813 1,771 5,432
Industrial products/services 695 825 212 1,732
Natural resources 1127 560 554 2,241
Real estate 608 = 1,610 2,218
Transportation 1,721 672 624 3,017
Utilities 3,792 2,689 3,158 9,639
Miscellaneous 2,024 814 277 3,115
Total long-term bonds 31,251 19,122 23,826 74,199
Short-term bonds 2,980 323 571 3,874
34,231 19,445 24,397 78,073
The following table provides details of the carrying value of mortgage loans of Lifeco by geographic location:
SINGLE-FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY
DECEMBER 31, 2012 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL
Canada 1,676 3,250 6,982 11,908
United States - 921 2,139 3,060
Europe - 187 2,720 2,907
1,676 4,358 11,841 17,875
SINGLE-FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY
DECEMBER 31, 2011 RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL
Canada 1,591 3,407 7,022 12,020
United States = 811 1,999 2,810
Europe 79 108 2,415 2,602
1,670 4,326 11,436 17,432
Asset Quality
BOND PORTFOLIO QUALITY
DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
AAA 29,302 29,612
AA 13,463 12,525
A 23,767 22,435
BBB 14,662 12,399
BB and lower 1,342 1,102
Total 82,536 78,073
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DERIVATIVE PORTFOLIO QUALITY

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Over-the-counter contracts (counterparty ratings):

AAA 9 12
AA 106 361
A 882 595
Total 997 968

Loans of Lifeco Past Due, but not Impaired Loansthatare pastdue but not considered impaired are loans for which scheduled payments have not been
received, but management of Lifeco has reasonable assurance of collection of the full amount of principal and interest due. The following table provides

carrying values of the loans past due, but not impaired:

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Less than 30 days 12 3
30-90days - 1
Greater than 90 days 4 1
Total 16 5

The following outlines the future asset credit losses provided for in insurance and investment contract liabilities. These amounts are in addition to the

allowance forasset losses included with assets:

DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Participating 892 852
Non-participating 1,667 1,648

2,559 2,500

For IGM, cash and cash equivalents, securities holdings, mortgage and
investment loan portfolios, and derivatives are subject to credit risk. IGM
monitors its credit risk management practices continuously to evaluate
their effectiveness.

With respect to IGM, at December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents of
$1,059 million (51,052 million in 2011) consisted of cash balances of $101 million
(97 million in 2011) on deposit with Canadian chartered banks and cash
equivalents of $958 million ($955 million in 2011). Cash equivalents are
composed of Government of Canada treasury bills totalling $233 million
(5521 million in 2011), provincial government and government-guaranteed
commercial paper of $473 million (5340 million in 2011) and bankers’
acceptancesissued by Canadian chartered banks of $253 million (594 million
in 201). IGM regularly reviews the credit ratings of its counterparties. The
maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial instruments is their
carrying value. IGM manages credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents
by adhering toits Investment Policy that outlines credit risk parametersand
concentration limits.

Fair value through profit or loss securities include Canada Mortgage Bonds
with afairvalue of $226 million (5227 million in 2011). The fair value represents
the maximum exposure to credit risk of IGM at December 31, 2012.

IGM regularly reviews the credit quality of the mortgage portfolios related
to IGM's mortgage banking operations and its intermediary operations,
as well as the adequacy of the collective allowance. As at December 31,
2012, mortgages totalled $4.9 billion (541 billion in 2011) and consisted of
residential mortgages:

> Sold to securitization programs which are classified as loans and
receivables and totalled $4.6 billion compared to $3.8 billion at December 31,
2011. An offsetting liability, obligations to securitization entities, has
beenrecorded and totalled $4.7 billion at December 31,2012, compared to
$3.8 billion at December 31, 2011.

> Related to IGM's mortgage banking operations which are classified
as held for trading and totalled $249 million, compared to $292 million
at December 31, 2011. These loans are held by IGM pending sale or
securitization.

> Related to IGM's intermediary operations which are classified as loans
and receivables and totalled $35 million at December 31, 2012, compared
to $31 million at December 31, 2011.

Asat December 31,2012, themortgage portfolios related to IGM's intermediary
operations were geographically diverse, 100% residential (100% in 2011) and
86.2% insured (99.4% in 2011). As at December 31, 2012, impaired mortgages
over 90 days were nil, unchanged from December 31, 2011. Uninsured non-
performing mortgages over 90 days were nil, unchanged from December 31,
2011. The characteristics of the mortgage portfolios have not changed
significantly during 2012.

IGM purchases portfolio insurance from CMHC on newly funded qualifying
conventional mortgages. Under the NHA MBS and CMB Programs, it is a
requirement that securitized mortgages be insured against default by an
approvedinsurer,and IGM has also insured substantially all loans securitized
through ABCP programs. At December 31, 2012, 88.3% of the securitized
portfolio and the residential mortgages classified as held for trading were
insured, compared to 93.0% at December 31, 2011. As at December 31, 2012,
impaired mortgages on these portfolios were $1 million, unchanged from
December 31, 2011. Uninsured non-performing mortgages over 90 days on
these portfolios were $1 million at December 31, 2012, compared to nil at
December 31, 2011.
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IGM retains certain elements of credit risk on securitized loans. At
December 31, 2012, 90.2% of securitized loans were insured against credit
losses compared to 96.2% at December 31, 2011. IGM’s credit risk on its
securitization activitiesislimited to retained interest. Thefairvalue of IGM’s
retained interests in securitized mortgages was $69 million at December 31,
2012, compared to $24 million at December 31, 2011. Retained interests include:

> Cash reserve accounts and rights to future net interest income—which were
$24 million and $102 million, respectively, at December 31, 2012. Cash
reserve accounts are reflected on the balance sheet, whereas rights to
future netinterestincome are not reflected on the balance sheetand will
be recorded over the life of the mortgages.

The portion of this amount pertaining to Canadian bank-sponsored
securitization trusts of $55 million ($45 million in 2011) is subordinated
to the interests of the trust and represents the maximum exposure to
creditrisk for any failure of the borrowers to pay when due. Credit risk on
these mortgages is mitigated by any insurance on these mortgages, as
previously discussed, and IGM's credit risk on insured loansis to the insurer.

Rights to future net interest income under the NHA MBS and CMB
Programs totalled $70 million ($56 million in 2011). Under the NHA MBS
and CMB Programs, IGM has an obligation to make timely payments
to security holders regardless of whether amounts are received from
mortgagors. All mortgages securitized under the NHA MBS and CMB
Programs are insured by CMHC or another approved insurer under the
programs. Outstanding mortgages securitized under these programsare
$3.3 billion ($2.7 billion in 2017).

A\

Fairvalue of principal reinvestment account swaps—had a negative fair value of
$56 million at December 31, 2012 ($77 million in 2011) and is reflected on the
balance sheet. These swaps represent the component of a swap entered
into under the CMB Program whereby IGM pays coupons on Canada
Mortgage Bonds and receives investment returns on the reinvestment
of repaid mortgage principal. The notional amount of these swaps was
$932 million ($556 million in 2011) at December 31, 2012.

IGM's exposure to and management of credit risk related to cash and cash
equivalents, fixed income securities and mortgage portfolios have not
changed materially since December 31, 2011.

IGM utilizes over-the-counter derivatives to hedge interest rate risk and
reinvestment risk associated with its mortgage banking and securitization
activities, aswellas market risk related to certain stock-based compensation
arrangements. To the extent that the fair value of the derivativesisinagain
position, IGM is exposed to the credit risk that its counterparties fail to fulfill
their obligations under these arrangements.

IGM participates in the CMB Program by entering into back-to-back swaps
whereby Canadian Schedule | chartered banks designated by IGM are
between IGM and the Canadian Housing Trust. IGM receives coupons on
NHA MBS and eligible principal reinvestments and pays coupons on the
Canada Mortgage Bonds. IGM also entersinto offsetting interest rate swaps
with the same bank counterparties to hedge interestrateand reinvestment
risk associated with the CMB Program. The negative fair value of these
swaps totalled $27 million at December 31, 2012 (526 million in 2011) and the
outstanding notional amount was $5.7 billion ($4.4 billion in 201). Certain
of these swaps relate to securitized mortgages that have been recorded on
IGM's balance sheet with anassociated obligation. Accordingly, these swaps,
with an outstanding notional amount of $3.3 billion ($2.7 billion in 2011) and
having a negative fairvalue of $29 million (533 millionin 2011), are not reflected
on the balance sheet. Principal reinvestment account swaps and hedges of
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reinvestmentand interestrate risk, with an outstanding notionalamount of
$2.4 billion (517 billion in 2011) and having a fair value of $3 million (57 million
in20M), are reflected on the balance sheet. The exposure to credit risk, which
is limited to the fair value of swaps in a gain position, totalled $63 million at
December 31,2012, compared to $87 million at December 31, 2011.

IGM utilizes interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated with
mortgages securitized through Canadian bank-sponsored ABCP programs.
The negative fair value of these interest rate swaps totalled $5 million
(523 million in 2011) on an outstanding notional amount of $435 million at
December 31, 2012 ($1.0 billion in 2011). The exposure to credit risk, which is
limited to the fair value of swaps in a gain position, totalled $0.2 million at
December 31,2012, compared to $0.6 million at December 31, 2011.

IGM also utilizes interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated
with its investments in Canada Mortgage Bonds. The negative fair
value of these interest rate swaps totalled $5 million ($7 million in 2011)
on an outstanding notional amount of $200 million at December 31, 2012
(5200 million in 2011). The exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the
fair value of the interest rate swaps which are in a gain position, was nil at
December 31,2012, unchanged from December 31, 2011.

IGM entersinto other derivative contracts which consist primarily of interest
rate swaps utilized to hedge interest rate risk related to mortgages held
pending sale, or committed to, by IGM as well as total return swaps and
forward agreements on IGM's common shares utilized to hedge deferred
compensation arrangements. The fair value of interest rate swaps, total
return swaps and forward agreements was $0.1 million on an outstanding
notional amount of $125 million at December 31, 2012, compared to a fair
value of nilon an outstanding notional amount of $76 million at December 31,
2011. The exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the fair value of those
instruments which areinagain position, was $2 million at December 31, 2012,
compared to $Tmillion as at December 31, 2011.

The aggregate credit risk exposure related to derivatives that are in a
gain position of $65 million (589 million in 2011) does not give effect to any
netting agreements or collateral arrangements. The exposure to credit
risk, considering netting agreements and collateral arrangements, was nil
at December 31, 2012 (50.3 million in 201). Counterparties are all Canadian
Schedule | chartered banks and, as a result, management of IGM has
determined that IGM'’s overall credit risk related to derivatives was not
significant at December 31, 2012. Management of credit risk at IGM has not
changed materially since December 31, 2011.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market factors. Market
factorsinclude three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk.

Cautionrelated to risk sensitivities The consolidated financial statements
of the Corporation include estimates of sensitivities and risk exposure
measures for certain risks, such as the sensitivity due to specific changes
in interest rate levels projected and market prices at the valuation date.
Actual results can differ significantly from these estimates for a variety of
reasons, including:

> assessment of the circumstances that led to the scenario may lead
to changes in (re)investment approaches and interest rate scenarios
considered;
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> changes in actuarial, investment return and future investment activity
assumptions;

> actual experience differing from the assumptions;
> changesin business mix, effective tax rates and other market factors;

> interactionsamong these factors and assumptions when more than one
changes; and

> thegeneral limitations of internal models.

For these reasons, the sensitivities should only be viewed as directional
estimates of the underlying sensitivities for the respective factors based on
theassumptions outlined below. Given the nature of these calculations, the
Corporation cannot provide assurance that theactualimpact on netearnings
attributed to shareholders will be as indicated.

Currency risk Currency risk relates to the Corporation, its subsidiaries
and its jointly controlled corporation operating in different currencies and
converting non-Canadian earnings at different points in time at different
foreign exchange levels when adverse changesin foreign currency exchange
rates occur.

Power Financial is exposed through Parjointco to foreign exchange risk as
aresult of Parjointco’s investment in Pargesa, a company whose functional
currency is the Swiss franc.

Power Financial's financial assets are essentially cash and cash equivalents
and fixed income securities. Inmanaging its own cash and cash equivalents,
Power Financial may hold cash balances denominated in foreign currencies
and thus be exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates. In order to protect
against such fluctuations, Power Financial may from time to time enter
into currency-hedging transactions with highly rated financial institutions.
As at December 31, 2012, essentially all of Power Financial's cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in Canadian dollars or in foreign currencies
with currency hedges in place.

For Lifeco, if theassets backing insurance and investment contract liabilities
are not matched by currency, changes in foreign exchange rates can expose
Lifeco to the risk of foreign exchange losses not offset by liability decreases.
Lifeco has net investments in foreign operations. In addition, Lifeco's debt
obligationsare mainly denominated in Canadian dollars. Inaccordance with
IFRS, foreign currency translation gains and losses from net investments
in foreign operations, net of related hedging activities and tax effects, are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Strengthening or weakening of the
Canadian dollar spot rate compared to the U.S. dollar, British pound and euro
spotratesimpacts Lifeco's total share capital and surplus. Correspondingly,
Lifeco's book value per share and capital ratios monitored by rating agencies
are also impacted. The following policies and procedures are in place to
mitigate Lifeco’s exposure to currency risk:

> Lifeco uses financial measures such as constant currency calculations to
monitor the effect of currency translation fluctuations.

> Investments are normally made in the same currency as the liabilities
supported by those investments. Segmented investment guidelines
include maximum tolerances for unhedged currency mismatch exposures.

> Foreign currency assetsacquired to back liabilities are normally converted
back to the currency of the liability using foreign exchange contracts.

> A10% weakening of the Canadian dollaragainst foreign currencies would
be expected to increase non-participating insurance and investment
contract liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the
same amount, resulting in an immaterial change to net earnings. A10%
strengthening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would
be expected to decrease non-participating insurance and investment
contract liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the same
amount, resulting in an immaterial change in net earnings.

IGM's financial instruments are generally denominated in Canadian dollars,
and do not have significant exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future
cash flows of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changesin the

market interest rates.

Power Financial's financial instruments are essentially cash and cash
equivalents, fixed income securities, and long-term debt that do not have
significant exposure to interest rate risk.

For Lifeco, the following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate
exposure tointerest rate risk:

> Lifeco utilizes a formal process for managing the matching of assets and
liabilities. This involves grouping general fund assets and liabilities into
segments. Assetsin each segmentare managed inrelation to the liabilities
inthe segment.

> Interest rate risk is managed by investing in assets that are suitable for
the products sold.

> Where these products have benefit or expense payments that are
dependent on inflation (inflation-indexed annuities, pensions and
disability claims), Lifeco generally invests in real return instruments to
hedgeitsrealdollarliability cash flows. Some protection against changes
in the inflation index is achieved as any related change in the fair value
of the assets will be largely offset by a similar change in the fair value of
theliabilities.

> For products with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments,
investments are made in fixed income assets or real estate whose cash
flows closely match the liability product cash flows. Where assets are
not available to match certain cash flows, such as long-tail cash flows, a
portion of these areinvestedin equities and the rest are duration matched.
Hedginginstrumentsare employed where necessary when thereisalack
of suitable permanent investments to minimize loss exposure to interest
rate changes. To the extent these cash flows are matched, protection
againstinterestrate changeisachieved and any changein the fair value of
theassetswill be offset by a similar change in the fairvalue of the liabilities.

> For products with less predictable timing of benefit payments,
investments are made in fixed income assets with cash flows of a shorter
duration than the anticipated timing of benefit payments or equities, as
described below.

> The risks associated with the mismatch in portfolio duration and cash
flow, asset prepayment exposure and the pace of asset acquisition are
quantified and reviewed reqgularly.

Projected cash flows from the current assets and liabilities are used in
the Canadian Asset Liability Method to determine insurance contract
liabilities. Valuation assumptions have been made regarding rates of returns
on supporting assets, fixed income, equity and inflation. The valuation
assumptions use best estimates of future reinvestment rates and inflation
assumptions with anassumed correlation together with margins for adverse
deviation set in accordance with professional standards. These margins
are necessary to provide for possibilities of misestimation and/or future
deterioration in the best estimate assumptions and provide reasonable
assurance that insurance contract liabilities cover a range of possible
outcomes. Margins are reviewed periodically for continued appropriateness.
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Projected cash flows from fixed income assets used in actuarial calculations
arereduced to provide for potential asset defaultlosses. The net effectiveyield
rate reduction averaged 0.18% (0.19% in 2011). The calculation for future credit
lossesonassetsis based on the credit quality of the underlying asset portfolio.

Testing under several interest rate scenarios (including increasing and
decreasing rates) is done to assess reinvestment risk.

Oneway of measuring theinterest rate risk associated with thisassumption
istodetermine theeffect on theinsuranceandinvestment contract liabilities
impacting the shareholderearnings of Lifeco of a1% immediate parallel shift
in the yield curve. These interest rate changes will impact the projected
cash flows.

> The effect of an immediate 1% parallel increase in the yield curve would
be to decrease these insurance and investment contract liabilities by
approximately $181million, causing anincrease in net earnings of Lifeco of
approximately $121 million (Power Financial's share—$85 million).

> The effect of an immediate 1% parallel decrease in the yield curve would
be to increase these insurance and investment contract liabilities by
approximately $715 million, causing a decrease in net earnings of Lifeco
of approximately $504 million (Power Financial's share—$356 million).

In addition to the above, if this change in the yield curve persisted for an
extended period the range of the tested scenarios might change. The effect
ofanimmediate1% parallel decrease orincreasein theyield curve persisting
forayearwould have immaterial additional effects on the reportedinsurance
and investment contract liabilities.

IGM is exposed to interest rate risk on its loan portfolio, fixed income
securities, Canada Mortgage Bonds and on certain of the derivative financial
instruments usedin IGM's mortgage banking and intermediary operations.

The objective of IGM's asset and liability management is to control interest
rate risk related to its intermediary operations by actively managing its
interest rate exposure. Asat December 31,2012, the total gap between deposit
assets and liabilities was within IGM's trust subsidiaries' stated guidelines.

IGM utilizes interest rate swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered bank
counterpartiesinordertoreduce theimpact of fluctuating interest rates on
its mortgage banking operations, as follows:

> |IGM has funded fixed rate mortgages with ABCP as part of the
securitization transactions with bank-sponsored securitization trusts.
IGM enters into interest rate swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered
banks to hedge the risk that ABCP rates rise. However, IGM remains
exposed to the basis risk that ABCP rates are greater than the bankers’
acceptance rates thatitreceives onits hedges.

> |GM hasincertaininstancesfunded floating rate mortgages with fixed rate
Canada Mortgage Bonds as part of the securitization transactions under
the CMB Program. IGM enters into interest rate swaps with Canadian
Schedule I chartered banks to hedge therisk that theinterest rates earned
onfloating rate mortgages decline. As previously discussed, as part of the
CMB Program, IGM also is entitled to investment returns on reinvestment
of principal repayments of securitized mortgages and is obligated to pay
Canada Mortgage Bond coupons thatare generally fixed rate. IGM hedges
the risk that reinvestment returns decline by entering into interest rate
swaps with Canadian Schedule | chartered bank counterparties.

> IGM is exposed to the impact that changes in interest rates may have
on the value of its investments in Canada Mortgage Bonds. IGM enters
into interest rate swaps with Canadian Schedule I chartered bank
counterparties to hedge interest rate risk on these bonds.
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> |GMisalsoexposed to theimpact thatchangesininterestrates may have
on thevalue of mortgages held, or committed to, by IGM. IGM may enter
intointerest rate swaps to hedge this risk.

As at December 31, 2012, the impact to annual net earnings of IGM of a
100-basis-point change in interest rates would have been approximately
$5 million (Power Financial's share—$3 million). IGM's exposure to and
management of interest rate risk has not changed materially since
December 31, 2011.

Equity price risk Equity price risk is the uncertainty associated with the
valuation of assets arising from changes in equity markets. To mitigate
equity pricerisk, the Corporation and its subsidiaries have investment policy
guidelines in place that provide for prudent investment in equity markets
within clearly defined limits.

Power Financial's financial instruments are essentially cash and cash
equivalents, fixed income securities, and long-term debt that do not have
exposure to equity price risk.

Pargesa indirectly holds substantial investments classified as available
for sale, therefore unrealized gains and losses on these investments are
recorded in other comprehensive income until realized. These investments
are reviewed periodically to determine whether there is objective evidence
of animpairmentin value.

For Lifeco, therisks associated with segregated fund guarantees have been
mitigated through a hedging program for lifetime Guaranteed Minimum
Withdrawal Benefit guarantees using equity futures, currency forwards,
and interest rate derivatives. For policies with segregated fund guarantees,
Lifeco generally determines insurance contract liabilities at a conditional tail
expectation of 75 (CTE75) level.

Some insurance and investment contract liabilities are supported by
investment properties, common stocks and private equities, for example,
segregated fund productsand products with long-tail cash flows. Generally
these liabilities will fluctuate in line with equity market values. There will
be additional impacts on these liabilities as equity market values fluctuate.
A 10% increase in equity markets would be expected to additionally
decrease non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilities
by approximately $22 million, causing an increase in net earnings of Lifeco
of approximately $18 million (Power Financial's share—S$13 million). A10%
decrease in equity markets would be expected to additionally increase non-
participatinginsuranceand investment contract liabilities by approximately
$128 million, causing a decrease in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately
$96 million (Power Financial's share—$68 million).

The best estimate return assumptions for equities are primarily based
on long-term historical averages. Changes in the current market could
result in changes to these assumptions and will impact both asset and
liability cash flows. A1% increase in the best estimate assumption would
be expected to decrease non-participating insurance contract liabilities by
approximately $443 million, causing an increase in net earnings of Lifeco
of approximately $342 million (Power Financial's share—5$242 million). A1%
decrease in the best estimate assumption would be expected to increase
non-participating insurance contract liabilities by approximately $492 million,
causing a decrease in net earnings of Lifeco of approximately $376 million
(Power Financial's share—$266 million).



NOTE 21 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Lifeco offers retail segregated fund products, unitized with profits products
and variable annuity products that provide for certain guarantees that are

value of these funds could increase Lifeco's liability exposure for providing
these guarantees. Lifeco’s exposure to these guarantees at the balance

tied to thefairvalues of theinvestment funds. Asignificantdeclineinthefair ~ sheet date was:

INVESTMENT DEFICIENCY BY BENEFIT TYPE
DECEMBER 31, 2012 FAIR VALUE INCOME MATURITY DEATH ToTALY
Canada 24,192 - 29 181 181
United States 7,272 - - 59 59
Europe 3,665 552 40 71 624
Total 35,129 552 69 311 864

INVESTMENT DEFICIENCY BY BENEFITTYPE
DECEMBER 31, 2011 FAIR VALUE INCOME MATURITY DEATH ToTALY
Canada 22,837 = 39 301 301
United States 7,041 1 = 79 80
Europe 3,232 641 124 174 817
Total 33,110 642 163 554 1,198

[1] Apolicy canonly receive a payout from one of the three trigger events (income election, maturity or death). Total deficiency measures the point-in-time exposure

assuming the most costly trigger event for each policy occurred on December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

IGM isexposed to equity pricerisk onits proprietary investment funds which
are classified as available-for-sale securities and its equity securities which
are classified as fairvalue through profit or loss. Unrealized gains and losses
onavailable-for-sale securities are recorded in other comprehensive income
until they are realized or until management of IGM determines there is
objective evidence of impairment in value, at which time they are recorded
inthe statements of earnings.

IGM sponsors a number of deferred compensation arrangements where
payments to participants are linked to the performance of the common
shares of IGM Financial Inc. IGM hedges this risk through the use of forward
agreementsand total return swaps.

NOTE 22 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Salaries and other employee benefits 2,178 2,019
Amortization, depreciation and impairment 178 171
Premium taxes 293 264
Othert! 1,047 552

3,696 3,006

[1] Otherreflectsadjustmentfrom Lifecoforthe court decision on November 3, 2011 thatany monies to be reallocated to the participating accounts will be dealt with
inaccordance with the participating policyholder dividend policiesin the ordinary course of business. No awards are to be paid out to individual class members (refer

to Note 29).

NOTE 23 FINANCING CHARGES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Interest on debentures and debt instruments 341 351
Netinterest on capital trust securities 27 33
Other 27 25
395 409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 24 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain funded defined benefit pension
plansforcertain employeesand advisorsaswellas unfunded supplementary
employee retirement plans (SERP) for certain employees. The Corporation’s
subsidiaries also maintain defined contribution pension plans for eligible
employees and advisors. The Corporation and its subsidiaries provide post-
employment health, dental and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees
and advisors.

EffectivejJuly1, 2012, the defined benefit pension plan of IGM was closed and
will only accept members hired prior toJuly1,2012. Forall eligible employees
hired after July 1, 2012, IGM introduced a registered defined contribution
pension plan.

PLAN ASSETS, BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS AND FUNDED STATUS

Effective January 1, 2013, the Great-West Life Assurance Company Canadian
Employees’ Pension Plan and the London Life Staff Pension Plan added a
defined contribution provision to their plans. Allnew hires after this date are
eligible only for defined contribution benefits. This change will reduce Lifeco's
defined benefit plan exposurein future years.

Subsidiaries of Lifeco have declared partial windups in respect of certain
defined pension plans, the impact of which has not been reflected in the
pension plan accounts.

2012 2011
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Fairvalue of plan assets, beginning of year 3,359 - 3,363 =
Expected return on plan assets 191 - 208 =
Employee contributions 20 - 20 =
Employer contributions 102 19 101 18
Actuarial gains (losses) 82 - (153) -
Benefits paid (185) (19) (193) (18)
Foreign exchange and other 22) - 13 -
Fairvalue of plan assets, end of year 3,547 - 3,359 =
CHANGE IN DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of year 3,868 449 3,548 442
Employer current service cost 89 3 77 3
Employee contributions 20 - 20 =
Interest on defined obligations 194 22 194 24
Actuarial (gains) losses 428 15 197 2)
Benefits paid (185) (19) (193) 18)
Past service cost 1 - 6 -
Foreign exchange and other (26) - 19 =
Defined benefit obligation, end of year 4,389 470 3,868 449
FUNDED STATUS
Fund surplus (deficit) (842) (470) (509) (449)
Unamortized past service costs 5 (25) 5 (33)
Unamortized net actuarial losses 890 58 599 47
Unrecognized amount due to limit on asset (41) - (71) -
Accrued benefit asset (liability) 12 (437) 24 (435)
Theaggregate accrued benefit obligations of plan assets are as follows:
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Wholly or partly funded plans 3,975 3,491
Wholly unfunded plans 414 377

The Corporation and its subsidiaries expect to contribute $137 million to their funded and unfunded defined benefit pension and other post-employment

benefit plansin 2013.

Q2
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NOTE 24 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The netaccrued benefit asset (liability) shown above is presented in these financial statements as follows:

2012 2011
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
DECEMBER 31 PLANS BENEFITS TOTAL PLANS BENEFITS TOTAL
Accrued benefit asset [Note 8] 495 - 495 456 = 456
Accrued benefit liability [Note15] (483) (437) (920) (432) (435) (867)
Accrued benefit asset (liability) 12 (437) (425) 24 (435) (411)
PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSE
2012 2011
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT PENSION EMPLOYMENT
PLANS BENEFITS PLANS BENEFITS
Amounts arising from events in the period
Defined benefit current service cost 109 3 97 3
Employee contributions (20) - (20) -
89 3 77 3
Past service cost recognized 2 (8) 3 8)
Interest on defined benefit obligations 194 22 194 24
Actuarial (gain) loss recognized 54 4 - 1
Expected return on plan assets (191) = (208) =
Amount recognized due to limit on asset (30) - 8 =
Defined contribution current service cost 27 - 29 -
145 21 103 20

ASSET ALLOCATION BY MAJOR CATEGORY WEIGHTED BY PLAN ASSETS—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

2012 2011

Equity securities 52 47
Debt securities 38 41
All otherassets 10 12
100 100

No plan assets are directly invested in the Corporation’s or subsidiaries’ securities. With respect to Lifeco, plan assets include investments in segregated
funds managed by subsidiaries of Lifeco of $1,523 million ($1,430 millionin 2011). Plan assets do not include any property occupied or otherassets used by Lifeco.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 24 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
PENSION PLANS BENEFITS
% 2012 2011 2012 2011
WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE BENEFIT COST
Discount rate 51 55 51 55
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 5.8 6.2 - =
Rate of compensationincrease 3.6 3.7 - =
WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Discountrate 4.4 51 4.2 51
Rate of compensationincrease 3.2 3.6 - =
WEIGHTED AVERAGE HEALTHCARE TREND RATES
Initial healthcare trend rate 6.5 6.7
Ultimate healthcare trend rate 4.5 4.5
Year ultimate trend rate is reached 2024 2024

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets for the year is determined
based onlong-term market expectations prevailing at the beginning of the
yearforeach asset class, weighted by portfolio allocation, less an allowance
in respect to all expenses expected to be charged to the fund. Anticipated
future long-term performance of individual asset categories is considered,
reflecting management's best estimates of expected future inflation and
expected real yields on fixed income securities and equities. Since the prior
year-end there have been no changes in the method used to determine the
overall expected rate of return. In 2012, the actual return on plan assets was
$273 million ($55 million in 2011).

The period of time over which benefits are assumed to be paid is based
on best estimates of future mortality, including allowances for mortality
improvements. Mortality assumptions are significant in measuring

the defined benefit obligation for defined benefit plans. The mortality
assumptions applied by the Corporation and its subsidiaries take into
consideration average life expectancy, including allowances for future
mortality improvementasappropriate, and reflect variationsin such factors
as age, gender and geographic location. The assumptions also take into
consideration an estimation of future improvements in longevity. This
estimate is subject to considerable uncertainty and judgment is required in
establishing this assumption.

The mortality tables are reviewed at least annually, and assumptions are
in accordance with accepted actuarial practice in Canada. Emerging plan
experience is reviewed and considered in establishing the best estimate for
future mortality.

IMPACT OF CHANGES TO ASSUMED HEALTHCARE RATES—OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

IMPACT ON END-OF-YEAR
ACCRUED POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFIT OBLIGATION

IMPACT ON POST-
EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SERVICE
AND INTEREST COST

2012 2011 2012 2011

1% increase in assumed healthcare cost trend rate 44 46 2 2

1% decrease in assumed healthcare cost trend rate (37) (38) (2) 2)
SUMMARIZED PLAN INFORMATION

DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT

PENSION PLANS BENEFITS

2012 2011 2012 2011

Defined benefit obligation (4,389) (3,868) (470) (449)

Fairvalue of plan assets 3,547 3,359 - -

Funded status of plan (deficit) (842) (509) (470) (449)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (428) (197) (15) 2

Experience adjustment on plan assets 82 (153) - =

4
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NOTE 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Inthe normal course of managing exposure to fluctuationsininterestrates, foreign exchange rates, and to market risks, the Corporation and its subsidiaries
are end-users of various derivative financial instruments. Contracts are either exchange traded or over-the-counter traded with counterparties that are

credit-worthy financial intermediaries.

The following table summarizes the portfolio of derivative financial instruments of the Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31:

NOTIONALAMOUNT

TOTAL

1YEAR 1-5 OVER MAXIMUM ESTIMATED
2012 OR LESS YEARS SYEARS TOTAL CREDIT RISK FAIR VALUE
DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS ACCOUNTING HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Futures—long 9 - - 9 - -
Futures—short 71 - - 71 - -
Swaps 1,844 2,613 1,348 5,805 410 318
Options purchased 257 513 87 857 46 46
2,181 3,126 1,435 6,742 456 364
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 300 - - 300 1 -
Cross-currency swaps 205 2,001 4,772 6,978 565 290
505 2,001 4,772 7,278 566 290
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 900 4 - 904 8 (5)
Futures—long 7 - - 7 - -
Futures—short 224 - - 224 - (4)
1,131 4 - 1,135 8 (9)
3,817 5131 6,207 15,155 1,030 645
CASH FLOW HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps - - 30 30 14 13
Foreign exchange contracts
Cross-currency swaps 3 1,018 500 1,521 16 (10)
3 1,018 530 1,551 30 3
FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps - 58 124 182 - (1)
- 58 124 182 - @))
3,820 6,207 6,861 16,388 1,060 647
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTIONALAMOUNT

TOTAL

1YEAR 1-5 OVER MAXIMUM ESTIMATED
2011 ORLESS YEARS SYEARS TOTAL CREDITRISK FAIR VALUE
DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS ACCOUNTING HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Futures—long 55 = = 55 = =
Futures—short 5 = = 5 = =
Swaps 1,021 2,940 1,495 5,456 434 294
Options purchased 233 760 114 1,107 54 53
1,314 3,700 1,609 6,623 488 347
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 224 - - 224 - @)
Cross-currency swaps 43 1,540 4,662 6,245 551 314
267 1,540 4,662 6,469 551 313
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 40 18 - 58 - (16)
Futures—long 7 - - 7 - -
Futures—short 146 2 - 148 - (@D)
193 20 = 213 = 17)
1,774 5,260 6,271 13,305 1,039 643
CASH FLOW HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Swaps = = 31 31 11 11
Foreign exchange contracts
Cross-currency swaps - 10 1,500 1,510 6 (23)
= 10 1,531 1,541 17 (12)
FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Interest rate contracts
Sswaps = 10 92 102 = )
= 10 92 102 = )
1,774 5,280 7,894 14,948 1,056 629

The amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of the
instruments which are in a gain position. The credit risk is presented without
giving effect toany nettingagreementsor collateral arrangements and does not
reflect actual or expected losses. The total estimated fair value represents the
totalamount that the Corporation andits subsidiaries would receive (or pay) to
terminate all agreements at year-end. However, this would not resultin a gain
or loss to the Corporation and its subsidiaries as the derivative instruments
which correlate to certain assetsand liabilities provide offsetting gains orlosses.

INTEREST RATE CONTRACTS

Interest rate swaps, futures and options are used as part of a portfolio of
assets to manage interest rate risk associated with investment activities
and insurance and investment contract liabilities and to reduce the impact
of fluctuating interest rates on the mortgage banking operations and
intermediary operations. Interest rate swap agreements require the periodic
exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal
amountonwhich payments are based. Changes in fairvalue are recorded in
netinvestmentincome in the statements of earnings.

Calloptions grant the Corporationand its subsidiaries the right to enterinto
aswap with predetermined fixed-rate payments over a predetermined time
period on the exercise date. Call options are used to manage the variability in
future interest payments due to a change in credited interest rates and the
related potential change in cash flows due to surrenders. Call options are also
used to hedge minimum rate guarantees.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Cross-currency swaps are used in combination with other investments to
manage foreign currency risk associated with investment activities and
insurance and investment contract liabilities. Under these swaps, principal
amounts and fixed and floating interest payments may be exchanged in
different currencies. The Corporation and its subsidiaries may also enter
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge certain product
liabilities, certain cash and cash equivalents and certain cash flows.

OTHER DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Equity index swaps, futures and options are used to hedge certain product
liabilities. Equity index swaps arealso used as substitutesfor cashinstruments
and are used to periodically hedge the market risk associated with certain fee
income. Equity put options are used to manage potential credit risk impact
of significant declines in certain equity markets.

IGM also entersinto total return swaps and forward agreements to manage
its exposure to fluctuationsin the total return of its common shares related
to deferred compensation arrangements. Total return swap and forward
agreementsrequire the exchange of net contractual payments periodically or
atmaturity without the exchange of the notional principalamounts on which
the payments are based. Certain of these instruments are not designated
as hedges. Changes in fair value are recorded in operating expenses in the
statements of earnings for those instruments not designated as hedges.



NOTE 26 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the Corporation’s financial instruments using the valuation methods and assumptions described below. Fair
values are management's estimates and are generally calculated using market conditions at a specific point in time and may not reflect future fair values.
The calculations are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment.

2012 2011
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
DECEMBER 31 VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
ASSETS
Cashand cash equivalents 3,313 3,313 3,385 3,385
Investments (excluding investment properties) 120,062 122,805 113,841 116,170
Funds held by ceding insurers 10,537 10,537 9,923 9,923
Derivative financial instruments 1,060 1,060 1,056 1,056
Other financial assets 4212 4,212 3,539 3,539
Total financial assets 139,184 141,927 131,744 134,073
LIABILITIES
Obligation to securitization entities 4,701 4,787 3,827 3,930
Debenturesand debtinstruments 5,858 6,830 5,888 6,502
Capital trust securities 119 171 533 577
Derivative financial instruments 413 413 427 427
Other financial liabilities 4,923 4,925 4,509 4,510
Total financial liabilities 16,014 17,126 15,184 15,946

Fairvalueis determined using the following methods and assumptions:

>

Thefairvalue of short-term financial instruments approximates carrying
value due to their short-term maturities. These include cash and cash
equivalents, dividends, interest and accounts receivables, income tax
receivable, premiumsin course of collection, accounts payable, repurchase
agreements, dividends payable, interest payable and income tax payable.

Shares and bonds are valued at quoted market prices, when available.
When a quoted market priceis not readily available, alternative valuation
methods may be used. For mortgage and other loans, bonds, loans and
otherreceivables, thefairvalueis determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at market interest rates forloans with similar credit risks
and maturities (refer to Note 2).

Depositsand certificates (included in other financial liabilities) are valued
by discounting the contractual cash flows using market interest rates
currently offered for deposits with similar terms and credit risks.

Obligations to securitization entities are valued by discounting the
expected future cash flows by prevailing market yields for securitiesissued
by these securitization entities having like maturities and characteristics.

Debenturesand debtinstruments are determined by reference to current
market prices for debt with similar terms, risks and maturities.

Derivative financial instruments' fair values are based on quoted market
prices, where available, prevailing market rates for instruments with
similar characteristics and maturities, or discounted cash flow analysis.

Inaccordance with IFRS7 Financial Instruments—Disclosures, the Corporation’s
assetsand liabilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon
thefollowing fairvalue hierarchy:

>

Level 1inputs utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the
ability to access. Financial assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1inputs

include actively exchange-traded equity securities, exchange-traded
futures, and mutual and segregated funds which have available pricesinan
active market with noredemption restrictions. Levellassetsalsoinclude
liquid, exchange-traded equity securities, liquid open-end investment
fund units, and investments in Government of Canada Bonds and Canada
Mortgage Bondsininstanceswhere thereare quoted prices available from
active markets.

Level 2 inputs utilize other-than-quoted prices included in Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level
2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, and inputs other-than-quoted prices that are observable for the
assetorliability, such asinterestrateandyield curves thatare observable
at commonly quoted intervals. The fair values for some Level 2 securities
were obtained from a pricing service. The pricing service inputs include,
but are not limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers
and reference data. Level 2 securities include those priced using a matrix
whichisbased on credit quality and average life, government and agency
securities, restricted stock, some private bonds and equities, most
investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most asset-backed
securities and most over-the-counter derivatives.

Level 3inputs utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on
observable marketinputsandinclude situations where thereislittle, if any,
market activity for theasset orliability. The values of the majority of Level
3securities were obtained from single-broker quotes and internal pricing
models. Financial assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs include
certainbonds, certainasset-backed securities, some private equities and
investmentsin mutual and segregated funds where thereare redemption
restrictions, certain over-the-counter derivatives and restructured notes
of the masterasset vehicle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 26 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents information about the Corporation’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31,2012 and December 31, 2011:

DECEMBER 31, 2012 LEVEL1 LEVEL2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
ASSETS
Shares
Available for sale 145 5 1 151
Fairvalue through profit or loss 5952 7 12 5971
Bonds
Available for sale - 7,350 27 7,377
Fairvalue through profit or loss 225 64,577 274 65,076
Mortgage and otherloans
Fairvalue through profit or loss - 249 - 249
Derivatives - 1,060 - 1,060
6,322 73,248 314 79,884
LIABILITIES
Derivatives 4 353 56 413
Other liabilities - - 21 21
4 353 77 434
DECEMBER 31, 2011 LEVEL1 LEVEL?2 LEVEL3 TOTAL
ASSETS
Shares
Available for sale 132 7 1 140
Fairvalue through profit or loss 5,485 3 14 5,502
Bonds
Available for sale = 7,010 40 7,050
Fairvalue through profit or loss 227 61,406 332 61,965
Mortgage and otherloans
Fairvalue through profit or loss = 292 = 292
Derivatives = 1,056 = 1,056
5,844 69,774 387 76,005
LIABILITIES
Derivatives = 350 77 427
Other liabilities = = 26 26
= 350 103 453
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NOTE 26 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents additional information about assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for which the Corporation has
utilized Level 3inputs to determine fairvalue for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

SHARES BONDS
FAIRVALUE FAIR VALUE OTHER
AVAILABLE THROUGH AVAILABLE THROUGH DERIVATIVES, ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 FOR SALE PROFIT OR LOSS FOR SALE PROFIT OR LOSS NET (LIABILITIES) TOTAL
Balance, beginning of year 1 14 40 332 (77) (26) 284
Total gains (losses)
In net earnings - (2) - 48 10 (4) 52
In other comprehensive income - - 3 - - - 3
Purchases - 3 - - 3) (1) 1)
Sales - - (4) 1) - - (5)
Settlements - - (5) (97) 14 10 (78)
Transfers out of Level 3 - (3) (7) (8) - - (18)
Balance, end of year 1 12 27 274 (56) (21) 237
SHARES BONDS
FAIRVALUE FAIR VALUE OTHER
AVAILABLE THROUGH AVAILABLE THROUGH DERIVATIVES, ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 FOR SALE PROFIT OR LOSS FOR SALE PROFIT OR LOSS NET (LIABILITIES) TOTAL
Balance, beginning of year 1 417 42 340 (26) (18) 756
Total gains (losses)
In net earnings - 35 1 54 62) (5) 23
In other comprehensive income - - 2 - - - 2
Purchases - 65 - - - 3) 62
Sales = ©6) = (4) - - (10)
Settlements - - (5) (58) 11 - (52)
Transfers out of Level 3 - (497) - - - - (497)
Balance, end of year 1 14 40 332 (77) (26) 284
NOTE 27 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
INVESTMENT SHARE OF
ANDCASHFLOW  CURRENCY  CONTROLLED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 HEDGES TRANSLATION CORPORATION TOTAL
Balance, beginning of year 96 (249) 176 23
Other comprehensive income (l0ss) (18) (53) (100) (171)
Balance, end of year 78 (302) 76 (148)
INVESTMENT SHARE OF
ANDCASHFLOW  CURRENGY  CONTROLLED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 HEDGES TRANSLATION CORPORATION TOTAL
Balance, beginning of year 81 (399) 398 80
Other comprehensive income (l0ss) 15 150 (222) (57)
Balance, end of year 96 (249) 176 23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Thefollowingis areconciliation of the numerators and the denominators used in the computations of earnings per share:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Net earnings attributable to shareholders 1,743 1,826
Dividends on perpetual preferred shares (117) (104)
Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,626 1,722
Dilutive effect of subsidiaries (8) 12)
Diluted net earnings attributable to common shareholders 1,618 1,710
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (millions)

—Basic 708.3 708.1

Exercise of stock options 3.6 3.0

Shares assumed to be repurchased with proceeds from exercise of stock options (3.2) (2.3)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (millions)

—Diluted 708.7 708.8

For 2012, 5,190,730 stock options (6,097,618 in 2011) have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as the exercise price was higher

than the market price.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Basic earnings per common share ($)
From continuing operations 2.30 2.38
From discontinued operations - 0.05
2.30 2.43
Diluted earnings per common share ($)
From continuing operations 2.28 2.36
From discontinued operations - 0.05
2.28 241

NOTE 29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to legal
actions, including arbitrations and class actions, arising in the normal course
of business. It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these
proceedings with certainty, and it is possible that an adverse resolution
could have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of
the Corporation. However, based on information presently known, it is not
expected that any of the existing legal actions, either individually or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation.

Asubsidiary of Lifeco has declared a partial windup in respect of an Ontario
defined benefit pension plan which will not likely be completed for some time.
The partial windup could involve the distribution of the amount of actuarial
surplus, if any, attributable to the wound-up portion of the plan. In addition
to the regulatory proceedings involving this partial windup, a related class
action proceeding has been commenced in Ontario related to the partial
windup and three potential partial windups under the plan. The class action
also challenges the validity of charging expenses to the plan. The provisions
for certain Canadian retirement plansin the amounts of $97 million after tax
established by Lifeco’s subsidiaries in the third quarter of 2007 have been
reduced to $34 million. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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The Court of Appeal for Ontario released a decision on November 3, 2011 in
regard to theinvolvement of the participating accounts of Lifeco subsidiaries
London Lifeand Great-West Life in the financing of the acquisition of London
Insurance Group Inc. in1997 (the “Appeal Decision”).

The Appeal Decision ruled Lifeco subsidiaries achieved substantial success and
required that there be adjustments to the original trial judgment regarding
amounts which were to be reallocated to the participating accounts going
forward. Any monies to be reallocated to the participating accounts will be
dealt with in accordance with Lifeco subsidiaries participating policyholder
dividend policies in the ordinary course of business. No awards are to be
paid out toindividual class members. On May 24, 2012, the Supreme Court of
Canada dismissed the plaintiff's application for leave to appeal the Appeal
Decision. The Appeal Decision directed the parties back to the trial judge
to work out the remaining issues. On January 24, 2013 the Ontario Superior
Court of Justice released a decision ordering that $285 million be reallocated
to the participating account surplus. Lifeco will be appealing that decision.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, in response to the Appeal Decision, Lifeco
re-evaluated and reduced the litigation provision established in the third
quarter of 2010, which positively impacted common shareholder net earnings
of Lifeco in 2011 by $223 million after tax (Power Financial's share—S$158 million).



NOTE 29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

During the subsequent event period, in response to the Ontario Superior
Courtof Justice decision on January 24, 2013, Lifeco established an incremental
provision of $140 million after tax (Power Financial's share—$99 million).
Lifeco now holds $290 million in after-tax provisions for these proceedings.

Regardless of the ultimate outcome of this case, there will not be any impact
on the capital position of Lifeco or on participating policy contract terms
and conditions. Based on information presently known, this matter is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation.

In connection with the acquisition of its subsidiary Putnam, Lifeco has an
indemnity from a third party against liabilities arising from certain litigation
andregulatoryactionsinvolving Putnam. Putnam continues to have potential
liability for these mattersin the event the indemnity is not honoured. Lifeco
expects the indemnity will continue to be honoured and that any liability
of Putnam would not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position.

NOTE 30 COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

GUARANTEES

In the normal course of operations, the Corporation and its subsidiaries
execute agreements that provide for indemnifications to third parties in
transactions such as business dispositions, business acquisitions, loans and
securitization transactions. The Corporation and its subsidiaries have also
agreed to indemnify their directors and certain of their officers. The nature of
theseagreements precludes the possibility of making areasonable estimate
of the maximum potential amount the Corporation and its subsidiaries
could berequired to pay third parties as the agreements often do not specify
a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent on the outcome of
future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be
determined. Historically, the Corporation has not made any payments under
such indemnification agreements. No amounts have been accrued related
to theseagreements.

LETTERS OF CREDIT

Letters of credit are written commitments provided by a bank. For Lifeco,
the total amount of letter of credit facilities is US$3.0 billion, of which
USS2.7 billion'is currently issued.

The Reinsurance operation from time to time uses letters of credit provided
mainly as collateral under certain reinsurance contracts foron-balance sheet
policy liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

On October 17, 2012, a subsidiary of Lifeco received an administrative
complaint from the Massachusetts Securities Division in relation to that
subsidiary'sroleas collateral manager of two collateralized debt obligations.
Thecomplaintis seeking certain remedies including the disgorgement of fees,
aciviladministrative fineand a cease and desist order. Inaddition, that same
subsidiaryisadefendantin two civil litigation matters brought by institutions
involved in those collateralized debt obligations. Based on information
presently known, Lifeco believes these matters are without merit. The
potential outcome of these mattersis not yet determined.

Subsidiaries of Lifeco have an investment in a U.S.-based private equity
partnership wherein a dispute arose over the terms of the partnership
agreement. Lifeco established a provision in the fourth quarter of 2011 for
$99 million after tax. The dispute was resolved on January 10, 2012, and as a
result, Lifeco nolonger holds the provision.

INVESTMENT COMMITMENTS

With respect to Lifeco, commitments to investment transactions made in
the normal course of operations in accordance with policies and guidelines
and that are to be disbursed upon fulfilment of certain contract conditions
were $516 million as at December 31,2012 (5675 million as at December 31, 2011).
At December 31, 2012, $470 million will mature within one year (§555 million
at December 31,2011), $46 million will mature in one to two years (579 million
at December 31, 2011) and no commitments will mature in a period over two
years (541 million in two to three years at December 31, 2011).

INVESTED ASSETS ON DEPOSIT FOR

REINSURANCE AGREEMENTS

Lifeco has $606 million ($577 million in 2011) of invested assets maintained on
depositinrespectof certain reinsurance agreements. Lifecoretainsall rights
tothecash flowson theseassets, however, theinvestment policies for these
assetsare governed by the terms of the reinsurance agreements.

The Corporationand its subsidiaries enterinto operating leases for office space and certain equipment used in the normal course of operations. Lease payments
are charged to operations over the period of use. The future minimum lease payments in aggregate and by year are as follows:

2018 AND
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 THEREAFTER TOTAL
Future lease payments 153 135 115 95 77 158 733
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Thefinancial statements of the Corporation include the operations of the following subsidiaries:

CORPORATION INCORPORATED IN PRIMARY BUSINESS OPERATION % HELD
Great-West Lifeco Inc. CANADA FINANCIAL SERVICES HOLDING COMPANY 68.2%
The Great-West Life Assurance Company CANADA INSURANCE AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT 100%
London Life Insurance Company CANADA INSURANCE AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT 100%
The Canada Life Assurance Company CANADA INSURANCE AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT 100%
Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company UNITED STATES INSURANCE AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT 100%
Putnam Investments, LLC UNITED STATES FINANCIAL SERVICES 95.6%
IGM Financial Inc. CANADA FINANCIAL SERVICES 58.7%
Investors Group Inc. CANADA FINANCIAL SERVICES 100%
Mackenzie Financial Corporation CANADA FINANCIAL SERVICES 100%
Parjointco N.V. NETHERLANDS HOLDING COMPANY 50%
Pargesa Holding SA SWITZERLAND HOLDING COMPANY 55.6%

Balances and transactions between the Corporation and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Corporation, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Corporation and other related parties are disclosed below.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, Great-West Life enters into various
transactions with related companies which include providing insurance
benefits to other companies within the Power Financial Corporation group
of companies. In all cases, transactions are at market terms and conditions.

During 2012, IGM sold residential mortgage loans to Great-West Life and
London Life for $232 million (5202 million in 2011).

KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Corporation, directly or indirectly. The persons included in the key
management personnel are the members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, as well as certain management executives of the Corporation
and subsidiaries.

Thefollowing table describes all compensation paid to, awarded to, or earned by each of the key management personnelfor services rendered in all capacities

to the Corporation andits subsidiaries:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011
Compensation and employee benefits 16 15
Post-employment benefits 4
Share-based payment 9

32 28
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NOTE 32 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ACQUISITION OF IRISH LIFE GROUP LIMITED

On February 19, 2013, Lifeco announced that it had reached an agreement
with the Government of Ireland to acquire, through its subsidiary Canada Life
Limited, all of the shares of Irish Life Group Limited (Irish Life) for $1.75 billion
(€1.3 billion). Established in1939, Irish Lifeis the largest lifeand pensions group
andinvestment managerin Ireland.

Lifeco also announced a $1.25 billion offering of subscription receipts
exchangeable into Lifeco common shares by way of a $650 million bought
deal publicofferingas well as concurrent private placements of subscription
receipts to Power Financialand IGM foranaggregate amount of $600 million.

On March 12, 2013, Power Financial purchased $550 million of Lifeco
subscription receipts. On that date, IGM also purchased $50 million of
Lifeco subscription receipts. Each subscription receipt entitles the holder to
receive one common share of Lifeco upon closing of the acquisition of Irish
Life, without any action on the part of the holder and without payment of

NOTE 35 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Thefollowing strategic business units constitute the Corporation's reportable
operating segments:

> Lifecooffers, in Canada, the United Statesand Europe, a wide range of life
insurance, retirementandinvestment products, as well as reinsurance and
specialty generalinsurance products, to individuals, businesses and other
private and public organizations.

> |IGM offers a comprehensive package of financial planning services and
investment products to its client base. IGM derives its revenues from
a range of sources, but primarily from management fees, which are
charged to its mutual funds for investment advisory and management
services. IGM also earns revenue from fees charged to its mutual funds
foradministrative services.

additional consideration. Power Financialand IGM completed the purchase
of subscription receipts by private placements concurrently with the closing
of the bought deal public offering of Lifeco’s subscription receipts. The public
offeringand private placements of subscriptionreceipts are at the same price
of $25.70 per subscription receipt.

Should the subscription receipts be converted into common shares of Lifeco,
Power Financial will hold, directly and indirectly, a 69.4% economic interest
in Lifeco.

Theacquisitionisexpected to closeinJuly of 2013, and is subject to customary
regulatory approvals, including approvals from the European Commission
under the EU Merger Regulation, and certain closing conditions.

PREFERRED SHARE ISSUE
On February 28, 2013, the Corporation issued 12,000,000 4.80% Non-
Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series Sforgross proceeds of $300 million.

> Parjointco holds the Corporation’sinterestin Pargesa, a holding company
which holds diversified interests in companies based in Europe active
in various sectors, including specialty minerals, cement and building
materials, water, waste services, energy, and wines and spirits.

> The segment entitled Other is made up of corporate activities of the
Corporation and alsoincludes consolidation elimination entries.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are those described in
Note 2—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
of the financial statements. The Corporation evaluates the performance
based on the operating segment’s contribution to consolidated net earnings.
Revenues and assets are attributed to geographic areas based on the
point of origin of revenues and the location of assets. The contribution to
consolidated net earnings of each segment is calculated after taking into
account the investment Lifeco and IGM have in each other.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 33 SEGMENTED INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO OTHER TOTAL

REVENUES
Premium income, net 18,820 - - - 18,820
Investmentincome, net 8,296 153 - (88) 8,361
Feeincome 2,945 2,425 - (139) 5,231
30,061 2,578 - (227) 32,412

EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 22,451 - - - 22,451
Commissions 1,781 858 - (138) 2,501
Operating and administrative expenses 2,968 671 - 57 3,696
Financing charges 285 92 - 18 395
27,485 1,621 - (63) 29,043
2,576 957 - (164) 3,369
Share of earnings (losses) of investment in jointly controlled corporation - - 134 - 134
Earnings before income taxes—continuing operations 2,576 957 134 (164) 3,503
Income taxes 368 190 - 5 563
Contribution to net earnings—continuing operations 2,208 767 134 (169) 2,940
Contribution to net earnings—discontinued operations - - - - -
Contribution to net earnings 2,208 767 134 (169) 2,940

Attributable to

Non-controlling interests 969 327 - (99) 1,197
Perpetual preferred shareholders - - - 117 117
Common shareholders 1,239 440 134 (187) 1,626
2,208 767 134 (169) 2,940

INFORMATION ON ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURE

DECEMBER 31, 2012 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO OTHER TOTAL
Goodwill 5,857 2,816 - - 8,673
Total assets 253,833 11,609 2,149 1,002 268,593
Total liabilities 236,132 7,503 - 586 244,221

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2012 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Invested assets (including cash and cash equivalents) 65,068 28,722 33,110 126,900
Investmentin jointly controlled corporation - - 2,149 2,149
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 54 341 23,809 26,798 104,948
Otherassets 4,176 3,311 13,503 20,990
Goodwilland intangible assets 10,129 1,721 1,756 13,606
Total assets 133,714 57,563 77,316 268,593
Total revenues 16,221 6,401 9,790 32,412
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NOTE 33 SEGMENTED INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 LIFECO 1GM PARJOINTCO OTHER TOTAL

REVENUES
Premiumincome, net 17,293 - - - 17,293
Investmentincome, net 9,702 161 - (99) 9,764
Feeincome 2,903 2,571 - (131) 5,343
29,898 2,732 - (230) 32,400

EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 23,043 = = = 23,043
Commissions 1,548 895 - (131) 2,312
Operating and administrative expenses 2,314 638 = 54 3,006
Financing charges 289 103 = 17 409
27,194 1,636 = (60) 28,770
2,704 1,096 - (170) 3,630
Share of earnings (losses) of investment in jointly controlled corporation = = (20) = (20)
Earnings before income taxes—continuing operations 2,704 1,096 (20) (170) 3,610
Income taxes 465 250 - 9) 706
Contribution to net earnings—continuing operations 2,239 846 (20) (161) 2,904
Contribution to net earnings—discontinued operations = 63 = = 63
Contribution to net earnings 2,239 909 (20) (161) 2,967

Attributable to

Non-controlling interests 855 392 - (106) 1,141
Perpetual preferred shareholders = = = 104 104
Common shareholders 1,384 517 (20) (159) 1,722
2,239 909 (20) (161) 2,967

INFORMATION ON ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURE

DECEMBER 31, 2011 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO OTHER TOTAL
Goodwill 5,861 2,925 - - 8,786
Total assets 238,552 10,839 2,222 1,065 252,678
Total liabilities 222,664 6,625 - 574 229,863

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2011 CANADA UNITED STATES EUROPE TOTAL
Invested assets (including cash and cash equivalents) 61,960 27,403 31,064 120,427
Investment in jointly controlled corporation = = 2,222 2,222
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders 49,622 22,359 24,601 96,582
Otherassets 4,087 3,050 12,501 19,638
Goodwilland intangible assets 10,280 1,769 1,760 13,809
Total assets 125,949 54,581 72,148 252,678
Total revenues 17,064 6,123 9,213 32,400
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Power Financial Corporation, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as
at December 31,2012 and December 31, 2011, and the consolidated statements of earnings, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Managementis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal controlas management determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
thatare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to
obtainreasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about theamountsand disclosuresin the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on theauditor'sjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Power Financial Corporation as at

December 31,2012 and December 31,2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Signed
Deloitte LLP*

March 13,2013
Montréal, Québec

1 CPA auditor, CA, publicaccountancy permit No. A104630
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POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PREVIOUS CANADIAN GAAP

DECEMBER 31
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] (UNAUDITED) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Cashand cash equivalents 3,313 3,385 3,656 4,855 4,689
Total assets 268,593 252,678 244 644 140,231 141,546
Shareholders’ equity 14,029 13,521 12,811 13,207 13,419
Consolidated assets and assets under management 523,885 496,781 500,181 471,775 452,158
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
REVENUES
Premium income, net 18,820 17,293 17,748 18,033 30,007
Investmentincome, net 8,361 9,764 9,600 9,678 1,163
Feeincome 5,231 5,343 5174 4,998 5,540
32,412 32,400 32,522 32,709 36,710
EXPENSES
Total paid or credited to policyholders 22,451 23,043 23,225 23,809 26,774
Commissions 2,501 2,312 2,216 2,088 2,172
Operating and administrative expenses 3,696 3,006 3,837 3,607 3,675
Intangible and goodwill impairment - = = = 2,178
Financing charges 395 409 432 494 438
29,043 28,770 29,710 29,998 35,237
3,369 3,630 2,812 2,711 1,473
Share of earnings (losses) of investment in jointly controlled corporation 134 (20) 121 71 (181)
Income taxes 563 706 523 565 16
Net earnings—continuing operations 2,940 2,904 2,410 2,217 1,276
Net earnings—discontinued operations - 63 2 = 692
Net earnings 2,940 2,967 2,412 2,217 1,968
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 1,197 1,141 845 778 631
Perpetual preferred shareholders 117 104 99 88 74
Common shareholders 1,626 1,722 1,468 1,351 1,263
2,940 2,967 2,412 2,217 1,968
PER SHARE
Operating earnings before otheritems 2.38 2.44 2.30 2.05 1.98
Net earnings from discontinued operations - 0.05 = = 0.71
Net earnings 2.30 2.43 2.08 1.92 1.79
Dividends 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000 1.4000 1.3325
Bookvalue at year-end 16.60 16.26 15.26 16.27 16.80
MARKET PRICE (COMMON SHARES)
High 30.15 31.98 34.23 31.99 40.94
Low 24.06 23.62 27.00 14.66 20.33
Year-end 27.24 25.54 30.73 31.08 23.90
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
EARNINGS EARNINGS
[IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS] TOTAL NET PER SHARE PER SHARE
(UNAUDITED) REVENUES EARNINGS —BASIC —DILUTED
2012
First quarter 7,110 712 0.64 0.64
Second quarter 8,374 695 0.61 0.60
Third quarter 9,217 813 0.65 0.65
Fourth quarter 7711 720 0.39 0.38
20m
First quarter 6,919 616 0.52 0.52
Second quarter 7,784 803 0.72 0.71
Third quarter 9,126 593 0.44 0.44
Fourth quarter 8,571 955 0.75 0.75
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Additional copies of this Annual Report, as well as copies
of the annual report of Power Corporation of Canada, are
available from the Secretary:

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION
751Victoria Square  or  Suite 2600, Richardson Building
Montréal, Québec 1 Lombard Place
Canada H2Y 23 Winnipeg, Manitoba
Canada R3BO0X5

STOCK LISTINGS
Shares of Power Financial Corporation are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange:

COMMON SHARES: PWF

FIRST PREFERRED SHARES:

Series A: PWF.PR.A Series L: PWF.PR.L
Series D: PWF.PR.E Series M: PWF.PR.M
Series E: PWF.PR.F Series O: PWF.PR.O
Series F: PWF.PR.G Series P: PWF.PR.P
Series H: PWF.PR.H Series R: PWF.PR.R
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Series K PWF.PR.K
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Power Financial Corporation are used with permission.
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